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REPORT OF THE TREASURER
B EHE

It is my pleasure to submit the financial report of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for the year ended 30 June 2024.
OVERVIEW

The financial year 2023/24 is the second year of the University Grants Committee (UGC) 2022-25 funding triennium. To
commemorate the 30th Anniversary of PolyU achieving university status, the University organised a series of celebratory
events under the theme “Powering Innovation: 30 Years and Beyond”, including the PolyU Chinese Culture Festival. Kicked off
in March 2024, the festival invited scholars, experts and artists to showcase the values and charm of Chinese culture through
exhibitions, lectures and workshops.

The University has achieved commendable results in international university rankings, ranking 57th in the Quacquarelli
Symonds (QS) World University Rankings 2025 and 87th in the Times Higher Education (THE) World University Rankings 2024.
In the U.S. News and World Report's 2024-2025 Best Global Universities Rankings, PolyU leaps to 67th in the world, placing third
in Hong Kong. The University is also highly regarded in the QS World University Rankings by Subject 2024, with five subjects
ranked top 20. These results reaffirm the University's leadership in education and research both internationally and locally.

The University has continued its proactive recruitment effort globally during the year, with over 400 academic talents across
multiple disciplines appointed under the Strategic Hiring Scheme (SHS). Since the launch of the Global STEM Professorship
Scheme by the HKSAR Government in 2021, 30 internationally renowned STEM scholars nominated by PolyU were supported
by the UGC. Presidential Young Scholars Scheme was established under the SHS last year to invite outstanding young
scholars to join the University and about 30 Assistant Professors and Associate Professors have since been recruited under
the scheme. A total funding of over $500 million was allocated to support the staff remuneration, subsidies and establishment
of laboratories for the SHS during the year.
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OVERVIEW (CONT'D)

To attract the best and brightest students worldwide to join the University as postdoctoral fellows, the University has
provided steadfast support of $145 million for about 370 postdoctoral fellows under four Postdoctoral Fellowship Schemes
during the year. The University has also been boosting its research postgraduate (RPg) student intake progressively in recent
years, with more than 3,500 RPg students recruited in 2023/24. A funding of over $350 million has been allocated to provide
quality learning and research experience for RPg students.

PolyU continues to excel in its pursuit of scientific and technological advancement, as demonstrated by the significant funding
awarded for its research projects. The University has successfully secured research funding of over $1,100 million from the
Research Grant Council (RGC), Innovation and Technology Fund (ITF) and other funding bodies in 2023/24, an increase of
approximately $100 million as compared to last year. Two new research centres, namely the Research Centre of Textiles for
Future Fashion and the Research Centre for Digital Transformation of Tourism have been established in the year under the
central research platform of the PolyU Academy for Interdisciplinary Research (PAIR) to address key societal challenges. Over
$440 million has been provided by the University as startup grants to the 18 constituent research units of PAIR to facilitate
interdisciplinary collaboration for impactful research. In addition, a total funding of over $190 million was provided to 23
research centres operated outside PAIR to address strategic development areas of the University. Among them, eight were
newly supported in 2023/24.

To connect PolyU’s research capacity and outcomes to the industrial and socio-economic needs of Mainland cities for impactful
knowledge transfer, the University is setting up translational research institutes across the country. The initiative aims to
integrate PolyU into national development and support Hong Kong in becoming an international innovation and technology
hub. Five research institutes with total funding support of over RMB600 million (equivalent to HK$650 million) from the local
government were established in the Mainland in 2023/24, including Hangzhou, Jinjiang, Nanjing, Wenzhou, and Wuxi.
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OVERVIEW (CONT'D)

To support the transformation and commercialisation of research and development outcomes and facilitate collaboration
among the Government, industries, universities and research sectors, the HKSAR Government has launched the Research,
Academic and Industry Sectors One-plus (RAISe+) Scheme in 2023. Two projects in advanced manufacturing, and new
materials and new energy led by PolyU’s research teams have been awarded funding under the RAISe+ Scheme. The funding
will expedite the commercialisation of these projects, enabling our researchers to develop innovative solutions, forge stronger
industry partnerships and ultimately translate their research outcome into real-world impact.

To foster knowledge transfer and increase societal impact through the commercialisation of PolyU’s research innovation
outputs, PolyU has established the Entrepreneurship Investment Fund (EIF) and launched the Angel Fund Scheme (the
Scheme). Both EIF and the Scheme aim to support the further scale-up of startups and nurture Polypreneurs involving
PolyU academic staff, researchers, students, or alumni. During the year, PolyU has actively reviewed potential investees and
invested in startups across a variety of sectors, including healthcare, robotics, sustainability and digital. Depending on the
type of supporting scheme, each selected startup may receive funding of up to $4 million. Total funding granted under the
above schemes amounted to $7.5 million in 2023/24.

Since 2019, the University has launched the Greater Bay Area (GBA) Startup Postdoc Programme (the Programme) to align
with Hong Kong's goal of playing a significant role in the GBA development. The Programme aims to promote research-based
entrepreneurship and nurture recent doctoral graduates to become “Technopreneurs”, extending research impact to society.
The two-year structured programme is open to recent doctoral graduates from around the world with a strong passion and
vision for commercialising research technologies through startup ventures in the GBA. By leveraging support from PolyU
and its partners’ resources and networks in the GBA, the Programme offers a wide range of support, including a competitive
remuneration package and benefits, dual mentorship from academia and industry experts and entrepreneurship training.
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OVERVIEW (CONT'D)

Opened in October 2023, the University Square not only serves as a symbolic and iconic campus landmark, but also sets a new
milestone in PolyU’s development, representing the University’s commitment to fostering an engaging, green and sustainable
campus environment. The campus expansion at Homantin Slope which includes the provision of high-tech teaching and
training facilities, laboratories and residential accommodation for over 1,200 students is underway and is due to be completed
in 2027. The Kowloon Tong Student Hostel project which will provide around 1,700 hostel places and recreational facilities is
also in progress and scheduled for completion in 2028. The University will closely keep track of the progress of these capital
projects to ensure they will be completed on schedule.

In support of Hong Kong’s goal to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050, the University has established the Campus Carbon
Neutrality Committee in 2022 to drive its carbon neutrality efforts. The committee launched the Carbon Neutrality Funding
Scheme since 2022/23 to support research projects that leverage the University's expertise and utilise the campus as a
testbed for sustainability-related technologies and solutions to enhance living standards and realise carbon neutrality. Nine
new projects covering a variety of areas were supported in 2023/24 with total funding of about $12 million provided.

From a financial perspective, the University and the Consolidated Entity recorded a surplus of $537 million (2022/23: $935
million) and $693 million (2022/23: $1,010 million) respectively for the year 2023/24. Net assets of the University and the
Consolidated Entity as at the end of 2023/24 grew 5% to $10,593 million (2022/23: $10,056 million) and 6% to $11,627 million
(2022/23: $10,935 million) respectively. The University as always has exercised prudent and realistic resource planning
to ensure its financial viability and sustainability. The University is in sound financial health, capable of supporting various
strategic goals and initiatives in education, research and knowledge transfer.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The income for the University in 2023/24 increased by $901 million to $8,732 million (2022/23: $7,831 million). The increase
for the year was mainly contributed by the increases in tuition and other fees of $307 million, government subventions of $299
million and interest and investment gain of $219 million.

The University's total expenditure in the year increased by $1,299 million to $8,195 million (2022/23: $6,896 million). Staff
costs and benefits increased by $672 million to $5,055 million in 2023/24 (2022/23: $4,383 million), which represented
approximately 62% of the University's total expenditure. The increase was mainly due to increase in headcount of academic
and research staff, salary adjustments in line with the cost of inflation, prevailing market trends and staff performance
reviews. Other operating expenditure, mainly related to initiatives launched to enhance the University’s teaching and research
capabilities, also increased by $478 million to $2,509 million in 2023/24 (2022/23: $2,031 million).

The total income from subsidiaries in the year increased by $164 million to $1,733 million (2022/23: $1,569 million), and
their total expenditure was $1,620 million (2022/23: $1,505 million), resulting in a surplus of $113 million (2022/23: $64
million). The increase in income was mainly contributed by the improved performance of the hotel and catering business of
Hotel ICON Limited. Through the subsidiaries, the University has set up and operated a number of research facilities and
laboratories, applied for research funding, conducted research projects, offered professional training courses, and supported
entrepreneurship development in the Mainland China using non-UGC funds. The operating costs of these subsidiaries were
considered as the University’s investment in education, research and knowledge transfer.

An analysis of the University and Consolidated Income and Expenditure is provided in Figures 1-4.
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Income Analysis UXA 247

Income A
Government Subventions

Tuition and Other Fees

Interest and Investment Gain

Donations and Benefactions

Other Income

Total Income
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Figure 1: 2023/24 Consolidated income analysis
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Interest and Investment Gain
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Donations and Benefactions
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Other Income
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10,015

HK$million

47.9%

33.7%

6.2%
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Consolidated &

University K22

2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'m % HK$'m % HK$'m % HK$'m %
4,809 47.9 4,507 50.1 4,738 54.3 4,439 56.7
3,389 33.7 3,031 33.7 2,516 28.8 2,209 28.2
620 6.2 390 4.3 579 6.6 360 4.6
230 2.3 211 2.3 271 3.1 253 3.2
1,003 9.9 866 9.6 628 7.2 570 7.3
10,051 100 9,005 100 8,732 100 7,831 100
Figure 2: 2023/24 University income analysis
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Expenditure B3

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Education Services
Other Activities
Finance Costs
Income Tax
Remeasurement and
Exchange Differences
Total Expenditure

Consolidated &
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University X2

2024
HK$'m

B2 BERBHR
HERRIH 6,159
E &8 199
FR R B ERE 192
HAthH B ARFS 336
6,886
EER—MRIEE 437
RERBRAMX 1,146
B4 R—IB AR 507
HAthEED 386
BiT5E 7
FRS8 4

BitER

EREE (15)
FEl5 9,358

Figure 3: 2023/24 Consolidated expenditure analysis
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7,995

2023 2024 2023
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Figure 4: 2023/24 University expenditure analysis

B rY: 2023/24 £EEXZLRZ T

\

EEE

8,195

HK$million
BEET

Teaching, Learning and Research

® o smpam 78.0%
Management and General 0

. EER—MRIEE 4.2%
Premises and Related Expenses 0
B2 REMIEX 12.3%
Student and General Education

. Services 5.4%
B R —RABRE
Other Activities
i 5EH) 0.1%
Finance Costs
BT B 0.1%
Income Tax

® qisn 0.1%
Remeasurement and Exchange
Differences -0.2%

EtERERERE



8 PolyU Financial Report I X Bi75#R & 2023/24

RESEARCH

In 2023/24, the total number of ongoing research projects was 4,552 (2022/23: 4,101), of which 1,427 (2022/23: 1,511) were
new projects. The total number of registered research postgraduate students was 3,667 (2022/23: 3,008).

In addition to the research funding provision built into the academic units’ one-line budget, the University incurred a total
expenditure of $2,166 million (2022/23: $1,531 million) on specific research activities, of which $1,283 million (2022/23: $884
million) was supported by UGC funds and $883 million (2022/23: $647 million) supported by non-UGC funds.

The University secured a total of $481 million from the RGC research funding schemes during the year (2022/23: $451 million),
representing an increase of 7% over the last year. Majority of the funding from RGC were provided by the General Research
Fund (funding approved: $185.7 million), Theme-based Research Scheme (funding approved: $87.2 million), Collaborative
Research Fund (CRF) including CRF Young Collaborative Research Grant (funding approved: $64.9 million), Strategic Topics
Grant (funding approved: $33.6 million), Research Impact Fund (funding approved: $20.9 million), Early Career Scheme (funding
approved: $22.1 million), National Natural Science Foundation of China (NSFC)/RGC Joint Research Scheme and NSFC/RGC
Collaborative Research Scheme (funding approved: $15.4 million), RGC Senior Research Fellow/Research Fellow Scheme
(funding approved: $12.9 million), Co-funding Mechanism on Joint Laboratories with the Chinese Academy of Sciences (funding
approved: $5.6 million), etc.

The University attained an outstanding performance in securing funding support from various other sources during the year.
In addition to $138 million from the ITF for 50 ITF projects, the University was awarded over $83.9 million from other funding
schemes during the year, including the AIDS Trust Fund, Beat Drugs Fund, Environment and Conservation Fund, Green Tech
Fund, Health and Medical Research Fund, Public Policy Research Funding Scheme, Smart Traffic Fund, Standing Committee on
Language Education and Research, Strategic Public Policy Research Fund, Sustainable Agricultural Development Fund, etc.
Their financial impact will be gradually reflected in the University’s financial statements as the relevant projects progress.

R

2023/24F REITHRRFIAAIE B £514,55218 (2022/23 : 4,10118) » EM1,42718 (2022/23 : 1,51118) A¥IER - sFMARENEAR S
3,667%% (2022/23 : 3,008%2) °

REFTAZRMEMNEIEFEERNRIAIEERAS » REESERTE RS 521.66187T (2022/23 : 15.311870) » HA12.831%
7 (2022/23 : 8.84{87T) M E BB T EE) » 8.838 7T (2022/23 : 6.47187T) HIENESEEEE) -

ARBRENKEAEERE (THERL) ZEMREEBNE 8P ES—4.81185T (2022/23 - 4.51{87T) KU - REFIBMT% - KEBHHI
MEREREREEBEMRE (ERERR 1 1.86(87T) ~ EEARE (FREEE © 87208 7T) - BENESREHEMARAEBENHE
MAEE (BB © 6,49087T) ~ REEBAARZBE (BREEE - 33608 7T) ~ ARTEES (BRI © 209087w) ~ HUEFE
H: I (BREER : 2210870  BREANBESZSERMREN S MIAEHESHUEKXARNBEZZSERMRENS
BFMREMIREE (BREER - 15408 7T) - MERSRMERE/AREEE (BREE - 1290877 - RPENSZREFE
HEBSBRELREBBNHS (EREER : 56087T) F -

TR ABEFDEMAREN L EHIRGIERE RIFNME - REBERIF R E R 38F T UHITSOERIF RBRIER - It
b REBRFEATREM S EEEESEES3INBNBENED  HREREEURETREE  REEE RERBAREEEZ |/
HAREMFEER BRHEMAEE - AHBRMRENHE EEREBEE  BEXHERMAREHZEE (EEE))  REEL
HBRMAAREYAETREREERESS - BEARIBEEHABUBNT ERBERENERZHRMIEARBNMIFRERS -



PolyU Financial Report 32 K BA753R & 2023/24

RESEARCH (CONT'D)

The University supported 23 Research Centres at University level and eight of them were newly supported in 2023/24 in
the areas of Urban Energy Nexus, Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Electric Vehicles, Privacy and Security Technologies,
Innovative Technologies for Chronic Musculoskeletal Pain, Non-invasive Brain Computer Interface, Organic Electronics, and
Urban Infrastructure Solutions.

The University also provided funding support in the year for the establishment of three Joint Research Centres/Laboratories
with partner institutions in mainland China under the Mainland/GBA Research Funding Scheme. Their respective foci are fiber
innovations and renewable materials, advanced and green composite materials, and genomics and synthetic biology in global
deep ocean resource. Three research centres, namely the Laboratory for Artificial Intelligence in Design, Centre for Advances
in Reliability and Safety, and Centre for Eye and Vision Research, set up by the University under two research clusters -
AIR@InnoHK and Health@InnoHK established by the HKSAR Government, have commenced full-scale operations since their
launch in 2021 and undertaken over 62 collaborative research and development projects with total funding of $160 million in
the third year including Research Talent Hub support. The University has provided continuous support for the development
of the state key laboratories, including the State Key Laboratory of Chemical Biology and Drug Discovery and the State Key
Laboratory of Ultra-precision Machining Technology. These laboratories have successfully managed more than $56 million in
ongoing research projects at the state or national level.

111 research projects submitted via the University or the University’'s Shenzhen Base have successfully secured about
RMB81.8 million (equivalent to HK$90 million) funding support from the Mainland government and other funding bodies in
the Mainland during the year. The funding bodies included the NSFC, the Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s
Republic of China, the Science and Technology Innovation Committee of Shenzhen Municipality, and the Department of Science
and Technology of Guangdong Province. The operation and infrastructure of Shenzhen Research Institute (SZRI) will be further
strengthened to support the research development in the Chinese Mainland.
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RESEARCH (CONT'D)

10 strategic research collaboration platforms with global leading industrial players, including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, Cainiao Group, China Power International Development Limited, Wisdom Motor (HK) Limited, Rhein Kdoster,
Shanghai Westwell Technology Co. Ltd., Hexagon Leica Geosystems (Qingdao) Co., Ltd., National Computing Centre (Shandong),
Axis Therapeutics and PanMediso Holdings (Shenzhen) Limited, were established in the year in areas such as financial
technology and blockchain, green logistics, electric vehicle, artificial intelligence and biomedicine. The University proactively
supported, co-hosted and participated in various global and GBA/Hong Kong's academic and knowledge transfer forums,
summits, conferences and symposiums. The University was the only Hong Kong educational institution to win the prestigious
Global Innovation Award at the Consumer Electronics Show in Las Vegas, USA and the “Outstanding Cases for FIND Intelligent
Technology Innovation and Application” at the World Intelligence Expo 2024 in Tianjin, China.

In order to expand its research facilities beyond the local campus and to make better use of its innovations for social benefits,
the University started to set up new platforms for translational research in the Mainland. With the funding and space support
from the local governments, as well as the expertise and resources committed by the local industries, the University has
signed agreements and memoranda of understanding with several local governments and institutions, including Wuxi,
Wenzhou, Jinjiang, Gongshu District (Hangzhou), Daya Bay (Huizhou), Gulou District (Nanjing), Zhongshan, Eastern Institute of
Technology, Ningbo, Guangming District (Shenzhen), Wuhan, Luyang District (Hefei), Xingguo County (Ganzhou), and Zibo, for
the establishment of a technology and innovation research institute at each of these cities. As of June 2024, the agreements
signed with Mainland local governments have amounted to not less than RMB750 million (equivalent to HK$806 million) for
five years.

To ensure the best possible support for research and innovation activities which are of growing importance, efforts have been
made to diversify the research fund portfolio. Currently, there are a wide variety of funding sources including RGC schemes,
government, strategic partners and donations.
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INVESTMENTS

Global markets stumbled in the third quarter of 2023 as investors anticipated a prolonged period of higher interest rates.
Nevertheless, central banks fueled the market rally since the end of 2023 as they embraced optimism that inflation could
decelerate without sacrificing growth. Despite inflation in the United States proving more persistent than expected, equity
markets continued to perform strongly in the first half of 2024 backed by expectations of an Artificial Intelligence-driven boost
to corporate profits coupled with interest rate cuts by the Federal Reserve. However, the global economy remains fragile and
substantial uncertainties arising from the US presidential election as well as elevated geopolitical tensions still persist. A
prudent approach with well-grounded diversification and risk management is of paramount importance for the University amid
the turbulent market situation.

Investments are generally exposed to various risks including interest rate, market, currency and credit risks. Guided by
sound governance and risk management principles, the University has adopted the investment strategies developed by the
Investment Committee, which are based on the Statement of Investment Policies and Guidelines (SIPG) approved by the
University Council. Asset allocation of the University’s investments has been appropriately managed, taking into consideration
the different cash flow and strategic development requirements of the University.

Both our investment strategies and management approach are prudent and well established. Apart from the traditional
portfolio construction model, the University has made use of other opportunities for investment diversification, with a view to
reducing the overall portfolio volatility and achieving more robust returns.
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INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

Funds of the University, excluding the UGC Hostel Development Fund (HDF), and major subsidiaries are pooled together for
effective investment management. As of 30 June 2024, 91% of the University's investments were in fixed income securities
(2022/23: 92%) and 9% were in equities (2022/23: 8%). Approximately 14% (2022/23: 8%) of the investible funds were
managed by external investment managers. The University and the Consolidated Entity recorded an Interest and Investment
Gain of $579 million (2022/23: $360 million) and $620 million (2022/23: $390 million) respectively for the year. The increase
was primarily attributable to increase in interest income from fixed income securities.

For the HDF, a significant one-off capital grant of $2,937 million has been separately managed in adherence to the University's
SIPG. However, investment return from the HDF is initially treated as deferred income until the assets are put into use and
the related income is recognised. An interest and investment gain of $81 million (2022/23: $103 million) was recognised as
deferred income of the HDF for the year ended 30 June 2024.
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CAPITAL PROGRAMMES

The University has been undertaking a series of campus development initiatives to create an environment conducive
to achieving its strategic goals in education and research excellence. In 2023/24, the University's total expenditure on
capital programmes was $481 million (2022/23: $377 million), of which $333 million (2022/23: $190 million) was on capital
development programmes, and $148 million (2022/23: $187 million) on alterations, additions and improvements projects.

Construction of the sixth floor of the Pao Yue-kong Library has been completed and the new floor was opened for use in July
2022. Revitalisation works from ground to fifth floors, including external areas, were completed in October 2023.

The campus expansion project at Ho Man Tin Slope comprises a student hostel providing over 1,200 hostel places and an
academic space of more than 10,000m? net operational floor area (NOFA) to meet the manpower training needs for allied
health services in Hong Kong. The piling, site formation and foundation works of both the hostel and the academic blocks
are being carried out and the whole project is targeted for completion by 2027. For the Kowloon Tong hostel project, which
will provide 1,680 hostel places, foundation and site formation works are now in full swing and the project is targeted for
completion by 2028.

EEEE

AREBFEETASRERENZIETE - MEE—ERMNNREE SBZFNN AR BIRNRIR - 2023/240FENEZERBRAX
#34.81187T (2022/23 : 3.77f85%) » EHRI3.33f8 5T (2022/23 : 1.9015T) ANERERIAR » HEFr91.48157T (2022/23 = 1.87(5T) A
REBERERAELRE -

BEAEEEER/VENTREEKET > WER2022F7 ARKER - tt TERZ (BFEEINEE) B TR ENR2023F107
SR, °

AIXARKNREREZERER SFE—RABE1,200EBUMNES » DAKREE10,000F 5 REFEEEEEBNRERE - DUkE
FEMSIERBRRBATHOER - BEEBINHBEERBREECETITE  HBTRERIMBETRE - BEEBTEN2027F
BT - ERNAEEREESIRE - ERINBTFRIRREZERRA - BEEE BRN2028F 5T » MiFHEHt1,680EE N -

13



14 PolyU Financial Report A B1 75345 2023/24

CAPITAL PROGRAMMES (CONT'D)

The redevelopment of the House of Innovation is underway, which will provide approximately 2,125m? of NOFA in additional
academic and amenity space once completed. This expansion aims to modernise the University's facilities and enhance
support for interdisciplinary research and development. Scheduled for completion by 2028, the project is expected to elevate
the academic experience for the PolyU community and foster greater innovation on campus.

To cater for the additional student intake to meet Hong Kong's long-term healthcare manpower needs, the site currently
occupied by the Michael Clinton Swimming Pool, Shaw Sports Complex, Shaw Amenities Building and Fong Shu Chuen
Hall will be redeveloped. Apart from making available an additional 27,460m? of NOFA for academic space, the project will
redevelop around 8,320m? of NOFA for existing facilities, and provide an additional 2,460m? of NOFA for indoor swimming
pool and hydrotherapy pool for teaching and research purposes. A welcoming vehicular entrance will also be constructed
to connect the PolyU campus to Chatham Road South. Subject to funding approval by the HKSAR Government in the second
quarter of 2025, the project is targeted to be completed by 2030.

An analysis of the University’'s capital programmes is provided in Figure 5.
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CAPITAL PROGRAMMES (CONT'D)
Hi2150H (8)

Capital Programmes Analysis E#218 B 24

2024 2023

HK$'m % HK$’'m %

Student Hostel at Ho Man Tin Slope fAIXABEES 50 10.3 35 9.3

Campus Expansion at Ho Man Tin Slope I X AR E#EEE & 21 VWA 37 9.8

Student Hostel at Kowloon Tong NEERETRS 228 47.4 43 1.4

Library Extension and Revitalisation EZERERITIEE 34 7.1 75 19.9
Ot:lig r(;?ipol;c]asl. Zg?j?triznmsTRe:piirs. and ngé%f f;; E

Improvements (AA&I) Projects = 148 30.8 187 49.6

481 100 377 100

Figure 5: Capital Programmes Analysis
Bf : EEZEB ST
@ 2023/2024 HK$481 million (4.81 f&5#7T)

2022/2023 HK$377 million (3.77 {£3%&7t)
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SELF-FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The University plays a crucial role in nurturing socially responsible professionals and leaders for Hong Kong, the Nation and
the world through creating quality holistic learning environment and exploring effective means of knowledge transfer. In
addition to the offering of self-financed taught postgraduate programmes and research postgraduate programmes leading to
master’s and doctoral degrees, the University has also engaged in a diversified range of self-financing activities including but
not limited to the operation of self-financed clinics and the provision of student hostel places. In 2023/24, the total income of
these self-financing activities amounted to $2,308 million (2022/23: $1,813 million), and total expenditure was $1,277 million
(2022/23: $1,004 million), resulting in a surplus of $1,031 million (2022/23: $809 million).

The increase in the total income of self-financing activities was mainly attributed to the tuition fee income generated from the
self-financed programmes amounted to $1,424 million (2022/23: $1,182 million) and investment gain of $358 million (2022/23:
$152 million). The tuition fee income of the self-financed programmes recorded a sustained growth of 20% (2022/23: 13%) in
2023/24. As an innovative world-class institution moving with the times, the University has launched a number of new taught
postgraduate programmes, covering areas such as artificial intelligence and big data computing, metaverse technology,
microelectronics technology and materials, sustainable technology for carbon neutrality, sustainability, and intelligent
construction.

To advance excellence in education worldwide and strengthen the “innovative” position of the University, the University will
embed innovation in the development of our self-financed programmes and explore new areas of study or activity to meet
social demands. At the same time, the University will continue to exercise due diligence in the financial management of self-
financing activities to maintain a stable non-UGC-funded income source for supporting the long-term strategic development of
the University.
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DONATIONS

With the elevated ranking of the University and the generous support of various individuals (including alumni), corporations,
charitable trusts and foundations, the University received cash donations totalling $273 million (2022/23: $235 million) during
the year, of which $46 million were contributed by subsidiaries (2022/23: $44 million). Additional matching grants of $63
million (2022/23: $60 million) were received for donations matched under the Research Matching Grant Scheme. From an
accrual accounting perspective, the University recognised donations and benefactions of $271 million (2022/23: $253 million)
as income in 2023/24, with an increase of 7% as compared with last year.

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Foundation (“PolyU Foundation”) has been long established to make strong networking
connections among alumni, friends and supporters who are ready to contribute to the University’s development. The
donations, which were well solicited and managed by PolyU Foundation, were mainly used to support the University's
initiatives in the development of education, research and knowledge transfer. As at 30 June 2024, the balances of the General
Donation Funds and Endowment Funds were $722 million (2022/23: $680 million) and $792 million (2022/23: $710 million)
respectively.

The University is immensely appreciative of all the donors for their generosity and long-standing support, which propel
the University to scale new heights in education and research. The University will continue to strengthen its fundraising
capabilities in order to secure a stable source of income for its long-term development and for making greater impact on the
society through its holistic education and advanced research.

An analysis of the University's donations is provided in Figure 6.
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DONATIONS (CONT'D)
188 (4E)

Donations Analysis 8B4 4T

2024 2023
HK$'m % HK$'m %
Donations for Research Activities REFiEENIEED 122 45.0 121 47.8
Scholarship, Bursaries, Prizes and Loan #22% « BiB% « BEREE 26 9.6 19 7.5
Capital Projects HZIEH 9 3.3 9 3.6
Others =K 14 42.1 104 AR
271 100 253 100
Figure 6: Donations Analysis
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the University is committed to increasing its investment in strategic areas while adopting prudent financial
management to sustain financial health. A number of new initiatives will be rolling out in the coming years to scale up its
teaching and research capabilities.

The Chief Executive's 2023 Policy Address announced a number of significant measures to support the development of Hong
Kong into an international hub for post-secondary education. These measures, including the relaxation of the cap imposed
on the non-local student population enrolled in UGC-funded undergraduate degree programmes from 20% to 40% of the
enrolled local student population, constitute a great new opportunity for the University's development. The University will
strengthen its efforts and admit more non-local students while maintaining or further enhancing the intake quality from
2024/25 academic year to benefit from this new measure. PolyU is also introducing the International PhD Fellowship Scheme
(IPFS) starting from the 2024/25 admission exercise to attract high-calibre foreign students to pursue full-time PhD studies.
These initiatives aim to enhance internationalisation and cultivate a diverse academic environment that fosters cross-cultural
collaboration and knowledge exchange.

The management has been diligently reviewing the academic organisation structure to match the needs of the society for
talents in the future as well as the future direction of the University. To meet the demand for talent and technology in the
Artificial Intelligence era, the University established the Department of Data Science and Artificial Intelligence as a constituent
academic department under the Faculty of Engineering with effect from 1 July 2024. A number of new Master's degree
programmes will be launched and existing programmes will be revamped from 2024/25 to cope with the evolving needs of
students and emerging trends in society.
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK (CONT'D)

PolyU is in the process of setting up a network of Mainland Translational Research Institutes. These research institutes
will align the University's research capabilities with the industrial and societal needs of the Mainland cities and
foster collaborations with local governments, enterprises and institutions. The University has already signed detailed
agreements with Hangzhou, Huizhou, Jinjiang, Nanjing, Wenzhou and Wuxi, to establish translational research institutes.
We have also signed MoUs with Hefei, Ningbo, Shenzhen (Guangming), Wuhan, Zhongshan and Zibo, to establish
the institutes.

With the University’s core strategic goals in mind, a series of redevelopment and expansion projects is underway by the
University to deliver a better experience for the community. In addition to the campus expansion at Homantin Slope and
Kowloon Tong Student Hostel project which are scheduled for completion in 2027 and 2028 respectively, projects for the
redevelopment of the House of Innovation and Blocks VA and VS have commenced and are in planning stages. The completion
of these projects would provide additional academic space to support the University's strategic development and meet Hong
Kong's long-term healthcare manpower needs.

The University has formulated a new Strategic Plan for 2025/26 to 2030/31 and submitted the Planning Exercise Proposal for
the 2025-28 triennium to the UGC in May 2024. The new Strategic Plan will take effect officially on 1 July 2025 and will guide
the University to scale new heights in the coming decade. With strong financial health, the University is well-positioned to
achieve its ambition as an innovative world-class university and make impactful contributions to Hong Kong, the Nation and
the world.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“the University”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Consolidated Entity”) set out on pages 27 to 138, which comprise the Consolidated and University
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the Consolidated and University income and expenditure statements, the
Consolidated and University statements of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and University statements of changes
in fund balances and the Consolidated and University statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Consolidated
Entity and the University as at 30 June 2024, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Consolidated Entity in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Council of the University is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Financial Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

21
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
(CONT’D)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE UNIVERSITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council of the University is responsible for assessing the Consolidated
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council of the University either intends to liquidate the Consolidated Entity or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council of the University is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the
Consolidated Entity’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 15 of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Consolidated Entity’s
internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
(CONT’D)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council of the University.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Consolidated Entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Consolidated Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 September 2024
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Iz BRTE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

PolyU Financial Report I A BA753R4& 2023/24

BE2024F6H30HLLFE
Note Consolidated 45& University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF&7caT) BEE 2024 2023 2024 2023
Income 'ON
Government Subventions BTN 3 4,809,429 4,507,067 4,737,926 4,438,690
Tuition and Other Fees BEREMGE 4 3,388,490 3,031,141 2,515,612 2,208,440
Interest and Investment Gain M EMIKE WS 5 620,251 389,738 579,481 360,235
Donations and Benefactions LY SESEN 6 229,913 211,451 271,395 252,642
Other Income HAUGA 7 1,002,879 865,592 627,713 570,475
10,050,962 9,004,989 8,732,127 7,830,482
Expenditure Bz 8
Teaching, Learning and Research B2 BERBM
Teaching and Research HEBRFIH 6,159,065 5,055,945 5,753,871 4,655,983
Library B 198,563 180,757 176,372 157,838
Central Computing Facilities FR o2 BB A ER it 192,096 182,126 140,331 144,013
Other Academic Services HAthZ B ARTS 336,173 309,865 319,591 290,037
Institutional Support HETIE
Management and General EER—HRIEE 437,285 416,313 345,729 325,351
Premises and Related Expenses Rk BRER 1,146,375 1,053,858 1,009,108 918,681
Student and General BAR—M
Education Services HERTS 506,728 439,502 442,021 389,793
Other Activities HAthEEN 386,884 340,558 10,281 7,023
9,363,169 7,978,924 8,197,304 6,888,719
Finance Costs BIT5E 6,991 6,409 6,857 6,320
9,370,160 7,985,333 8,204,161 6,895,039
Surplus from Operations SERMR 680,802 1,019,656 527,966 935,443
Share of Profits BIEEEAE]
of Joint Ventures 27 19 1,287 1,499 - -
Surplus before Taxation CR NP o 682,089 1,021,155 527,966 935,443
Income Tax FfS 9 (4,199) (1,816) (4,138) (1,816)
Surplus for the Year AEERR 677,890 1,019,339 523,828 933,627

The notes on pages 34 to 138 form part of the financial statements.

SUBNBILE 138 Z IR A SRR 2 —HbD ©
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EEESR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
#HZ202456A30HILFE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Surplus for the Year
1 e— Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year
Items that will not be reclassified
to Income and Expenditure Statement:
Remeasurement Gain of Defined
Benefit Retirement Schemes
Items that may be
reclassified subsequently to
Income and Expenditure Statement:
Exchange Differences on Translation
of Financial Statements of
Chinese Mainland Subsidiaries

2 «— Total Comprehensive Income

for the Year

Attributable to:

Consolidated Entity/University:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer (from)/to UGC Funds
Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income

for the Year

There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the other comprehensive income.

NEEMEEZERSIIAZRIELE

(AF#ETTA)

AEERR
FER
HittZmEikas
TEEFREE
W2 ARTERIIEE:
FRERMBRIRGTE
EMTENRER
Hi&mse
ENEEE
W% ARIERIRR:
HREBAKMEAS
BATSERREY
ERER

FER
BEEWS

BRE:
imeEg/RE:
BEES

PERER
Ht B &
FER
BERmES

Note Consolidated &

University K2

BfaE 2024 2023 2024 2023
677,890 1,019,339 523,828 933,627
13,482 1,351 13,482 1,351
1,173 (10,325) = -
14,655 (8,974) 13,482 1,351
692,545 1,010,365 537,310 934,978
10 (434,219) (344,986)  (398,781) (312,485)
11 (553,493) 19,101 (553,493) 19,101
12 1,680,257 1,336,250 1,489,584 1,228,362
692,545 1,010,365 537,310 934,978

0 Other Comprehensive Income for the Year includes items which represent changes in net assets/fund balances from transactions of the
University in its capacity as the fund holder. Examples are remeasurement gain or loss of defined benefit retirement schemes and exchange
differences on translation of operations of the Chinese Mainland Subsidiaries.

FEAEMEZAREREAZFAESRAEANRZMELENFEE/ESHRENETEIR - HIUREBFRAABENAENRENE

BHBEEANEASEFNEREE -

o For the Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, the portion of income with restricted use would be transferred from/(to) Restricted Funds,

while others would be transferred from/(to) UGC Funds and Other Funds.

AEEREERZTRFRFERENSNSEARNERTES  HthEEHANEREESREAMES -

The notes on pages 34 to 138 form part of the financial statements.

SN EEILE 38R ZME R A M I ERET 2 —Ab D °



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IS AR R

PolyU Financial Report I A BA753R4& 2023/24

2(?22;360}5]-];,0'\‘; 2024 Note Consolidated & University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAF3&7tET) BEE 2024 2023 2024 2023
Non-current Assets EREEE
Fixed Assets EEBE 17 4,993,198 4,651,576 4,821,657 4,508,229
Investments in Subsidiaries EAEZIRE 18 - - 149,091 126,288
Interests in Joint Ventures BEANTHER 19 37,654 35,986 - -
Non-current Financial Assets FEREFERBE 20 6,916,644 8,256,331 6,905,144 8,252,331
3 e— Accounts Receivable, Prepayments  FEURBEZR - FE{FERIE
and Other Receivables J ELfth FEUSFR 23 37,539 137,649 37,539 137,649
Employee Benefits Assets ETREAN&EE 27 837 816 837 816
11,985,872 13,082,358 11,914,268 13,025,313
Current Assets MENEE
Current Financial Assets MENEREE 21 4,677,647 2,778,865 4,677,647 2,778,865
Staff Loans HEBEEMR 22 8,680 9,940 8,680 9,940
Inventories =75 4,458 3,823 - -
3 e— Accounts Receivable, Prepayments  FEURBERR « FE{ERT
and Other Receivables T B At FELS R 23 1,330,520 926,796 1,281,263 890,933
Cash and Deposits with Banks RE RIRITERR 24 4,769,905 4,437,904 4,563,162 4,213,512
10,791,210 8,157,328 10,530,752 7,893,250
Current Liabilities mEaE
Bank Loan for On-lending HEYHHE
to Staff ZIRITERR 22 8,680 9,940 8,680 9,940
Loans and Borrowings B KREE 25 44,141 - 44,141 -
3 e— Accounts and Other Payables JE{TBRTR 26 1,914,186 1,354,158 2,816,740 2,116,123
Provision for Employee Benefits BT aflEE 27 422,028 366,755 330,313 281,051
4 — Deferred Income RFEUT N 28 1,703,718 1,196,875 1,602,906 1,085,975
Tax Payable [E{SFRIE 2,063 1,897 2,002 1,897
4,094,816 2,929,625 4,804,782 3,494,986
Net Current Assets BREEE 6,696,394 5,227,703 5,725,970 4,398,264
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #@ZBEHRRSHAE 18,682,266 18,310,061 17,640,238 17,423,577
Non-current Liabilities FREEE
Loans and Borrowings BERKEE 25 376,030 420,171 376,030 420,171
Accounts and Other Payables FE{TBRFR 26 3,888 4,833 3,159 2,208
Provision for Employee Benefits ETEFEE 27 329,925 347,168 327,238 342,392
Deferred Income IRIEUTA 28 2,769,787 3,295,225 2,765,493 3,295,225
3,479,630 4,067,397 3,471,920 4,059,996
5 e— Deferred Capital Funds BEEARES 29 3,575,156 3,307,729 3,575,156 3,307,729
Net Assets BEE 11,627,480 10,934,935 10,593,162 10,055,852
Representing HER
Restricted Funds BEEE 10 4,709,542 4,532,052 4,541,276 4,393,303
UGC Funds REFEE 1 1,423,290 1,877,042 1,423,290 1,877,042
Other Funds HinEE 12 5,494,648 4,525,841 4,628,596 3,785,507
Total pab:] 11,627,480 10,934,935 10,593,162 10,055,852

APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE COUNCIL ON 25 SEPTEMBER 2024

29

REEN2024F9 B 25 AHEEAFF P

Dr LAM Tai-fai, GBS, JP Ms Loretta FONG Wan-huen Professor Jin-Guang TENG, BBS, JP Mr Ken LAM Chee-ken

Chairman of Council Treasurer President Director of Finance
WAIEEL, GBS, JP FREXT eI HIE, BBS, JP MFRRTE
RESEFE GiJES RE B 5 488E

The notes on pages 34 to 138 form part of the financial statements.

SIBN B34 E 138 A Z I FE R AR SRR 2 — &P ©
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o As of 30 June 2024, Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other Receivables include Investment Proceeds Receivable of $197.2 million
(2023:Nil), while Accounts and Other Payables include Investment Proceeds Payable of $355.4 million (2023:Nil), as disclosed in notes 23 and
26 respectively. These Investment Proceeds Receivable/Payable arise from the unsettled securities transactions by external investment

managers of the University as at year end.

HZE2024F6A30A IE - FEUERTR  FRITRIRKR ELth FELR © IR & EURIRAY1.97218 7T (2023: &) » ME(T IR B 1EIRE BT RIRAY
3.554187T (2023: &) - HHEARIEC D RITIEMNKTEE23 /%26 - BLEIRE B/ B TRIAR AR RS ERNBIIRBEENFRE R EENES
RBELE -

o According to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
government grants are recognised as income during the year in which the related expenditure are spent. The University adopts HKAS 20 for the
accounting treatment of government grants in its financial statements. Balance of Deferred Income as at year end represents unspent portion

of grants and specific donations.

RIBEFEB SR (TEFHEER) 52058 - BUREBRABAHRENKE > BFERERNEREFEABIA - REIRBEETERIE2058EH
MIBRRELARNEEE - EFRIEERASKERNERR ST ERE -

o Following HKAS 20, government grants and specific donation spent for the purchase of fixed assets/capital expenditure are initially recorded
as Deferred Capital Funds and subsequently recognised as income in alignment with the depreciation charge of the related assets. The balance

in Deferred Capital Funds represents the net asset value of the grant supported assets.

5| REEtERIE205% c ANBEREEENEARIXNBITHERREERENHERHABEERES  THEAMNEREESFHNENT
BERDBIRA - FEL ) BEBAESEHRAENENEENFEEE -
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BERBLER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
HZ20245F6H30BIEFE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July 2022

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2023

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2024

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July 2022

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2023

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2024

(AF#B7at)
2022F7H 1 B 48R
FENEZERR
LaEn

2023%F6 A 30 B &tk
FENEZERR
LEEE

202456 A 30 B &84

(AF#E7Tat)
20225F7H 1B 464
FENEZERE
EEEH

20236 A 308 &4
FENEZERE
EEEE

202456 A30R 48R

The notes on pages 34 to 138 form part of the financial statements.

SIEN 34 E 5 138E Z I B AM I IRE 2 —AMD °

Consolidated &

Restricted Funds UGC Funds  Other Funds
(note 10) (note 11) (note 12) Total
BEEE: HESES HEE
(Ft3E10) (Bi=E11) (FzE12) HRET
4,247,323 1,930,237 3,747,010 9,924,570
(344,986) 19,101 1,336,250 1,010,365
629,715 (72,296) (557,419) =
4,532,052 1,877,042 4,525,841 10,934,935
(434,219) (553,493) 1,680,257 692,545
611,709 99,741 (711,450) =
4,709,542 1,423,290 5,494,648 11,627,480
University X2
Restricted Funds UGC Funds  Other Funds
(note 10) (note 11) (note 12) Total
BEEE HEEER Hh &
(BfzE£10) (Bit&E11) (Bit&E12) W85
4,120,235 1,930,237 3,070,402 9,120,874
(312,485) 19,101 1,228,362 934,978
585,553 (72,296) (513,257) =
4,393,303 1,877,042 3,785,507 10,055,852
(398,781) (553,493) 1,489,584 537,310
546,754 99,741 (646,495) =
4,541,276 1,423,290 4,628,596 10,593,162
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Do <1 —§
HERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
BE20245F6H30RILLFE
Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XF385TEH) Bt 5
Operating Activities EERE
Surplus before Taxation PRI AR ER
Adjustments for: N TIER :
Depreciation e 8.1
Finance Costs B EH
Interest Income FEUTA 5
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain BIERRAEIRN
on Investment Portfolio KREHEGFRES 5
Impairment Loss on B ASIRE
Investments in Subsidiaries NENIELE
Share of Profits of [EfLEE AT
Joint Ventures ]
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEESEZEIR
Grants transfer from HIRE
Deferred Capital Funds RIEEAREE 2R 29
Foreign Exchange Loss SMNEEE SR
Net Surplus before EESSEEH
Changes in Working Capital RE
Increase in Accounts Receivable, FEURBRFR ~ FRATTRIE
Prepayments and Other Receivables e ELAth FELRR Z 3N
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories FEZ18m/ G
Increase in Accounts and FETBRFRZ
Other Payables 180
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for BTEFEEZ
Employee Benefits 10/ G2
Increase in Employee Benefits Assets B TEFERE 23BN
Increase in Deferred Income IRIEUYT A Z 18 h0
Cash Generated from BEFREZ
Operations HWERA
Tax Paid BANEiAL
China Corporate Income Tax Paid X AT RS
Net Cash Generated from SIEEE
Operating Activities BEEMA

Consolidated &=& University K2

2024 2023 2024 2023
682,089 1,021,155 527,966 935,443
667,165 513,724 631,727 481,223
6,991 6,409 6,857 6,320
(472,391) (342,104) (428,348) (312,992)
(147,860) (47,634) (151,133) (47,243)
- - 41,842 23,127

(1,287) (1,499) - -
1,433 2,112 52 170
(546,357) (412,611)  (546,357)  (412,611)
5,054 12,925 4,256 12,924
194,837 752,477 86,862 686,361
(72,518)  (256,191) (60,036)  (253,110)
(635) 1,209 - -
135,484 103,933 276,646 169,446
51,512 (6,679) 47,590 (10,707)
(21) (29) (21) (29)
16,033 29,697 80,166 101,188
324,692 624,417 431,207 693,149
(4,033) (2,044) (4,033) (2,044)
320,659 622,373 427,174 691,105



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)

REREx (8)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
HZE20245F6H30BILFEE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Investing Activities
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets
Investment in a Subsidiary
New Loans to Staff
Loans Repaid by Staff

Net Cash (Paid)/Received
on Sale/Purchase of Equity
and Trading Securities

Proceeds from Sale
of Debt Securities
carried at amortised cost

Interest Received
Purchase of Debt Securities
carried at amortised cost

Net Increase in
Short-term Deposits with over
Three Months to Maturity
when Placed

Net Cash Used in
Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Subventions Received

Bank Loans Drawn Down for
On-lending to Staff

Repayment of Bank Loans for
On-lending to Staff

Capital Element of Lease
Rental Paid

Interest Element of Lease
Rental Paid
Net Cash Generated from
Financing Activities
Net Increase in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate
Changes

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at 1 July

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at 30 June
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Note Consolidated & University X2
(AF3E7Tat) BtsE 2024 2023 2024 2023
REEE
EEETEEE (933,934) (737,222) (869,122) (687,986)
B QS ZIRE - - (64,645) (6,000)
S FIEET (340) (120) (340) (120)
Y E EEE 1,600 2,510 1,600 2,510
BERANESZ
F(ES)/EWR
g (352,894) 2,672,543 (342,121) 2,676,153
E SR A
FTEMNEEE
Z 1S FRIE 2,074,257 764,913 2,074,257 764,913
EFIE 521,986 367,929 478,063 338,981
BEE IR EH A
FTEREEE (1,974,361) (3,344,520) (1,974,361) (3,344,520)
=ER%
El): o
GHATETX
RIS (144,986) (649,564) (145,311) (628,556)
REFE
BRERE (808,672) (923,531) (841,980) (884,625)
B EE
EURIER 698,413 720,657 640,074 657,296
EETHWEZ
RITER 340 120 340 120
BIEEETHME 2
BITEMNR (1,600) (2,510) (1,600) (2,510)
Eﬁ_‘jﬁ‘é%ﬁﬁ
RBEARE D (15,566) (19,453) (13,244) (17,143)
EffEEMRE
RIF) EEB D (312) (330) (178) (241)
MEEE
BEER/A 681,275 698,484 625,392 637,522
RERBEELEEM2
FRIEHN 193,262 397,326 210,586 444,002
EREE >
B (6,005) (10,439) (6,005) (10,439)
RERBEELEED2
FEWNiEE 2,007,842 1,620,955 1,860,581 1,427,018
RERBELEEM2
FERiEE 24 2,195,099 2,007,842 2,065,162 1,860,581

The notes on pages 34 to 138 form part of the financial statements.

SIEN 34 E 5 138E Z I B AM I IRE 2 —AMD °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 35 $R R B R

1.

Material Accounting Policies

EEEHR

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). These financial statements also comply with the Statement of Recommended
Practice for the UGC-funded Institutions (“SORP”) and Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-
funded activities (“CAGs”) issued by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong. Material accounting

policies adopted by the Consolidated Entity and the University are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Consolidated Entity and University. Note 1.3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the

Consolidated Entity and University for the current accounting period reflected in these financial statements.

AREN

FUBBRRBZREASHALE (SHALQE ) BHMABAN (FBMBREER) (TMHHRELEL)) (LREE
SRAERNMERNMBREER - (FREER) (TSR k28  REEAXREHRAUIMRABEEEL
288 (HES)) BHNBRESTEIRRNEZ LR B ESTERIFRE S ETINMA D BIES| (THA D #iE
Sl MREMRH - FEBRABNEESHBERMEEHIIANT -

ST AEERBZSIRNGSERRAZER ST AR B REME FIHHR R IR B RS ER R ERNETE - 1.3
JIERIGERAELEERMELNSHBRESEY » BLEEPERMEGRSERAZEMNSTTHBNMBRERD -
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Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024 comprise the University and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Consolidated Entity”) and the Consolidated Entity’s interests in joint ventures on the basis
set out in note 1.5. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
University, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Consolidated Entity obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Consolidated Entity are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

MR RAEREE

MEVBRREEABRABEHEAS (T 45881 )MA20245F6 B30H A4 E HNM SRR RIRIEH 15081
MEREBLHEEQARZERMAER - HEASNMBRREZABZHDREPHERRAEAZ —BNETBERER -
MEBASCXEEAEBNGHENEZ BEGEAR  ZAMZHERILEZAL - FIAEERASRZEE  8fF
BitEm - MRBEBARBME AT ZERZHKA - AXRREME » INGEEREAZBUES -

FRTIXEHBERARERBESIN  FHBHRRIUBLHAEREREE - REBMEN » AMBRERUEBES
FAERENERANETERIZOT - RRZSTEVHRSENNUZRRFZECERBFELAIG G5t RER -
Mz EHE - AT RBREFZERRNEARMARNEE - 8F  WARFAXHNEE - ZFETRERRRIHRE
BREERBREREAMEZENELTESENEREMEL  MSERNAEEEMAREREMENRRSNNEER
BEREEMELHBNER - BERERNSARINZE MG -

ZEMFTRIEARREWTESST - USHEFTTNET RS EFHZBETNERE - BIARETRENZE™

o MEEEHRNEEEME - AIFRET SN SR AZEARER -
FRABEENRERVHERESZFMEFHEAMBREAEAZENHER G 2 A EEMN EZRIR - SN
356 o
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o The University has a total of 9 directly held principal subsidiaries which can be broadly classified into four types according to their
principal activities as follows:
ABEEFENETEREAS > SEMEASTIRTERHF AN, AU T :

Principal Activity Subsidiaries

FEE MRS

(i)  Education College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited
BB BERFGBAE2RBMRAE

Hong Kong Community College

BEH LB
(i)  Research PolyU Research Limited
R BARABRAE

PolyU Translational Research Institutes Limited
BREBEMERERAT

FRE TR RYIFAFE

(iii)  Intra-group support Campus Facilities Management Company Limited
RERAESE REZEEERRAT

(iv) Others Hotel ICON Limited
=g} HEERRAS

PolyU Technology and Consultancy Co. Limited
AR REMARAS

PolyU Enterprise Plus Limited
B AERBRAT

For the preparation of consolidated financial statements, the income and expenditure of subsidiaries with principal activities as
education, research and intra-group support are consolidated to the respective income and expenditure lines following the
University's accounting practice. For other subsidiaries under (iv) above which are auxiliary operations to the University, their income
is consolidated to Other Income, whereas expenditure is consolidated to the corresponding lines (mainly Management and General,
Premises and Related Expenses and Other Activities) under Institutional Support. Expenditure of the University relating to cost of

operation of the subsidiaries concerned is classified under Other Activities.

Total income and expenditure of the subsidiaries for the year are $1,733.3 million (2023: $1,568.6 million) and $1,620.5 million (2023:
$1,504.7 million) respectively.

REFIRESMIBRE - BB MM RGESENRXESSEEZXBTNNBASNKRARRAXERABNET A KRETAMT
BRERPOOERRANRXIER - MEFEA (v) WEMNBAS  ARERBAARBNEET » HRARRBXEHRET AR
AURBEXETHRXIAR (EEREER—MRIRE - RERBAMBAXNEMED) - ELWBEAINEERX IRERAREH
ftt’EENRIFRSZIRE -

AEE > HBASIEA RS S BIZA17.333(8 7T (2023 : 15.686157T) & 16.205{8 7T (2023 : 15.047{87T) °
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Consolidated Entity and the University.

None of the developments have had a material effect on how the Consolidated Entity and the University's results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Consolidated Entity and the
University have not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Bt BRI EE)
FRGHRIAE R T SIRMBRSERNETT > RESERABNAETHEEEREN -

BEETHEEERABRAEERBEFEMFEHNZIINEERERMBOINRLRBEATE - KEERKRKEL
ARRIHRAEDTNA G FREEARERZ T LERNERE -
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Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Consolidated Entity. The Consolidated Entity controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Consolidated Entity has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Consolidated Entity and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Consolidated Entity loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in Income and Expenditure Statement. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1.6) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 1.5).

In the University's Statement of Financial Position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1.11.2), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Bt 2 J

MEASRIEMERIEHNZE
EAREZELOR - BIRRZ
MEEEESD -

AEERNBEATNREAEHRGEAMEERERABAL  MEREUFRERPESTE - KREBAIEIRNG
B REBERBERE > UMRRESEABISMEENABER G  IIERRGEEUHREGZEUEN - RGEER
B 5 AL MR B IREIRAVIRSH S ZRABIRIEAER » EIEHENRARBETRERERR

ERGBRREWBASINZGIE  FULEZRZMB LS AR - BHERRIBHEDERQREHIREK - ERE
?‘%HExHUBﬁE"T?’“%M&HEﬁﬁﬁ BN AEZRIM AR EEER  MBERELAEHEERVEINAREER
BiE1.6)E - WA E > WIRARDERIRENBMEQ TN S EQSHIMA (RHIFELE) -

ERBNMBRARERT  BEEAKFLEEESNEREARFHENLEERNI > MEAS ZIREZMUEAN
PRRERIRETIER (RIEE1.11.2) -

B AERAESHZEENEEMESUARZAETENOR > LeERENZEREN
BERERGRAERET - LGRS RESTAENE  AEEEARSEREMSZHMEE
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Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Consolidated Entity or the University and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Consolidated Entity’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of investment (if any). The cost
of investment includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the joint venture that forms part of the Consolidated Entity’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Consolidated Entity’s share of the investee's net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 1.11). At each reporting date, the Consolidated Entity assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Consolidated Entity's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement, whereas the Consolidated Entity’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

When the Consolidated Entity’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Consolidated Entity’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Consolidated Entity has
incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Consolidated
Entity's interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Consolidated
Entity’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the Consolidated Entity’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Consolidated Entity and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Consolidated Entity’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in the Income and
Expenditure Statement.

o)

al

AT

=
BEARDN—RRH > BUGAEEIABRAMESESHN LARSEZATHZEHE  REFZRRIFEELZ
R o

BEQFZREGGREMBRRERERSHEAR  BRIFZRERESKHFLE REERBREAKFELENHES
Bl) - MBEDEE  REFTURANE &E)L?m:.E—Fﬁﬁi%&iﬁiﬁ%?ﬂiﬁ%aTEBU%%F“%E@WE&EE%&
ANA) WEEFLREE - REJABSEBEER  ERFRNZIRENEMAES » URIBHASERRERE—
HNHESEASNEAERRE - BEMGSEREBONKRET FEEERBEAN “E?J&ﬁﬁ%ﬁhﬁﬁ’]ﬂiﬁ@ﬂafﬁtﬂ:ﬁ”
(RBE11) - ?%AE—E"’QﬂﬁlﬁﬁiEuﬂﬁxsﬁﬁ?'ﬂféﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁ}xéE/J'J'ME HAEKRERBLEAANESE - TR
ABREBORIREENRBEERFREFEUNRTARNEBERNDRGS I RIBERES - MASEEBERREEEME
EW AR ER R FRIRAIE B TR S EE IR @R A RS

EREEASEATNEBEBRERAEBGED  MERNEZRNEES  RIFRSEANKZRIREERIEELR
FHEEEFABAR > FUFSE-SHERBIR - FIULMS > %ﬁAﬁaﬁﬁﬁ?&&ﬁ%E‘]’ffé » OiRiE R AT BRI
BIREE - MRERBRGEENZEEQS CRBED  AFREZ

FERESENSETRSMELANAREIRER - DIRGESENRMGHIREENERIERIRS ; BHEREIRERE
TEEREENIRNE  SLERBEREBRASEISEWRS RIS -
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Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Consolidated Entity’s and the University’'s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are as follows:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Consolidated Entity or the University’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Consolidated Entity or the
University has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Consolidated Entity or the University initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

HitnfEH RN EFIRE
PREAS REEABRRES)  KERRARBNEBRBRAZFIREBRUT :

IR TEZ R 5t B
TRl EE YIRS D B AN EHA AR R ETERM AT EEECHARRFRETEZMERR -

EMEENVRERFZOBIAREMEEZLSVRESMEMAGREEIARBEEZSEMEEZEBHER - [FF
BEAMEMDUGGERIAARBZEBRBEEL ZANHABEARMER NP EZBRIRMRI  KEEAABNENEE
DREERATFEEN L (HERMEETIFHRAFEEFART) XBFWAE

HEETHEERBHNALREESRATFEETARMEEARTETOERE - EREENKEES MR
FEERFE (TSPPI)) 2IREHRE »
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Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (Cont'd)

The Consolidated Entity or the University’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Consolidated Entity or the
University commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt securities)
Debt securities held for the collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective interest method.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in fixed income securities that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost and equity securities are
classified as fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). Changes in the fair value of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement.

HiEERRARSRE (H)

GAEIASEESNEE Y EBEXEHNNERSHEENELRSRB YA - EHEXEERSTELEER
HRISHRSHE  HESHEENARERENAL - REERASHEENKRANRSREBOEBER T
B SMEE  REERASERIE  REESAMUKNAVNESRER I ESHEE Y EHEXTRA Y SHE
B BATEEH AR ERES BRI E - DER EREBERTRE 2 SHEE  DRATEEIAERSE
REtE -

BEN L ESHEEREETISRIREAELRTNERANEE » TRZS A ESER AR REEE N
SRR O ) B -
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SHEEZHEHBIVARESE  AHSENT
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AFPREHAABH B2 SHAE
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Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Consolidated Entity’'s consolidated statement of financial position or the
University's statement of financial position) when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« the Consolidated Entity or the University has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Consolidated Entity or the University has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Consolidated Entity or the University has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Consolidated Entity or the University has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Consolidated Entity or the University continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Consolidated Entity or the University's continuing involvement. In that case, the Consolidated
Entity or the University also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Consolidated Entity or the University has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Consolidated Entity or the
University could be required to repay.

HEitfRIERERAEFIRE ()
THEZLHEE

EHMEE (FNEBER > SHEEET MO —ARUZEREEEF D) XA FIIER TABER BIRtES
BRARBZGREMHERRNRBR)

- BZBEERIUASREZENERN ;5 3L

c RERIAPCERERIKREZEERTNE ZHEF > NERE "i?iLJ ZHMEE=EREEERENBER
BIREMBABMBEAILR ; K(a) SRERIABZEEEZEEZ AT IRARKRER - 5(b) FEERUANBRERNR
BZBEEZ AR RERRER  EEEEZEE ZEHHE

HEMEBIAPEEREBEERIRTREZETN  FEATUBERH  HMLEASREBZEEMAEZRR
KB > MRERBZERARRLORREE - HETREBRNFEEECAMOEARKOE > MNREREE ZZH#E
ZIERT > AGERNABRENEFESUZCEREECRERRERZEE - ®&ERT » REEIASZINHE
WiEFERE - EEREERERAENRRMGEEIAZEREENR BB ZEETE -

MEERBEFLEREAZFES Y RREEEZRARAERGEREIAZHIREMNCEZ LREFZBREE

5 -

o Investments in dated debt securities due within one year and securities held for trading are classified as Current Financial Assets

(note 21) while dated debt securities with maturity over one year are classified as Non-current Financial Assets (note 20) in the
Statement of Financial Position.

BB RRRA > R—FRIPNEREBESRENFFEENESRERGFEARDERMEE (5E21) » MEB—FERZIE
FREBESREFEAIFRBDENEE (FEE20) -
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Fixed Assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1.11.2).

The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

* Buildings
Building Structures situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of completion.

Building Services Installation are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of completion where the assets are situated.

Fixtures are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 5 years after the date of completion.

» Furniture, Equipment & Fittings 3-10 Years

 Library Collections 5 Years

» Other properties leased for own use Over the unexpired term of lease
EEEENRITE

PREZTIRESN > BEBESREANNRBITE R EBIRIIR(EHEN11.2) -
BENABEEABEBRIAEEEFTELERTIRMBNEERNERER - SEETEECDRALER - HFEXW
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Fixed Assets and depreciation (Cont'd)

Leasehold land granted by the Governments of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) and the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") for usage by the Consolidated Entity and University is recorded at a nominal amount.

Where parts of a fixed asset item have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other equipment under construction and is stated at cost less any
impairment losses (see note 1.11.2), and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when completed and ready for use.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Consolidated Entity and University assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease components(s), the Consolidated Entity and University
have elected not to separate non-lease components and accounts for each lease components and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease components for all leases.

BEEEERFTE (&)
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1.8 Leases (Cont'd)
1.8.1 Right-of-use Asset

At the lease commencement date, the Consolidated Entity and University recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Consolidated Entity and University enter into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Consolidated Entity and University decide whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1.7 and 1.11.2).
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1.8 Leases (Cont'd)

1.8.2

Lease liability

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to Income and Expenditure Statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
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Fair value measurement

The Consolidated Entity or the University measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Consolidated Entity or the University.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Consolidated Entity or the University uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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1.10

1.10

Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Consolidated
Entity or the University determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, accounts and other payables, and other monetary liabilities. They are
initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, they are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or cancelled,
or expires.
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1.11  Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets
1.11.1  Credit losses from financial instruments

The Consolidated Entity and University recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on debt
securities, cash and deposits with banks, accounts receivable, prepayments and other receivables and staff
loans measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including fixed income securities and equities securities and funds
measured at FVPL, are not subject to ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Consolidated Entity and
University in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Consolidated Entity and University
expect to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the effect of discounting

is material:

- Fixed-rate financial assets, accounts receivable, prepayments and other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- Variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Consolidated Entity and University are exposed to credit risk.
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1.11 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.11.1

Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont'd)

In measuring ECLs, the Consolidated Entity and University take into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

For staff loans and accounts receivable, prepayments and other receivables measured at amortised cost, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which are those losses that are expected to
occur over the expected life of the staff loans, accounts receivable, prepayments and other receivables.

For all other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the Consolidated Entity and University
recognise a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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1.11 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.11.1

Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont'd)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Consolidated Entity and University compare the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Consolidated Entity and University consider that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Consolidated Entity and University in full, without recourse by the Consolidated
Entity and University to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Consolidated Entity and University consider both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

- Failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

- An actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

- Existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Consolidated Entity and
University.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.
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1.11 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.11.1

Credit losses from financial instruments (Cont'd)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in Income and
Expenditure Statement. The Consolidated Entity and University recognise an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

ECLs on accounts receivable, prepayments and other receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors or financial instrument and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Consolidated Entity and University
determine that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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1.11 Credit Losses and Impairment of Assets (Cont'd)

1.11.2

Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

(@) Fixed Assets; and

(b) Investments in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures in the University’s Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A
portion of the carrying amount of a University asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-generating units
if otherwise.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to the Income and Expenditure Statement in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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(IA(S

1.12

1.13

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related income is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Consolidated Entity and University have an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are initially measured at their transaction price, and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1.11.1).
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Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Consolidated Entity and University accounting policy for borrowing costs.
Accounts and Other Payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Consolidated
Entity and University recognise the related income (see note 1.21). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Consolidated Entity and University have an unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Consolidated Entity and University recognise the related income. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also
be recognised (see note 1.13).

stBER

FFEEFIRADEBEINBERRZMAETE - IIRERE > stRERBEBRANRFIREHM AT E - A ERARE
:T\ gﬂ&qu1 EEZ’K +M5ﬁﬁ€nru\°

FEATERER

FETERFRSTIR A R EEMER » ERARIEBIHMATIER - EMRTEUAERXN - BIRIESIREZZEHIEE -

BHAR

EEFNGEERABHEDEABANSZA R RENNER > ERENEERMEE21) - MRS RABERES
HERAWAZAD ﬁm&ﬂ"#&ﬂi*? REAENVEN > THBSNEE - EERBERT  AENERIRETRBRER(R
Fi5E1.13) ©

55



56 PolyU Financial Report B A8 #5384 2023/24

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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1.18 Employee Benefits

1.18.1

1.18.2

1.18 BIEF

1.18.1

1.18.2

Short-term Employee Benefits and Contributions to Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowance, contract gratuity and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes, including Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the Income and
Expenditure Statement as incurred.

Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Obligations

The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement schemes is
calculated separately for each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets is deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Consolidated Entity and
University, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the scheme or reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
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1.18 Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

1.18.2

1.18.3

Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Obligations (Cont'd)

Service cost and net interest expense/income on the net defined benefit liability/asset are recognised in the
Income and Expenditure Statement. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a
scheme are changed, or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in the Income and Expenditure
Statement at the earlier of when the scheme amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/income for the period is determined by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting
period to the net defined benefit liability/asset. The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period
on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Consolidated Entity’s
and University's obligations. Since there are limited issues of high quality corporate bonds in Hong Kong
Dollar, the yields of Exchange Fund Notes and Government Bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollar are used
as a reference to set the discount rate.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement schemes are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on scheme assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset).

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Consolidated Entity and University can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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1.20
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Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax which is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Consolidated Entity or the University has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Income Recognition

Income arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the Consolidated Entity’s and
University’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Consolidated Entity’s and University's business.

Income is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right
to use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Consolidated Entity and University are expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Income excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1.21 Income Recognition (Cont'd)

90— 1.21.1

1.21.2

Government Subventions

Recurrent grants other than earmarked grants for specific purposes are recognised as income to the
extent of the related expenditure incurred plus any such grants, which are received in excess of the related
expenditure incurred but are required to be transferred to General and Development Reserve Fund and
Research Funds in the reporting period in accordance with prevailing UGC guidelines.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes and matching grants under Research Matching Grant Scheme are
recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during the reporting period.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for specific purpose spent on capital expenditure are initially
recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the related assets
when the assets are put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Government grants in the form of leasehold land are recognised as income at a nominal amount.

Matching grants not under Research Matching Grant Scheme are recognised as income when the grants
have been received or are receivable from the UGC. Other government subventions are initially recognised
as Deferred Income when they are received, and are recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.

Tuition and Other Fees

Tuition and other fees are recognised on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses. Unearned tuition
fees are treated as contract liabilities.

1.21 IR ARER (&)

90— 1.21.1

1.21.2

BUFHERR

MRIEERENEERMRI  EREERNREPANERAS - RIRBEBESNIES| > SRAXMERE—
iR ERFEBEESRMAE SN ERIERITHERSIRA -

RIEE RN ERR R R IR EE S THRHENE - SEERRAXEERFERSIA -

RAREAFXNESEERREERRNEECHDHELEELEE - TENEEERR - SRETHERE
A AR EE AR ESR -

B E Tt XN BUHER A S B EERER SR -

MR R MBS BN HAES BN B EHEN R BKIERL TR - ME B BRI TR AT
ER VDM RD A IR A R FEAR B A ST B AL B A U

BERHEMER
BEREMBRARNREFEHA MBI ERER - MABRBBERENREIER -

o Apart from following the HKFRSs, the University is also required to observe UGC Notes on Procedures governing the use of respective

grants and treatment for any excess/shortfall of grants over expenditure. In accordance with such prevailing guidelines, surplus

Block Grants and Supplementary Grants/Adjustments received from UGC but not yet spent at the year end date are transferred to the

General and Development Reserve Fund (included in UGC Funds (note 11)). Any surplus of Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes

can only be carried forward after approval is received from UGC.
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Income Recognition (Cont'd)

1.21.3

1.21.4

1.21.5

1.21.3

1.21.4

1.21.5

Interest Income and Investment Gain

Interest income from the investment of unspent Hostel Development Funds are initially recognised as
Deferred Income as it accrues. It is recorded as Deferred Capital Funds when spent on capital expenditure and
recognised as income over the useful lives of the related assets when the assets are put into use, to the extent
of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Other interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. The fair value of financial assets carried at FVPL are remeasured at the end of
the reporting period and recognised as investment gain or loss.

Donations

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments for general purposes are recognised
as income when it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash.

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments for specific purposes are initially
recognised as Deferred Income when received. They are recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.

Donations of fixed assets are recognised as income in the period when the depreciation of related fixed assets
is charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement.

Service Income

Service income including income from hotel operations is recognised at the time when the relevant services
are rendered.
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1.21

1.22

1.21

1.22

Income Recognition (Cont'd)

1.21.6

1.21.7

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement in
equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Sales Income

Income is recognised when the customer takes possession of and accepts the products. If the products are a
partial fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount of income recognised is
an appropriate proportion of the total transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Research Expenditure

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and

understanding, is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Transaction date is the date on which the Consolidated
Entity or University initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. The assets and liabilities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and accumulated in Fund Balances.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in Fund Balances
which relate to that foreign operation is reclassified from Fund Balances to the Income and Expenditure Statement when
gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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1.24 Related Parties

1.24

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Consolidated Entity or University if that

person:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Consolidated Entity or University;
has significant influence over the Consolidated Entity or University; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity or University.

(b) Anentity is related to the Consolidated Entity or University if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Consolidated Entity or University are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Consolidated Entity or
University or an entity related to the Consolidated Entity or University.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to
the Consolidated Entity or University.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment

D EBRARAE

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the UGC SORP and are not designed to fully comply
with the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating Segments.

In accordance with SORP, the University discloses an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by its reported segments
that are defined by source of funding, namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-UGC-funded Activities.

In fulfilment of its missions, the University engages in activities funded by various sources. The University has been in
compliance with the requirement as stipulated in the UGC’s Notes on Procedures that there should be no cross-subsidisation of
UGC resources to non-UGC-funded activities.

The University's cost allocation methodology is as follows:

Academic assignments are allocated among staff members according to their expertise under a total workload concept.
Workload plan of individual academic staff is prepared, collected and validated as the basis for allocating academic staff cost
to different institutional activities and funding sources. In addition, the cost of visiting lecturers and full-time staff on extra
workload basis is charged directly to the self-financed programmes.

Most buildings on the main campus of the University are for mixed uses. The premises and related cost, including building
depreciation, is allocated to various institutional activities and funding sources by room booking information for bookable
premises such as classroom, or by various appropriate cost drivers for non-bookable premises such as student amenities space
and office space.

Except for the non-staffing cost directly attributable to research projects and self-financed programmes, all other non-academic
staff cost and non-staffing cost incurred by academic departments and the cost of the overseeing faculty office are allocated
to academic departments and further to institutional activities and various funding sources by appropriate and relevant cost
drivers.
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2.  Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

2 BBRARBX ()

The central cost is assigned to academic departments by various cost drivers according to the nature of the central administrative
departments and further allocated to different institutional activities and funding sources by the proportion of the total cost
incurred by academic departments.

Below is the classification of reported segments in accordance with UGC CAGs:
(a) UGC-funded Activities

UGC-funded Activities include programmes and research projects supported by UGC grants. UGC grants represent the
major funding source of the University and the core roles of the University are to support the UGC-funded activities.

According to the UGC CAGs, certain activities with non-UGC funding sources, e.g. projects funded by government
bureaux which complement teaching, research and student activities for the benefit of UGC-funded students and/or
enhancement of UGC-funded programmes, can be deemed to be UGC-funded activities. As such, income and expenditure
for these deemed UGC-funded activities are also reported as UGC-funded Activities in the segment reporting.

(b) Non-UGC-funded Activities

Non-UGC-funded Activities, excluding those deemed UGC-funded activities, represent other activities funded by sources
other than UGC, including self-financed funds and donations.
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2.  Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

2 EBUBRARBX ()

2.1 Consolidated Income and Expenditure by Segment

£y B 6

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
10 &— Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and

Related Expenses

Student and General
Education Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus from Operations
Share of Profits of Joint Ventures

(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds
Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year
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2024
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
FRABEEED
UGC-Funded Self-financing Donation
Activities Activities  Activities Sub-total Total
 BEE  BEEE  FEER

E=EUDEED) JEEN EEN Vat 45
4,737,926 71,503 = 71,503 4,809,429
1,054,700 2,333,790 - 2333790 3,388,490
140,855 398,316 81,080 479,396 620,251
= 4,836 225,077 229,913 229,913

137,599 864,784 496 865,280 1,002,879
6,071,080 3,673,229 306,653 3,979,882 10,050,962
4,746,516 1,239,385 173,164 1,412,549 6,159,065
139,666 58,693 204 58,897 198,563
120,896 71,200 = 71,200 192,096
294,339 38,073 3,761 41,834 336,173
275,112 161,821 352 162,173 437,285
882,568 246,293 17,514 263,807 1,146,375
241,314 231,418 33,996 265,414 506,728
- 386,884 - 386,884 386,884
6,700,411 2,433,767 228,991 2,662,758 9,363,169
143 6,848 - 6,848 6,991
6,700,554 2,440,615 228,991 2,669,606 9,370,160
(629,474) 1,232,614 77,662 1,310,276 680,802
= 1,287 = 1,287 1,287
(629,474) 1,233,901 77,662 1,311,563 682,089
= (4,199) = (4,199) (4,199)
(629,474) 1,229,702 77,662 1,307,364 677,890
11,765 2,890 - 2,890 14,655
(617,709) 1,232,592 77,662 1,310,254 692,545
(75,079) (221,392) (137,748) (359,140) (434,219)
(553,493) - - - (553,493)
10,863 1,453,984 215,410 1,669,394 1,680,257
(617,709) 1,232,592 77,662 1,310,254 692,545

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments.

For details, please refer to note 3.
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2.  Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

2 BBRARBX ()

2.1 Consolidated Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

HFEiRS BT (8)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
10 &— Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and

Related Expenses

Student and General
Education Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

Surplus from Operations
Share of Profits of Joint Ventures
Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax
Surplus for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer to UGC Funds
Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year
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2023
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
FRESENTEE
UGC-Funded  Selffinancing Donation
Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total
_BE®  OEBE  FABER

EBNEH L] EED /NET #5
4,438,690 68,377 - 68,377 4,507,067
996,148 2,034,993 - 2,034,993 3,031,141
141,672 181,635 66,431 248,066 389,738
- 2,669 208,782 211,451 211,451

120,360 743,634 1,598 745,232 865,592
5,696,870 3,031,308 276,811 3,308,119 9,004,989
3,865,655 1,025,658 164,632 1,190,290 5,055,945
134,871 45,720 166 45,886 180,757
127,162 54,964 - 54,964 182,126
267,313 40,081 2,471 42,552 309,865
261,233 154,683 397 155,080 416,313
797,274 238,799 17,785 256,584 1,053,858
224,167 185,900 29,435 215,335 439,502
- 340,558 - 340,558 340,558
5,677,675 2,086,363 214,886 2,301,249 7,978,924
164 6,245 - 6,245 6,409
5,677,839 2,092,608 214,886 2,307,494 7,985,333
19,031 938,700 61,925 1,000,625 1,019,656

- 1,499 - 1,499 1,499

19,031 940,199 61,925 1,002,124 1,021,155
- (1,816) - (1,816) (1,816)

19,031 938,383 61,925 1,000,308 1,019,339
1,174 (10,148) - (10,148) (8,974)
20,205 928,235 61,925 990,160 1,010,365
(13,877) (209,478) (121,631) (331,109) (344,986)
19,101 - - - 19,101
14,981 1,137,713 183,556 1,321,269 1,336,250
20,205 928,235 61,925 990,160 1,010,365

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments.

For details, please refer to note 3.

HESEMFINBRENEERESREMBITEBFINED - ARFE  F2RMEES -



2.  Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

2 EBUBRARBX ()

2.2 University Income and Expenditure by Segment

REHEUZ

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
10 &— Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General

Premises and
Related Expenses

Student and General
Education Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds
Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(XF3E7TEt)
A
BURHERR
BERAMER
BB WS
BB RIBR

HAKA

F3Z

HE  BERM
HERFIR
EE 8
FRR BRI
HAth 2R

HEE
EER—AIER

s

=K
AR
BE R
BERT
HAthEE)

FAT5E R

BT RI(ES1R) /B8R
Fr{SHR
AEE(EHE)/ B
FER
Hith 2 EURE
F£ER
HAEmEYrs
SRER:
BEES
HETES
HitE %

FEA
BEERES
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2024
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
FRESETE
UGC-Funded  Selffinancing Donation
Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total
 BEE  HEEE  FEBER

EEEED TGED JEEN Nt 5t
4,737,926 - - - 4,737,926
1,054,700 1,460,912 - 1,460,912 2,515,612
140,855 357,546 81,080 438,626 579,481

- - 271,395 271,395 271,395

137,599 489,618 496 490,114 627,713
6,071,080 2,308,076 352,971 2,661,047 8,732,127
4,746,516 834,191 173,164 1,007,355 5,753,871
139,666 36,502 204 36,706 176,372
120,896 19,435 - 19,435 140,331
294,339 21,491 3,761 25,252 319,591
275,112 70,265 352 70,617 345,729
882,568 109,026 17,514 126,540 1,009,108
241,314 166,711 33,996 200,707 442,021

- 10,281 - 10,281 10,281
6,700,411 1,267,902 228,991 1,496,893 8,197,304
143 6,714 - 6,714 6,857
6,700,554 1,274,616 228,991 1,503,607 8,204,161
(629,474) 1,033,460 123,980 1,157,440 527,966
- (4,138) - (4,138) (4,138)
(629,474) 1,029,322 123,980 1,153,302 523,828
11,765 1,717 - 1,717 13,482
(617,709) 1,031,039 123,980 1,155,019 537,310
(75,079) (185,954) (137,748) (323,702) (398,781)
(553,493) - - - (553,493)
10,863 1,216,993 261,728 1,478,721 1,489,584
(617,709) 1,031,039 123,980 1,155,019 537,310

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments.

For details, please refer to note 3.

PESEFHINBRE BIERESREMBIFHFINED - ARFE > F2

RIFIEES
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2.  Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

2 BBRARBX ()

2.2 University Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont'd)

AESE (F)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
Government Subventions
0 ._Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure
Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services
Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and
Related Expenses
Student and General
Education Services
Other Activities

Finance Costs

Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax
Surplus for the Year
Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer to UGC Funds
Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(AF#ETTA)
WA
BUFHEERR

BERHEMER
FEMRE W

LSS SR

EAUTA

53

2 BRRMHR

B2 R
BT

MR R EB LR
HAth 22 R

BEXIE

B Rk—ARIER

RER
AR
BAR—MR
LER

Hith75E)

MBEER

PRI AT E R
PSR
AEERR
FERN
Hftt 2 E R

FER
BEmRss

BB
BEES
HESEE
HitnBE

FER
BEmEE

2023
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
FFRESENEE

UGC-Funded  Self-financing Donation
Activities Activities Activities  Sub-total Total

_BEE  BEEE  FAEER
BENEEN EEN EEN INEt “REt
4,438,690 = = = 4,438,690
996,148 1,212,292 = 1,212,292 2,208,440
141,672 152,132 66,431 218,563 360,235
= = 252,642 252,642 252,642
120,360 448,517 1,598 450,115 570,475
5,696,870 1,812,941 320,671 2,133,612 7,830,482
3,865,655 625,696 164,632 790,328 4,655,983
134,871 22,801 166 22,967 157,838
127,162 16,851 = 16,851 144,013
267,313 20,253 2,471 22,724 290,037
261,233 63,721 397 64,118 325,351
797,274 103,622 17,785 121,407 918,681
224,167 136,191 29,435 165,626 389,793
- 7,023 - 7,023 7,023
5,677,675 996,158 214,886 1,211,044 6,888,719
164 6,156 - 6,156 6,320
5,677,839 1,002,314 214,886 1,217,200 6,895,039
19,031 810,627 105,785 916,412 935,443
- (1,816) - (1,816) (1,816)
19,031 808,811 105,785 914,596 933,627
1,174 177 = 177 1,351
20,205 808,988 105,785 914,773 934,978
(13,877) (176,977) (121,631) (298,608) (312,485)
19,101 - - - 19,101
14,981 985,965 227,416 1,213,381 1,228,362
20,205 808,988 105,785 914,773 934,978

@ The Government Subventions in UGC-Funded Activities included subventions from UGC and other government bureaux/departments.

For details, please refer to note 3.

HESEMFINBRENEERESREMBITEBFINED - ARFE  F2RMEES -
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3. Government Subventions

B RFIER
Consolidated & University K2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF387Ts1) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Subventions from UGC HEFBM
11 e—Block Grants BRmlE
Grants Received B mEEE 3,374,346 3,391,089 3,374,346 3,391,089
Less: Provisional Virement-out for S T EEE ERTEE
A R A Eyﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%
other than HFS CRTRE NS GA49T) (41260 (3449T)  (41.244)
Additions of Fixed Assets Iﬁliﬁéiﬁrﬁﬁ (311,264)  (250,710) (311,264) (250,710)
12 «— Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds EIRE
in respect of Depreciation Charge IRIE S REEHY
for the year REERE 212,272 124,655 212,272 124,655
3,240,857 3,223,790 3,240,857 3,223,790
13 «— Supplementary Grants 1BHAHENE 200,211 101,021 200,211 101,021
3,441,068 3,324,811 3,441,068 3,324,811
Earmarked Grants ISERRENS
University Grants Committee BEE
Home Financing Scheme BEREBhETE 547 547 547 547
Housing-related Expenses [RERTEBNEtEIZMNELE 2
other than HFS BRI 1,593 1,829 1,593 1,829
Knowledge Transfer HHige EeEEE 11,689 11,273 11,689 11,273
Additional Clinical Placement for the B EEERE S
Allied Health Programmes fBENE - 9,899 - 9,899
Mainland and Global Engagement and tiﬂjﬁ_ﬁgﬂzﬂﬁ B
Student Learning Experience S B asEsTR gh= 2| 5,627 - 5,627 -
Fund for Innovative Technology-in- ESELE
Education HEE 1,207 - 1,207 -
Special Grant for Strategic Development of ERAERRMEEEERE
Virtual Teaching and Learning BEtEl 485 12,569 485 12,569
Special Grant to Enhance the Support for TR S EER
Students with Special Education Needs 5Bt E 3,618 2,170 3,618 2,170
Targeted TPg Programmes Fellowship ISR ISR R iR iEEE 19,888 17,610 19,888 17,610
Special Grant for Student Support Services r‘gjﬁrﬁmﬁﬁﬁ'l BAYiE
In Response To the COVID-19 Pandemic SAHEETE S 5,033 6,148 5,033 6,148
Others E{ﬂ 6,623 2,844 6,623 2,844
56,310 64,889 56,310 64,889
Research Grants Council MRENF
General Research Fund BicARE 160,782 112,635 160,782 112,635
Early Career Scheme Fund B EFEBETTE 14,183 9,061 14,183 9,061
Collaborative Research Fund HIERFRE 29,798 18,326 29,798 18,326
Theme-based Research Scheme FEEMZEETE 26,956 26,519 26,956 26,519
Others Hth, 58,721 45,915 58,721 45,915
290,440 212,456 290,440 212,456
14 — Research Matching Grant Scheme A SEC I Rt 42,334 38,293 42,334 38,293
Rates and Government Rent Refund ARIE = R BURF AR 56,396 55,664 56,396 55,664
Capital Grants and Alterations, gLﬁﬁbﬁ&ﬂﬁlL
Additions, Repairs, and Improvements JilIEES
(“AA&I”) Block Allocations EQEI*E Esﬁ’*-r)\ 276,549 246,693 276,549 246,693
4,163,097 3,942,806 4,163,097 3,942,806
15— Grants from Government Agencies XTI IR 646,332 564,261 574,829 495,884

4,809,429 4,507,067 4,737,926 4,438,690
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4. Tuition and Other Fees

BERHMmNE
Consolidated %&& University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 2024 2023 2024 2023
16 — UGC-funded Programmes HESEMRE
Tuition Fees BFEITA 1,036,762 980,048 1,036,762 980,048
Other Fees Hihw & 17,938 16,100 17,938 16,100
1,054,700 996,148 1,054,700 996,148
Non-UGC-funded Programmes ERESEBRE
Tuition Fees BEITA 2,287,760 1,997,394 1,424,223 1,182,350
Other Fees HAth & 46,030 37,599 36,689 29,942
2,333,790 2,034,993 1,460,912 1,212,292
3,388,490 3,031,141 2,515,612 2,208,440
5. Interest and Investment Gain
FIEFNRE W2
Consolidated #5& University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#7Tst) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Interest Income FEWA 472,391 342,104 428,348 312,992
Net Realised and Unrealised BRMARERNIRE
Gain on Investment Portfolio HEFWRE 147,860 47,634 151,133 47,243
620,251 389,738 579,481 360,235

0 Block Grants are resources allocated to the University for basic infrastructure, teaching and research activities for a funding period, usually a
triennium, without precise requirements attached in support of subvented activities.

BEMPS AR TAENETAEERA=CFERER - XERRAARNED - AESIRARRMRIEMAR - EBEHE VAR
RAE G EBEENEE -

@ Government grants received during the year which have been spent on fixed assets are not immediately recognised as income but are
transferred to Deferred Capital Funds. An amount equivalent to the depreciation charge of the related assets is recognised as income during
the period in which the depreciation incurs.

RFEEEE EENBUTHERASEREIARIRGERAWA - MBEREREEEAES > TEEREEELITERXERBESNITE
HIE R RUIA -

@ In accordance with the prevailing UGC guidelines, Supplementary Grants and/or Supplementary Adjustments will be provided on top of Block
Grants for changes in salary level with reference to civil service pay revisions. Supplementary Grants reflect an upward revision when the
Government revises civil service pay upward while Supplementary Adjustments reflect a downward revision.

REBEHESNIES| > RESRAFEHFIREMELENE THMESEERBEB S UINESIEMMENZ/ILMHBE - EBUF LRAT
S > RESRGEHHEE ; EBUTTRABEFM > AESBRTEFBAVLHRAE -

0 Rates and Government Rent paid for buildings and properties occupied by the University for education purpose (note 8.2 under Premises and
Related Expenses) are fully refunded by the Government.

AERHARBZRRNBF AR EFT RMEMAN =T RBUGHAE RS 2RE RERBEX)IHBIFZERE -

@ Grants from Government Agencies include grants received from Hong Kong and Mainland China government agencies.
BUR R ERIEE BN E R BB R R -

@ The Government provided tuition fee waiver for all local students enrolled in UGC-funded Research Postgraduate programmes starting from
2018/19 academic year. A total of $8.1 million (2023: $8.4 million) was received from UGC for all eligible students and included in the tuition
fee income for the year ended 30 June 2024.

BUR1E2018/ 192 FRANBERE S ENAR M ARENAE R BLERMBER R - BZE2024F6H30HILFE - ZEVRABERES
BRBLEHRITEIN 810 BTHESEEN(2023 : 840 EiT) -
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17 — 6. Donations and Benefactions

BN
Consolidated && University A2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (I\TF3&7tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Donations for Research Activities BERiEENIEED 121,882 121,195 121,882 121,195
Scholarship, Bursaries, Prizes and B  PBEE  EBER
Loan Ei= 26,619 18,788 26,223 18,419
Capital Projects EEIEHE 9,301 9,301 9,301 9,301
Others HAh 72,111 62,167 113,989 103,727
229,913 211,451 271,395 252,642

Donations received from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and The Hong Kong Jockey Club were $90.5 million (2023:

$67.4 million) and RMB0.8 million (2023: RMBO0.8 million) respectively for the year ended 30 June 2024.

BE2024F6H30ALFE AR EGREREETETNEEETEIRE D A1%9,0508 T (2023:6,7408 5) M0E AR
(2023: 80 ARHE) -

7. Other Income

E{bug A
Consolidated & University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F3E7Tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
18 e— Service Income ARFSUIA 667,527 588,411 200,255 196,465
Contribution from Subsidiaries B S ZER - - 108,444 110,923
Student Halls BAES 96,281 81,521 95,198 80,585
Contract Research BEL 102,615 81,704 95,836 76,811
Rental Income FAEUWA 8,495 10,168 10,485 9,584
Rental Contributions from Staff HEHESEEEE 1,062 1,394 1,062 1,394
Others Hth 126,899 102,394 116,433 94,713
1,002,879 865,592 627,713 570,475

@ Donations with specific purpose follow the accounting treatment for government grants. They are recognised as income when the related

expenditure has been incurred. Including sponsorship income and donations without designated purposes recognised as income upon their
receipt, a total sum of $229.9 million (2023: $211.5 million) and $271.4 million (2023: $252.6 million) are recognised as donation income at
the Consolidated and University level respectively for the year ended 30 June 2024 as shown in the above note 6. Donations received on cash
basis for the Consolidated Entity and the University during the year were $229.2 million (2023: $193.8 million) and $273.3 million (2023: $234.7
million) respectively.
BRERRNIBRRBEBNERNETRERE  ERMREXEERZIBE T R AR - 2 Lk 6 SERIBERESEI A1
ANEEEHRNBERERERRNEE 8E2024F6A30H L FERERRABHERAUIANIEIE S BI&2.299@ 5T (2023: 2.115(8
78) 2. 71418755 (2023:2.526187T) < fSREBERABRAFERIINIREHE S B %2.2921855(2023 : 1.93815 55)F12.73318 7T (2023 : 2.347
B) °

@ Service income of the University mainly represents income from self-financed centres/clinics and administrative service income received from
subsidiaries. Consolidated service income mainly includes income from consultancy and hotel operation.

ARBNRBIRATESREEEEET L/ ZIRARIKEHER S ZTBRBFEA © FERFBBRAEZEERERBEZEERA -
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8. Expenditure

Rz
8.1 Analysis of Expenditure
gl
Consolidated &
2024
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
B SR EERMX
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF3ETTEH) REF (BffEE8.2) e 4=
Teaching, Learning and Research HE . BRRPH
Teaching and Research E2E Y SE 4,439,235 1,454,442 265,388 6,159,065
Library EEE 84,417 105,777 8,369 198,563
Central Computing Facilities FR LS kR it 124,841 44,871 22,384 192,096
Other Academic Services HAth 2 2 ART% 251,407 80,927 3,839 336,173
4,899,900 1,686,017 299,980 6,885,897
Institutional Support HEZIE
Management and General ERN—RIEE 344,333 86,411 6,541 437,285
Premises and Related Expenses RERBRERBX 216,614 581,328 348,433 1,146,375
Student and General Education Services B R —RBER 141,751 359,013 5,964 506,728
Other Activities HhES) 142,867 237,770 6,247 386,884
845,565 1,264,522 367,185 2,477,272
Total Expenditure excluding BIEERRMEH
Finance Costs and Income Tax PASMER X 5,745,465 2,950,539 667,165 9,363,169
Consolidated &
2023
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
B SR SEMx
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTTsH) &R (BfEE8.2) e 45
Teaching, Learning and Research BE - BERPWH
Teaching and Research KB R 3,798,878 1,108,403 148,664 5,055,945
Library EEE 85,146 85,839 9,772 180,757
Central Computing Facilities FR LS kR it 123,175 46,947 12,004 182,126
Other Academic Services HAth 2 22 RRT% 236,955 70,302 2,608 309,865
4,244,154 1,311,491 173,048 5,728,693
Institutional Support BBEFIE
Management and General EER—HRIEE 317,122 92,416 6,775 416,313
Premises and Related Expenses RERkEREMAS 202,946 528,339 322,573 1,053,858
Student and General Education Services B R —REB RS 135,711 298,464 5,327 439,502
Other Activities HhES) 133,596 200,961 6,001 340,558
789,375 1,120,180 340,676 2,250,231
Total Expenditure excluding B ERRMEH

Finance Costs and Income Tax PSR 5,033,529 2,431,671 513,724 7,978,924




Expenditure (Cont'd)
Fix% (%)

8.1 Analysis of Expenditure (Cont'd)
BT (4)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research
19 «— Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
20 &— Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Education Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research

Teaching and Research
Library

Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Education Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

PolyU Financial Report I A BA753R4& 2023/24

University A2

2024
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
ESU =5 EiERX
(AFBTat) RAEF (BiEE8.2) E st
HE . 2ERHHF
B RFLH 4,049,321 1,447,420 257,130 5,753,871
[EEEE 76,133 93,400 6,839 176,372
FR O BB R B it 102,799 20,338 17,194 140,331
HAth 22 ARTS 239,720 76,842 3,029 319,591
4,467,973 1,638,000 284,192 6,390,165
BEXE
EER—RIEE 284,584 60,460 685 345,729
RERBRARX 186,617 481,508 340,983 1,009,108
BAR—RBERT 128,860 307,294 5,867 442,021
HithiEE) - 10,281 - 10,281
600,061 859,543 347,535 1,807,139
BB R B
BASME RIS 5,068,034 2,497,543 631,727 8,197,304
University A2
2023
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
ESU =R EiER
(AFETTaT) RAEF (F35E8.2) e 15
HE . BEARBHK
ELEEYSESIT 3,430,484 1,079,757 145,742 4,655,983
EE8E 76,411 74,346 7,081 157,838
FR R R it 102,022 35,379 6,612 144,013
Hith3 2 RS 223,400 65,191 1,446 290,037
3,832,317 1,254,673 160,881 5,247,871
HELIE
BB R—ARIEE 257,757 66,530 1,064 325,351
RERBBEBX 172,858 431,806 314,017 918,681
B4 R—BRBE R 121,477 263,055 5,261 389,793
HithiEE) - 7,023 - 7,023
552,092 768,414 320,342 1,640,848
BB AR B
LASME RS 4,384,409 2,023,087 481,223 6,888,719
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8.  Expenditure (Cont'd)
Fix% (%)

8.2 Analysis of Operating Expenses
BEMXZAM

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research

Teaching and Research
Office and Equipment Expenses
Research Activities
Research Studentships

Staff Development, Conferences
and Duty Visit

Library
21 e— Office and Equipment Expenses

Magazine and Electronic Materials

Central Computing Facilities
Office and Equipment Expenses

Computer Equipment Maintenance
and IT Infrastructure

Other Academic Services
Office and Equipment Expenses
Others

Total

(AF#ETTE)
BE - BERBH
e S TR
ERFI A ER RS
P&
MR8 E
B S 18IS R
EERNE

B
ERFI RIS
Tk EFER

FRAE AR
ERPI R ER RS
BRBERER

B RRERN

HAZE R
ERFI R ER RS
HAth

#RER

Consolidated & University A2
2024 2023 2024 2023
488,826 388,956 477,448 373,512
428,942 318,456 433,298 305,254
499,373 380,979 499,373 380,979
37,301 20,012 37,301 20,012
1,454,442 1,108,403 1,447,420 1,079,757
18,604 9,228 17,050 7,444
87,173 76,611 76,350 66,902
105,777 85,839 93,400 74,346
2,966 4,242 2,904 4,166
41,905 42,705 17,434 31,213
44,871 46,947 20,338 35,379
62,315 50,884 58,230 45,773
18,612 19,418 18,612 19,418
80,927 70,302 76,842 65,191
1,686,017 1,311,491 1,638,000 1,254,673

Teaching and Research represents expenditure on teaching and research related activities of the University with major spending on academic

staffing costs. Research expenses supported by both government grants and external funding are also included.

HERMAREABRERBESEMRMAY - TESEBEE R RER - /Ml B 1E A BA BRI E BRI -

Other Academic Services includes expenditure of academic support units, such as Academic Registry, Global Engagement Office, Educational
Development Centre, Research and Innovation Office, etc.

Hitn BB RFFER B ZIRMPINFES - NEBRE  BREBRE - X2RRPONARKREIFEBRSE -

Books and periodicals which can be used over a number of years are capitalised as fixed assets - library collections. Magazines and Electronic

Materials represent the direct expense of other books and periodicals which are not capitalised.

JRSFNEEIPTZENEREHEECLAEEEE - BEEHE - VIREFENRBBEAMRIARERENERRBHNER

=



8.  Expenditure (Cont'd)
Fix% (&)

8.2  Analysis of Operating Expenses (Cont'd)

EEMX O (M)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Institutional Support

22 «— Management and General
Office and Equipment Expenses
Publicity and Recruitment Expenses
Audit, Legal and Professional Fees
General Insurance
Others

Premises and Related Expenses
Office and Equipment Expenses
Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rates and Government Rent

23— (leaning and Security Services
Others

Student and General Education Services
Office and Equipment Expenses
Scholarships and Financial Aids
Student Development
Sports Facilities
Student Halls
Others

24 o— Other Activities
Consultancy

Service Cost and Others

Total

(XF#ETTH)

BEXE

B Rk —ARIER
EBPI R ER BRI SZ
SEERIEIEE
B FREREFRER
—RefRbE
Hth

RERBRERZ
BRFI R e R
KEBE
HERE
Z R BURthFE
BERGRRREE
HAth

BER—RABR
ERFI e AR
BEF KL MBIRE)
B4 EREEE
BRI
BAES
Hth

HfthiEE)
RER &
ARFS B R ELAh

ERES
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Consolidated && University A%
2024 2023 2024 2023
37,285 40,909 18,985 22,796
18,432 22,975 15,277 19,455
8,849 7,062 7,398 5,398
7,652 7,000 5,335 4,635
14,193 14,470 13,465 14,246
86,411 92,416 60,460 66,530
17,717 15,967 15,118 11,623
179,198 172,090 139,527 134,983
215,613 183,639 180,302 146,810
56,396 55,664 56,396 55,664
95,010 82,181 82,532 74,429
17,394 18,798 7,633 8,297
581,328 528,339 481,508 431,806
17,817 15,214 17,430 15,116
176,139 144,997 135,656 117,068
66,724 51,324 56,708 44,829
15,520 16,051 15,520 16,051
74,440 62,313 74,422 62,254
8,373 8,565 7,558 7,737
359,013 298,464 307,294 263,055
83,654 81,248 - -
154,116 119,713 10,281 7,023
237,770 200,961 10,281 7,023
1,264,522 1,120,180 859,543 768,414

@ Management and General includes expenditure of administrative support units, such as Human Resources Office, Finance Office and

Communications and Public Affairs Office, etc.

B R —ARIE B BFETBCHRRFINRAX - WANERE - MBRANEARALEBRS -

77



78 PolyU Financial Report B A8 #5384 2023/24

8.  Expenditure (Cont'd)
Fix% (%)

8.3 Remuneration of Higher Paid Staff
SRS 2 FhaM
The number of University staff members, whose equivalent remuneration* for the past year exceeded $1.8 million
irrespective of the funding sources, fell within the bands stated below:

TIBFHNEEZRIOBETHEREEINABERERE

2024 2023

$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 66 88
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 68 60
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 59 47
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 30 27
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 34 23
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 14 21
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 14 15
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000 14 18
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000 16 10
$3,150,001 - $3,300,000 14 10
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000 12 10
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000 11 4
$3,600,001 - $3,750,000 9 1
$3,750,001 - $3,900,000 2 5
$3,900,001 - $4,050,000 2 3
$4,050,001 - $4,200,000 4 1
$4,200,001 - $4,350,000 3 2
$4,350,001 - $4,500,000 1 S
$4,500,001 - $4,650,000 4 3
$4,650,001 - $4,800,000 & =
$4,800,001 - $4,950,000 2 2
$5,400,001 - $5,550,000 1 =
$7,050,001 - $7,200,000 = 1
$7,350,001 - $7,500,000 1 =
384 354

* Equivalent remuneration includes salaries, allowances, contributions to retirement schemes, gratuities, housing
benefits and other benefits. For staff who are provided with staff quarters, their housing benefits are calculated by
reference to the rateable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department.

*HMSESEFE RN BARSHEOMHR  ORIE EEEIREMETN - BEXERHBEES 2800
8 > HEE®INZmYREESTHEBS ZBR=MMBEE -

@ Cleaning and Security Services of the University are partly contracted out to a wholly-owned subsidiary. The sub-contracting fee paid to the
subsidiary for the cleaning and security services is eliminated on consolidation. The major expense incurred by the subsidiary is staff costs for
the performance of services which is included under Premises and Related Expenses - Staff Costs and Benefits.
REBEIDBFRRGRZRBIF—FAEENBEAS - TEHEEL - ENHBASNERRARZRIZE SWIKHE - MAMBEASNE
ERAAMERY > BLENFEBRERS RAMAN - A BRI RET -

@ Other Activities include expenditure for non-core operations of the University i.e. other than teaching and research related activities. These
operations mainly include provision of consultancy service and hotel operation, which are carried out through the University's subsidiaries.

HitZB BEABNIFEERFHENRBRBIEBNIN 2 EFH)NFAY - BERBEZEEME QS AMRENEBRBIEEEE -
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Taxation

HiE

Income Tax in the Income and Expenditure Statement of the Consolidated Entity and the University represents:

WZERIBA AR S IR R KRBTSR A ¢

Consolidated & University X%
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAF3&7Tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEERFGEHR 61 - - -
China Corporate Income Tax R (R EFT1SHR 4,138 1,816 4,138 1,816
4,199 1,816 4,138 1,816

The University and four of its subsidiaries, College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited, Hong Kong Community
College, Hotel ICON Limited and PolyU Technology and Consultancy Co. Limited, are exempted from payment of Hong Kong
Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Other subsidiaries of the University in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. The provision of Hong Kong Profits
Tax in the consolidated financial statement for the year ended 30 June 2024 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits or 8.25% of the first $2,000,000 of estimated assessable profits for a qualifying entity under the two-tier profits tax
regime. Taxation for Mainland China operations is charged at the appropriate prevailing rates of taxation in Mainland China.

RIBEERFIROIZE88MF > ABRNEWEAS : EXREEXFERARAE BEELBR  WEZARQSRIE
AR KRERARASIHREBRFGEHK -

AREBEFEBNHMHME LS BBMEBFER - §E2024F6A30B LFENGEMBRED - FEACSRWBEAMG
FEERIFEAN16.5%HEMRMSREET > SERBERNMGHERBAHNE2008198.25% - BIAFEFHNRITZUEA
ROERRRGTE -
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10. Restricted Funds

BEES
10.1 Fund Balances
Heae
Consolidated &&
25 26
T Scholarship T
and Student Specific
Capital  Research Development Donation Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
HEER

(In thousands of B A BARE [FEREE BB

Hong Kong dollars) (AF#BTat) g EE EE BEE BEE ez
Balance at 1 July 2022 20224E7 B 1 B45eR 939,310 1,553,756 107,609 986,142 660,506 4,247,323
Total Comprehensive FEAN

Income for the year RS (89,733)  (102,528) (71,517)  (144,232) 63,024 (344,986)
Inter-fund transfers BSEE 56,657 394,109 72,891 119,256 (13,198) 629,715
Balance at 30 June 2023 20236 H30H&ER 906,234 1,845,337 108,983 961,166 710,332 4,532,052
Total Comprehensive FER

Income for the year MRS (93,786)  (158,131) (88,841)  (172,790) 79,329 (434,219)
Inter-fund transfers EREE 173,692 144,192 106,357 185,290 2,178 611,709
Balance at 30 June 2024 202476 A 30 B 456 986,140 1,831,398 126,499 973,666 791,839 4,709,542

@ As the duration of research projects is normally 2 to 3 years, funding for research projects supported by UGC Block/Matching Grants are set
aside under Research Funds. Apart from UGC Block/Matching Grants, research projects supported by external funding or other non-UGC

income are also set aside under the Research Funds.

—RBMIREEEME=FA5TH - BIERANBRESER /MBS EREROMIAAES - FRE SRR/ MBS ERI » &

DEEFAAENIIMBERNERESRA LSS EIBAES -

@ All donations are channelled and accounted for under the PolyU Foundation. The donations with designated purposes according to the wishes of
donors and the University’s decision are transferred to the accounts designated for such purposes. As at 30 June 2024, the balances of General
Donation Funds and Endowment Funds were $722.3 million (2023: $680.1 million) and $791.8 million (2023: $710.3 million) respectively.

FrEREEREAREEIIR ARREREEANGERENEREREREENTMRABNAEREENERRMNERIR - R20245F6F

300 > —fRIBRESREABEESINERDBIAT.223(8 7T (2023 : 6.801187T) & 7.918{E 7T (2023 : 7.103{E7T) °
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10. Restricted Funds (Cont'd)

REER (/)
10.1  Fund Balances (Cont'd)
B8 (8)
University A2
25 26
T Scholarship T
and Student Specific
Capital Research  Development Donation  Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
BESK

(In thousands of &R A BAEE  SEREE BAREE

Hong Kong dollars) (AFEITET) 2E BEE 2E BEE 2E HE
Balance at 1 July 2022 202247 B 1 B4EER 812,222 1,553,756 107,609 986,142 660,506 4,120,235
Total Comprehensive FERA

Income for the year REERE (57,232) (102,528) (71,517) (144,232) 63,024 (312,485)
Inter-fund transfers BExEE 12,495 394,109 72,891 119,256 (13,198) 585,553
Balance at 30 June 2023 2023F6 B30 458R 767,485 1,845,337 108,983 961,166 710,332 4,393,303
Total Comprehensive FER

Income for the year HREINES (58,348) (158,131) (88,841) (172,790) 79,329 (398,781)
Inter-fund transfers BoEE 108,737 144,192 106,357 185,290 2,178 546,754

Balance at 30 June 2024 202476 A 30 H 4% 817,874 1,831,398 126,499 973,666 791,839 4,541,276
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10.

Restricted Funds (Cont'd)
BEES (F)

10.2

Nature and Purpose of Restricted Funds

BEESNMERARE

(a)

(b)

Capital Funds
BARES
Capital Funds represent the balance of net book value of the Fixed Assets which are financed by non-deferred

funds.

EAREEREMNIFRIENE I8 B E T B ENEREFE

Research Funds

MinEE

Research Funds represent funds earmarked for the development of research, including those from the HKSAR
Government, government related organisations and external private organisations.

MAEERFHERPAMNERSERMAANES  QEREFEFNTRERMA « BURA BB R EIMIAKE
NEE °

Scholarship and Student Development Funds
BEFRBLEZRES
Scholarship and Student Development Funds represent the funds which are reserved for scholarship payment and

earmarked for supporting student activities in order to enhance the all-rounded development of students.
BESRBPEERESRHRBANNREERENBEFIUMRABREESTAZRNES -

Specific Donation Funds
BERBEES
Specific Donation Funds represent funds, including donations, earmarked for specific activities, programmes or

projects of the University.

BFERBEZEABRERBANREEEY  REFEANEE -

Endowment Funds
BARIERAS
Endowment Funds represent the funds which the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep the

principal intact and only use income generated from the fund to support University activities of designed purposes.

BABRESEABRBEBBENEREHEASAPLRIANEELNBAEZFABRHEETINESE -
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11. UGC Funds

BETES
11.1  Fund Balances
Heiteh
Consolidated and University &R A2
General &
Development Matching
Reserve Grant
Fund Funds Total
—R K
EE [iTe:3)
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF3&7Tat) REEE HENE 4z
Balance at 1 July 2022 20227 B 1 B4R 1,682,289 247,948 1,930,237
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FERNEZENE 20,267 (1,166) 19,101
Inter-fund transfers B (72,240) (56) (72,296)
Balance at 30 June 2023 202356 B30 B %8R 1,630,316 246,726 1,877,042
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FEEREZENE (557,232) 3,739 (553,493)
Inter-fund transfers B 99,969 (228) 99,741
Balance at 30 June 2024 2024F6 H30H 456R 1,173,053 250,237 1,423,290

11.2 Nature and Purpose of UGC Funds
HEZESHEERAE

(a) General and Development Reserve Fund
—MREREEES
The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants
other than earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the University. The balance of the GDRF at the end of funding
period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20% of
the University’'s approved recurrent grants other than the earmarked grants for specific purposes for that funding

period. Should the balance of the GDRF at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the excess amount
is refundable to the UGC.

—MRERERMBEEEARBRDAZBESESRAIFRTAREERNEERRFENNEEHEE) - R
BRBEES=FREREITREINT —EAERBN—REZRMEESERURBERE ZEE LMD
TUEREB ARG E B IENIEERRMBIEIRINN20%AME - ME—MRBEFEESNBEFRBPERFTZE
ERBBBERRELR > BHMOREEEFHRES -

(b) Matching Grant Funds
FoirEBh =
Matching Grant Funds are funds granted by the HKSAR Government on a matching basis for qualified private

donations raised by the University. The matching grants can be used for supporting activities within the ambit of
UGC-recurrent grants.

RHHDEEBTRABTINTHREBRAMAZMESTSRBNIMARRBIREHRATMEL M ER - ZiH
HWEEFTARMNERESEEMZERSEENNEY -
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12.

Other Funds
HitE &

12.1 Fund Balances

E& 48R

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July 2022

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2023

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2024

(AF#Bat)
202247 B 1 B4R
FENEZAENE
aEEE

202356 B30 H4&ER
FEANBZERES
BEE2EE

2024%F6 H30 H 48R

Consolidated &

26

Self- )

financing General

Activity Donation
Funds Funds Total

—%

BESE g

IHEES 2E 485

3,118,261 628,749 3,747,010
1,108,834 227,616 1,336,250
(381,391) (176,028) (557,419)
3,845,704 680,137 4,525,841
1,418,531 261,726 1,680,257
(491,933) (219,517) (711,450)
4,772,302 722,346 5,494,648
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Other Funds (Cont'd)

HitnE2 (48)
12.1  Fund Balances (Cont'd)
Ea4k (E)
University X2
26
Self- !
financing General
Activity Donation
Funds Funds Total
—f%
BEEE £k
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#7TEt) HEES He yax
Balance at 1 July 2022 202277 B 1 HaSER 2,441,653 628,749 3,070,402
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FEANBEZEE 1,000,946 227,416 1,228,362
Inter-fund transfers BEEEE (337,229) (176,028) (513,257)
Balance at 30 June 2023 2023F 6 B30 &58% 3,105,370 680,137 3,785,507
Total Comprehensive Income for the year FEARZHR G 1,227,858 261,726 1,489,584
Inter-fund transfers BRI (426,978) (219,517) (646,495)
Balance at 30 June 2024 20246 B30 A 4565 3,906,250 722,346 4,628,596

12.2 Nature and Purpose of Other Funds
HitnBESHHERBE

(@) Self-financing Activity Funds
BESEREES
Self-financing Activity Funds represent the reserves generated from self-financed programmes and activities.

BEZERRESAABHEEENRERBIMSZHAE -

(b) General Donation Funds
—MIREE S

General Donation Funds represent donations without designated purposes which can be used at the discretion of the
University's Management for the University’s future development.

—RERESATHAABREEERTAERANRAKER  WEFERRNBEMHE -
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13. Matching Grants and Matched Donations
Eo#i B & &k B # 150

27e— 13.1 Matching Grant Schemes

EC¥#EBh £ 52
Consolidated and University
HARKE
2024 2023

Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
fic ¥t 2% Fic ¥ [
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 87Tat) fHEE (g BN E [
Balance at 1 July 781 B%8R 246,726 846,865 247,948 844,133

Receipts R
Interest and Investment Gain FRMIRE W= 12,166 31,788 8,760 26,462
12,166 31,788 8,760 26,462

Payments (NEN
Teaching and Research Enhancement RAHBERETH 1,726 19,106 761 20,697
Scholarships and Prizes REBFRES 5,488 1,928 8,617 1,359
Bursaries BEE - 245 - 212

Internationalisation and ERR{E R

Student Exchange Activities B RTEE 1,213 814 403 567
Student Development BAEREITE - 407 145 89
Capital and Related Expenditure HiERBRRX - (519) - 806
8,427 21,981 9,926 23,730
28 «— Transfer to Restricted Funds HRAIFERE S (228) - (56) -
Balance at 30 June 6B 308 458k 250,237 856,672 246,726 846,865

All expenditures were incurred on degree and above level of study.

FiARXI9AZ2 TR F2URZNEX -

@ Matching Grant Schemes were introduced by the government in 2003 to assist universities in strengthening their fund-raising capacities. The
government provides matching grants to match private donations in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Schemes. The matching
grants and the matched donations should only be used for supporting activities within the ambits of UGC recurrent grants and in accordance
with the rules set out under the Schemes.

RIRFARBINESAES > EHMHBIZETEIFR2003FEMIL - BUSIRIEGT EIIFRE A2 ESZNI AR IR MEHRESE - RHHBIEREER
HIEREERBH S BN EERERE KB BN EENAEE -

@ Similar to research projects supported by Block Grants, unspent Matching Grants allocated for research projects are transferred to Research
Funds (included in Restricted Funds (note 10)). In order to show a full picture of funding and related expenditure under Matching Grants, the
corresponding amount is transferred back from Research Funds to Matching Grants when the research expenditure are incurred and recorded
in Teaching and Research Enhancement in this note.

IR D EERMARNEBRGEE 5K  RENKSRERMBARNEHHMESEINMES(BRERFEES(FE10) - BERET
Fe ¥ HB E UG RABRAR X - B X & AR E S 2O ¥ #B) & U R BR R LM EERIIR FH 2 R BHR R -



29— 13.2

Matching Grants and Matched Donations (Cont'd)

EH#HpE R EEELHHRN (8)

MREHHBI 25T

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July
Receipts
Grants/Donations/Research
grants/Research Contracts
Received

Payments
Research Projects
Research Equipment

Research-related Software License/
Technology License

Setting up of Research Facilities

Research Activities
for Students

Others

Balance at 30 June

Research Matching Grant Scheme

(XF3E A

7R1B#5ER
R
EWRERZ 18R/
hoEEEnE/

MREL

(DEA

MRIRE

Tl

i =l XL
ifoiRiE

RIUAFERE

HEBE2HE
MFEES

HAth

6 H30H#5ER
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Consolidated &

2024 2023
Matched Matched
Donations/ Donations/
Research Research
Grants/ Grants/
Matching Research Matching Research
Grants Contracts Grants Contracts
EERCEI8RL/ EERCEIIRRL/
R MEENE/ et &/
BCETtHBN & MREL BEifHENE REL
135,120 159,342 113,904 135,851
64,742 115,449 60,428 103,346
64,742 115,449 60,428 103,346
30,507 75,952 22,251 53,700
11,895 10,951 16,931 15,296
261 5,269 - 3,348
18 13,270 - 7,224
224 514 30 287
42,905 105,956 39,212 79,855
156,957 168,835 135,120 159,342




88 PolyU Financial Report I8 kKB 7534 2023/24

13. Matching Grants and Matched Donations (Cont'd)
EE@EbhE R EBEREHIBE (8)
29— 13.2 Research Matching Grant Scheme (Cont'd)
TR E B £ 58I (48) University A2
2024 2023
Matched Matched
Donations/ Donations/
Research Research
Grants/ Grants/
Matching Research Matching Research
Grants Contracts Grants Contracts
EEER E 18
Hg/ Az /
et E/ e E/
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#Tat) Fo¥tHBn & MEEL Ao ¥t#HBn & MEEL
Balance at 1 July 7818 %56 134,831 159,336 113,718 135,851
Receipts R
Grants/Donations/Research BEURE Z I8
grants/Research Contracts RIS/
Received HEEL 63,084 112,125 60,037 102,087
63,084 112,125 60,037 102,087
Payments EN
Research Projects RRIEE 30,296 74,587 21,963 52,447
Research Equipment SR 11,895 10,951 16,931 15,296
Research-related Software License/  fft5SERE 2804/

Technology License Fefiiy - - - -
Setting up of Research Facilities AV S 261 5,269 - 3,348
Research Activities HEEZEN

for Students R IEED 18 13,270 - 7,224
Others Hfft 224 514 30 287

42,694 104,591 38,924 78,602
Balance at 30 June 6H30B 458 155,221 166,870 134,831 159,336
30— Note: The unspent balance of Matching Grants and Matched Donations/Research Grants/Research Contracts at the end of

o

o

the reporting period are recognised in Deferred Income.

BifeE:  TEERESHASR > Fo¥itiBh & R E R EHRIE /AR MBI R /R S AR AR IR LU AP IERT

The Government launched the Research Matching Grant Scheme in 2019 to strengthen financial support for research and development.
Donations and research grants/research contracts from non-government/non-public sector are eligible for matching. The matching grants
received should be used to support research directly in accordance with the operation guide of the scheme.

B TR2019E R 7 i S EC ¥ i By e 5t 8 IR FH I R M BA 75 3285 » FRBUR /IR A EHIBHIIRIE - ARMWEIE /MRS NI SIRME
Fo¥f - RIFBFTEIRVIRIEIER - WEINRHMHS S EEEEANRIRMAR -

Since the Matching Grants and Matched Donations/Research Grants/Research Contracts can only be spent on specific purposes, the accounting
treatment of the scheme follows HKAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. The Matching Grants
and Matched Donations/Research Grants/Research Contracts and the related investment return from the investment of unspent balance
under the scheme are transferred to deferred income upon receipt or accrual and recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure
incurred (note 28). During the year ended 30 June 2024, unspent Matching Grants of $157.0 million (2023: $135.1 million) and $155.2 million
(2023: $134.8 million) and Matched Donations/Research Grants/Research Contracts of $168.8 million (2023: $159.3 million) and $166.9 million
(2023: $159.3 million) were recognised as Deferred Income at the Consolidated and University level respectively.
HRAREHHEEREEERHIBE/ MRHBE/MRESOREAREERSR  BitEst 8N St REERE BT ERFE205%- RS
BB ST RRIET B REBI AR EE - LT 8 T IRBI MV EC B = RECHH B RE/ M RM B E /M A SR A AHRRIRENBERREREE
Wl oh fE AT RS AIEE R » M FEHRIR S E A RS RER B URA (FizE28) - HiE2024F6H30HZEE » RIERMACE##HED1.5708 7T (2023:
1.351187¢) R 1.55218 7t (2023 :1.348(87t) RAERHECE RIS/ AR MBIE/ MRS 168818 7T (2023:1.5931F7T) K1.66918 7T (2023
1.5931870) ERRSERAE D BIERSELA-
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31e—14. Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students

E BRI RREBFE

Consolidated & University AZ2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#E7Tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance at 1 July 781 B%8R 2,947 2,630 2,414 2,085
Receipts B
Grants HEnE 4,429 4,234 3,769 3,720
Interest and Investment Gain A B Mg E WS 190 126 151 99
4,619 4,360 3,920 3,819
Payment (NEN
Subsidy to Students B4 E) 1,921 1,518 1,864 1,512
Unspent Grants returned to Government  :Ri& FEBUSF M R{EABIIMHENE (2,759) (2,525) (2,270) (1,978)
Balance at 30 June 6H30 B4R 2,886 2,947 2,200 2,414

@ The Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students, the Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions
for Post-secondary Students, the Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students and the Scheme for Non-means-
tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students, were launched and supported by the Education Bureau
(“EDB") of HKSAR to encourage more post-secondary students in Hong Kong to pursue exchange activities in the Mainland and other belt and
road regions.

In compliance with the schemes’ requirements, details of the related grants and expenditure are separately disclosed in notes 14, 15 and 16.

The unspent grants received for the period from September 2022 to August 2023 and September 2021 to August 2022 were returned to the
Government during the year ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 respectively.

Since the grants under the four schemes are designed for specific purposes with refund condition for any unspent grants, the accounting treatment
of these grants follows HKAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. Grant income recognised during
the year, equivalent to the amount spent, has been included under Grants from Government Agencies in note 3, with the unspent portion being
presented under Deferred Income in note 28.

HFE2LBIIIRENHE ELBA T—F R HERRAREELHE EL2LENBREAREEEERELBE T—
TR HERRRARBELEHEHEESNTHRERERR AR UEREZEEE L8245 Aith R Hit—F—KitEHE
REE

AT EIEK - BRI BN & R B ST A9REE D BUFR I ZE14~ 15F1 164K 55 -

BBN2022F9R £ 2023F 8 Kk2021F 9B E2022F 8 A BB SN XM MBI E IR (ERIE D E D BIN2024F6A30H K 20235F6H30
HIEFEREFBUT -

MR ET BN RE R E AR RE AR ERNEOMARRGS, LMD ERBEEBSHAERIE205 - S BERNBUTIERN
WEEEABNEREE - AEEEDNMEIEWA  BIEFRNEE  EEEEMEA2MAVBIFEBIRTA > Mo R ERIERHE
ZIRTEMEF28HIELELIR AR -
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31e— 15.

Schemes for Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road" Regions for Post-secondary Students

S84 [—F—R] MEXREE

15.1 Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road" Regions for Post-secondary Students

EE8E [—F—0K] HEXRAREEEMNE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July
Receipts
Grants

Interest and Investment Gain

Payment
Subsidy to Students

Unspent Grants returned to
Government

Balance at 30 June

EF8E [—F—K&] HEXRREAREEE:E

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July
Receipts

Grants

Interest and Investment Gain

Payment
Subsidy to Students

Unspent Grants returned to
Government

Consolidated 4&2& University A2
(LAFETET) 2024 2023 2024 2023
7H1B4EER 971 850 504 386
=R
NS 1,051 1,097 657 652
SN E W = 65 43 33 20
1,116 1,140 690 672
(NEA
B4 ER 143 185 122 185
BB T BN IEAR{ER
R%EBh & (957) (834) (485) (369)
6 A30 B 4&ER 987 971 587 504
15.2 Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students
Consolidated &4 University A22
(AFHETTat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
7R 1H4%58R 681 b44 397 361
R
e 924 940 695 670
SR E W = 47 30 29 16
971 970 724 686
(NEA
B 281 320 273 320
RETBUS I AR(ER
HIHBN & (659) (613) (373) (330)
6H30B %58 712 681 475 397

Balance at 30 June
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31e— 16. Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

ErELFERNERRABFEENTE

Consolidated 434 University A%

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF8Tst) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance at 1 July 781 H4%58R 1,200 1,216 1,033 1,032
Receipts (e

— wEe 1,509 1,336 1,155 1,156

Interest and Investment Gain MBI E RS 81 50 b4 41

1,590 1,386 1,219 1,197

Payment (NES

Subsidy to Students BLEE) 303 181 256 159
Unspent Grants returned to REFBURIEARER

Government HIFEENE (1,188) (1,221) (1,019) (1,037)

Balance at 30 June 6B 30H %&ER 1,299 1,200 977 1,033
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17.

Fixed Assets

EE&E

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2022
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange Differences
Balance at 30 June 2023
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange Differences

Balance at 30 June 2024

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2022
Charge for the Year

Written Back on
Disposals

Exchange Differences
Balance at 30 June 2023
Charge for the Year

Written Back on
Disposals

Exchange Differences

Balance at 30 June 2024

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2023

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2024

AF
B ITET)

A
120227818
wE
wEER
Bef(E5
ERETE
F22023F6H30H
wE
wEER
e
ERELE
1202446 530

EWITE
120227818
REENE
HEZ

ik
ERERE
120236530
NEENE
HEZ

/6
EREER
11202446 5308

202356 H30H
BREFE

202456 H30H
ERERE

Consolidated &

Other

Construction Furniture, Properties

in Equipment Library leased for
Buildings Progress & Fittings  Collections own use Total

&b ~ 518 EEEE Hitht 5
(2 ERIRE REE = HEME 4Bst
9,564,242 399,388 2,304,681 628,863 47,376 12,944,550
48,014 318,553 381,660 1,488 10,648 760,363
141,305 (141,305) = = = =
- - (58,816) (27,990) (3,432) (90,238)
(6,783) = (2,443) = = (9,226)
9,746,778 576,636 2,625,082 602,361 54,592 13,605,449
59,445 395,922 542,227 1,973 9,855 1,009,422
276,515 (276,515) = = = =
- - (111,467) (76,124) (12173)  (199,764)
886 = 655 = = 1,541
10,083,624 696,043 3,056,497 528,210 52,274 14,416,648
5,818,248 = 2,077,471 615,865 20,475 8,532,059
308,089 = 184,102 5,151 16,382 513,724
= = (57,888) (27,562) (2,676) (88,126)
(2,788) - (996) - - (3,784)
6,123,549 - 2,202,689 593,454 34,181 8,953,873
324,287 = 321,441 3,810 17,627 667,165
= = (110,419) (75,739) (12,173) (198,331)
373 = 370 = = 743
6,448,209 - 2,414,081 521,525 39,635 9,423,450
3,623,229 576,636 422,393 8,907 20,411 4,651,576
3,635,415 696,043 642,416 6,685 12,639 4,993,198




17.

Fixed Assets (Cont'd)
BEE&E (4)

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)

Cost

Balance at 1 July 2022
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2023
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2024

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2022
Charge for the Year

Written Back on

Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2023
Charge for the Year
Written Back on
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2024

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2023

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2024

(AF
BITat)
A
12022 7B 1R
e
HEER
HE
12202356 H30H
BE
B2ER
jefi5
1R2024%E6 B30H
RIEITE
120227818
REEE
=

6
2202356 H30H
REEHRE
=

/62
1202446 H30H

20235F6H30H
RERE

20245F6H30H
IRENSE
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University X%

Other

Construction Furniture, Properties

in  Equipment Library leased for

Buildings Progress & Fittings  Collections own use Total
&t ~ 515 EEE HithB A

BgF EETRE REE | GE=EYES ABsT
9,459,395 399,388 1,850,882 581,118 35,848 12,326,631
48,014 318,553 333,312 1,356 6,418 707,653
141,305 (141,305) = = = =
= = (46,811) (9,641) (1,538) (57,990)
9,648,714 576,636 2,137,383 572,833 40,728 12,976,294
59,445 395,922 479,282 1,702 8,856 945,207
276,515 (276,515) = = = =
= = (66,108) (58,648) (11,671) (136,427)
9,984,674 696,043 2,550,557 515,887 37,913 13,785,074
5,777,170 = 1,681,321 573,842 12,329 8,044,662
305,276 = 158,707 3,107 14,133 481,223
= = (46,644) (9,638) (1,538) (57,820)
6,082,446 = 1,793,384 567,311 24,924 8,468,065
321,548 = 292,522 2,463 15,194 631,727
= = (66,058) (58,646) (11,671) (136,375)
6,403,994 = 2,019,848 511,128 28,447 8,963,417
3,566,268 576,636 343,999 51522, 15,804 4,508,229
3,580,680 696,043 530,709 4,759 9,466 4,821,657
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17.

Fixed Assets (Cont'd)
BE&E (4)

Leasehold land is granted by the Governments of the HKSAR and PRC for usage by the Consolidated Entity and University at a
nominal amount.

The Consolidated Entity's and University's net book value of right-of-use assets as at 30 June 2024 was $12.6 million (2023:
$20.4 million) and $9.5 million (2023: $15.8 million) respectively and solely represent other properties leased for own use
carried at depreciated cost.

The Consolidated Entity and University have obtained the right to use other properties as its office, warehouse and off-campus
housing through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 4 years. Some leases include an option
to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term. Where practicable, the Consolidated Entity and
University seek to include such extension options exercisable by the Consolidated Entity and University to provide operational
flexibility. The Consolidated Entity and University assess at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. If the Consolidated Entity and University is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options, the future lease payments during the extension periods are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. None
of the leases include variable lease payments.

Interest on lease liabilities for the year ended 30 June 2024 for the Consolidated Entity and University were $0.3 million (2023:
$0.3 million) and $0.2 million (2023: $0.2 million) respectively, which were included in the Finance Costs under the Income and
Expenditure Statement. Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes
24 and 26(c), respectively.

FRFIITHERBARTEBRAENUHGREERAZERANES T U SEXEEIR

FEREEEAMITERATERNEMBEHEEYE ;e R AREBN2024F 6 H30HMEREEE D BIA1,2608 75 (2023 : 2,040
BT) KR950E 7T (2023:1,5808 %) °

mEBERAZEEHERHZESEREMMEESRAE  EENBRIMEFIET - HERBE S RLE - SMHAESTRER
FHTEREZEEFIMAR - EATHERT  KERRABSRNENTMARSIERASZ T EAEREERE  DUIRH
EEREM GREERABEHERRATAESGEEETHERERE NRGERRABAESERTETEEEE
# > AR A AR R BN RA AR ERENGT B ARSI A E S T EHENR -

HZE2024F6A30BILEFE  SREERABNEEREN RO HIS308 T (2023: 308 7T) 2087t (2023: 208 7T) - HREE
FERZIRIENMTE E A - HAERE R LBRNFAE SNBSS ENHARD T BIEM 245 26(c) HFIL
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries
MEARZRE
University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF&ITat) 2024 2023
Unlisted Shares, at Cost JELTHRRAD - IREAA 366,934 302,289
32 — Less: Impairment Loss B - RERR (217.843) (176,001)

149,091 126,288

An impairment test was performed by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries as at 30
June 2024. The recoverable amount of the subsidiaries is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. When
the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries exceeds the carrying amount, the impairment loss is reversed up to the amount that
has been recognised in prior years. Following the result of this exercise, impairment loss of $41.8 million (2023: $23.1 million) was
recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement for the year. The accumulated impairment loss was attributable to research
activities conducted through the relevant subsidiaries.

AREETHLEEME A R2024F6 A30H ZIREER FIIREIHE A ERR - MEASZFIKREBERIEE QR EEIR
HERANERBEMETNRSELE - EWBAS 2 KROFREL HREE - AEBRRAFIROZBEFEMER 2R
EBERR - BRER  AEE2REWEIRIEZFERE 44,1808 7t (2023 : 2,31087w) - Rt EEERENER
M8 A B EATRORIREED

@ %,%IEI# SEIYIRFERE, PolyU Research Limited and its subsidiaries (PearL Modern TCM Research Limited, I2XEZ &t

FYNAERAE] and EWAYRHERZECRYINBFR/AE]) and PolyU Translational Research Institutes Limited are set up to conduct
research and development activities in the Mainland China. Funding to cover the research, development and operational expenditures
is provided to these subsidiaries in the form of capital injection. Impairment loss reflects the net expenditure arising from such
activities of these subsidiaries.

EEIE T A YAl 2B (%8 H) is set up as a public institution in Futian Shenzhen to conduct research activities fully
supported by the Futian government.

ERETIAEBRIARER BARMERAIREMBAGSEBABERPAMEMEIRAS - BAEBMREMCRINBRAS - ETHHY
REERZECRINERAS RIEABLHARRERASNRILES T ERTETRARERNED - EESHIHABLUFEAXBA - B
REMERNMBEREESER - REGERMTZE TN ZIFMAT -

ERETIAS RIS MAIFMAERGERZERYEEMIIZEE£EN - ERAGNZHZF TRERES -
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18.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

MEARZIRE (8)

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
All of these are subsidiaries as defined under note 1.4 and have been consolidated into the financial statements of the

Consolidated Entity.

TIBRENMEAS -

BREEMBRERS -

Place of
Incorporation/

PRAARIAI - FAIFNRAIEEEER

Particulars of

 BEATE

Proportion of Ownership Interest

FRA LR

Consolidated

EMFEARREZHMB LS > 47

Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University  Subsidiary Activity
BE81T
FEff/ AT R & meE My A
R ENSIE=T EEIMIL BRAFIE BiFtED AEFH BB FEFE
Campus Facilities Hong Kong 100,000 100% 100% = Facility
Management Shares Management
Company Limited Services
BB =$E BB 100,0008% Bk
BIRAE]
College of Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% = Education
Professional and Guarantee
Continuing
Education Limited
BEERGEHE BE BR BB
BIRARAE BRAE)
Hong Kong Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% = Post-
Community College Guarantee secondary
Education
BEEE L2 aE ’IR E Wt §-)
ARAE]
Hotel ICON Limited Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Operation of
Guarantee Teaching and
Research Hotel
KEERRAS BE B E2EYS g
ARAE] BIEEE
PolyU Enterprise Plus Hong Kong 34,200,000 100% 100% - Investment
Limited (note a) Shares Holding
(2023: 26,700,000
Shares)
R AREERRAT B 34,200,0008% WEER

(FifEa)

(2023: 26,700,0008%)



18.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

MEARZIRE (&)

Place of
Incorporation/

Particulars of

PolyU Financial Report I A BA753R4& 2023/24

Proportion of Ownership Interest

PAtEERIER

Consolidated

Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest  University  Subsidiary Activity
BT
FE/ AR AT R R make MIE A E]

| EyNSIEE =E S AR AEIE BRtER KEBESR =5A FEER

PolyU Research Hong Kong 192,300,000 Shares 100% 100% = Investment
Limited (2023:192,100,000 Holding
(note a) Shares)

BARMARAS] BB 192,300,0008% B ERR
(FifzEa) (2023: 92,100,0008%)

PolyU Technology Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Consultancy
and Consultancy Guarantee Services
Co. Limited

AR ERR BB HBR AR AR5
ARAE] ARAE

PolyU Translational Hong Kong 2,100,000 Shares 100% 100% = Investment
Research Institutes Holding
Limited (note b)

BARE(E IR BE 2,100,0004% KREZER
AIRAE] (HfzEb)

SEETARE PRC RMB186,435,000 100% 100% - Research and
AR ZERE (Bfsc) (2023: RMB136,435,000) Development

=2 186,435,000 A K& PR A 35
(2023: 136,435,000 A )

PearL Modern TCM Hong Kong 66,350,000 Shares 100% = 100% Research and
Research Limited (2023: 66,150,000 Development
(note d) Shares)

BRI L BE 66,350,0007% I e B 3%
MEFABRAE] (2023: 66,150,0008%)

(Bft5Ed)

PearlL Western Hong Kong 15,520,000 Shares 100% - 100% Investment
Development Holding
Company Limited

BAREERE =B 15,520,0000% KREZER
BIRAE

PearL Technology Hong Kong 14,100,000 Shares 100% - 100% Investment
Partnership Limited (2023: 6,600,000 Shares) Holding
(note e) aiE 14,100,0007% KRBT

(2023: 6,600,0000%)
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries

MEARZIRE (&)

(Cont'd)

Place of
Incorporation/

Particulars of

Proportion of Ownership Interest

FrAtEREm bR

Consolidated

Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest  University  Subsidiary Activity
21T
S/ AL K R#2 meE My A ]
R EYNSIE=T e b BRAFIE BRER ABHA A FEER
# EWAMRIREE PRC $48,550,000 100% - 100% Research and
CRYINABRAE] Development
& 48,550,0007T TR R 2%
# B RESHEM PRC $112,150,000 100% - 100% Research and
CRYINBRAE] Development
Support
& 112,150,0007% R R
2%
# BRI EERY PRC RMB500,000 100% - 100%  Consultancy
CRYNBIRAE] Services
B 500,000 A & AR AR 7S

# These companies are not audited by Ernst & Young.

# LOKERTAIS I IELL MY B A 5 B A E X BAT -

Notes

Ff=E

(a) During the year ended 30 June 2024, the University subscribed for additional 7,500,000 shares and 200,000 shares of PolyU
Enterprise Plus Limited and PolyU Research Limited respectively.
HE2024F6F30HILFE » ABRRINDEINIBATEFR/AS)7,500,0008% & 38 A% & 3B A FA A PR/A 5] 200,0000% & 48
B e

(b) PolyU Translational Research Institutes Limited was incorporated on 2 November 2023.
BAEEMARARABNR2023F 11 H2HKIL -

(c) During the year ended 30 June 2024, the University injected capital of RMB 50,000,000 into 7 /&R T AZ2 7 I|FF 22 Br.
HE2024F6B30HIEEE » KRETFES5000EAREESEE T RERIIFARR

(d) During the year ended 30 June 2024, PolyU Research Limited subscribed for additional 200,000 shares of PearL Modern
TCM Research Limited.
BE2024F6 H30H L FE » BARMABIRA SRR EBE AR P A AR /A 51200,000/8 Z 3B -

(e) During the year ended 30 June 2024, PolyU Enterprise Plus Limited subscribed for additional 7,500,000 shares of Pearl

Technology Partnership Limited.
HZE2024F6H30H LEFEE, SiEBEATEBTIR/ASIZESN :BBEPearl Technology Partnership Limited 7,500,0008% & ## A% °
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Interests in Joint Ventures

SEQTERE

== Consolidated & University A2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F38Tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Share of Net Assets EIEZFEE 37,654 35,986 - -

The following list contains the particulars of joint ventures as defined under note 1.5, all of which are unlisted corporate entities
whose quoted market price are not available, and are considered not individually material. All of these joint ventures are
accounted for using equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

TIDMEISARECARBNEGEQT » WESEQATHIERRTIGRENIELHERER > WHERRELIFEK -
BLESERIEZNRAERZNGEEMHFRRAR °

Proportion of Ownership Interest

FRA bR

Place of Particulars of Consolidated Effectively
Name of Establishment  Issued and Paid up Entity’s Effective Held by Principal
Joint Venture and Operation Capital Interest Subsidiary Activity

BRI R BEETREE e YN
AERERHE =ESuE BRAFIE B ER BEHA FEE
Xi’an Tongli PRC RMB 50% 50% Education and
Technology 30,000,000 (note a) Technology
Enterprise Ltd Development
AZEERR H 30,000,000 (FffzEa) BER
EEZERARAE AR R
TR IR E P s PRC RMB 50% 50% Education

f2) &2z 3,000,000 (note a)
Hh 3,000,000 (BifEEa) BB

ARH

The above entities are not audited by Ernst & Young.

LXK BT EFEIEN LS E AT HEEZ ST -

Note

B

(@)  PearL Western Development Company Limited, a subsidiary of the University, holds 50% of Xi'an Tongli Technology
Enterprise Ltd, which wholly-owns 7§ % 38 3% (] P2 3R 15 12 || 22 5.
AREMBASIBEAAPERFRACDFAALTBERRERERARAG0NER > ALBEERRTERERSA
[RASA|ZEHA AT BB R REENZ0

33 &— The following is summarised financial information for the Consolidated Entity’s interest in joint ventures, based on the amounts

reported in the consolidated financial statements:

TIBEEENRGEQATDNETZVHEMRE » ETERBAN GRSV RERAREHIRIEA :

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#E7Tat) 2024 2023
Carrying Amount of SEQTN

Interests in Joint Ventures T AR E 37,654 35,986
Consolidated Entity's Share of Profits frEREEML

from Operation and Other EEERR KSR

Comprehensive Income REAMME RS 1,287 1,499

@ The surplus or deficit of the joint ventures for the year is dependent on their activity level.

ARSEASNEFRBNBIBDIVANBREEBEZTENEBRR
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20. Non-current Financial Assets

FREERMEE
Consolidated & University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IAF87T5t) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Financial assets carried at RIS AT EMER

amortised cost BE

Debt Securities (GG 6,899,518 8,246,648 6,899,518 8,246,648
Financial assets carried at BARBETA

FVPL BRNEREE

34 e— Institutional Entities, IR
other Equity Securities and HAh IR AE S K
Convertible Loan AR E TR 17,126 9,683 5,626 5,683

6,916,644 8,256,331 6,905,144 8,252,331

@ The University has formed institutional entities with the other UGC-funded universities for collaboration and research purpose, namely (1)
Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited; and (2) Joint University Programmes Admissions System.

The University has minority equity interests through its subsidiary in Avalon Polytom (HK) Limited, Avalon Polymills (HK) Limited, Telefield
Medical Imaging Limited, Immune Materials Limited and Emerging Viral Diagnostics (HK) Limited for the commercialisation of research.
During the year ended 30 June 2024, the University acquired 6.7% and 5% shareholding in Immune Materials Limited and Emerging Viral
Diagnostics (HK) Limited via its subsidiary respectively.

During the year ended 30 June 2024, the University entered into convertible loan agreements with 11 start-up companies via its subsidiary.
The investment period is 3 years with no more than a 2-year extension period at the University’s discretion. The University has the
conversion rights under certain conversion events at an agreed mechanism as stipulated in the convertible loan agreement. The loans are
unsecured and non-interest bearing if the repayment is made upon the maturity date. As at 30 June 2024, no convertible loan had been
matured or converted into shares.

ABHHMBESENNABR I THRBEBETSE @O ABHSBRPOERATRQAARBHESIBER-
NEFEBHENME /A S)$FHAvalon Polytom (HK) Limited » Avalon Polymills (HK) Limited » FEZBEB B HRAS » FE AR AS M
BRSO (F8) BRAT VB BRIENERARREZ(L - B E2024F 6830 L FE  A2BBEKBAT D RIBASIHMARA
B RB2H (F8) BIRAS6.7%R5%EHE

HZE2024F6F30HILEFEE - ABFEBHEHWBASENRYAIABHL] AR ERHE - IREHREIF  AETHNFEBRAELERABB2F
RHARR - RIBAI R ERHZNRE  ABEELERBEHTHA IR EETIERNET - ERAPHEE ZSERABIRKPRA
B ZE2024F6H30H » Wi AR AR SR EIHAL B IR B LMD -

The University has also formed other entities for research purpose, namely (1) The Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel
Limited; (2) Laboratory for Artificial Intelligence in Design Limited; (3) Centre for Advances in Reliability and Safety Limited; and (4) Centre
for Eye and Vision Research Limited.

To transfer University’s research into targeted solutions for the Mainland, the University has established five translational research
institutes in different Mainland cities through collaboration agreements with the local governments: (1) PolyU-Jinjiang Technology and
Innovation Research Institute Company Limited; (2) PolyU-Wenzhou Technology and Innovation Research Institute Company Limited; (3)
PolyU-Hangzhou Technology and Innovation Research Institute Company Limited; (4) PolyU-Wuxi Technology and Innovation Research
Institute Company Limited; and (5) PolyU-Nanjing Technology and Innovation Research Institute Company Limited. The initial startup capital
for these research institutes was provided by the University, while their ongoing operations are supported by the annual funding from the
local government, contingent upon the achievement of pre-defined mutually agreed key performance indicators. Each research institute is
governed by a Board of Directors, the majority of whom are members from the University. All research outputs and intellectual property
developed by these research institutes will contribute to the benefit of the local community.

AREBTNRIL T BB ETHINES 815 (1) FRGERARMZHROBERAS] (2) ATBERFMEMERAE - 3) EmAIFEE
BRARREMBEPOARAE R (4) RREBARHOARAE -

BTBABNAARREBLCLSHBAMTEHENERLT R ABEBEAMBA RIS FEHE  EAMAEMHRIIEBEHER B
FREZAMAVEEMERA (1) BEX (B)I) RMAIRARRARAS  (2) BEX CBM) RMRAIFAERRERAS - (3) BEX (1
M) BAMRIFRAZBRARAS ~ (4) BEX (E) RRAIFARRBERASR (5) BEX (AR) KMEIFMAERBRAS - BLHR
FREVIARM B EEMAREM MEKFEEZARENBANEEESXE  ARESXHIATARESEHEN R RERISRNER
BN BEMARBASHRRNESEER EXZHAEEARBHE - ELMARAFEZNZEM R R RN HERL R SE L
BB HEER -
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21. Current Financial Assets
MESRIEE
Consolidated and University
HERAE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF3ETET) 2024 2023
Financial assets carried at FVPL BRARBEGFAERNEREE
36 «— Trading Securities BEES
Equities Securities and Funds BARESREE 1,164,148 989,466
Fixed Income Securities EEWBAES 530,733 -
1,694,881 989,466
Financial assets carried at amortised cost RIESER AT ENEREE
Debt Securities EF5ES 2,982,766 1,789,399
4,677,647 2,778,865
22. Staff Loans and Bank Loan for On-lending to Staff

FESERREETRHE 2RTENK

0n 27 July 1992, the University entered into an agreement with Hang Seng Bank Limited (the “Bank”) for the granting of loans
to the University for on-lending to qualified staff members. The limit of the facility currently stands at $120 million. The loans
are payable within 12 months and are renewable annually subject to the Bank’s consent.

To be qualified for the loan, a staff member must be over 21 years of age and has been a member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University Superannuation Fund - Part A (“SF (Part A)”) for at least 4 years. The maximum amount of loan to a staff member
is the lower of $1.8 million or 60% of the individual’s superannuation minimum entitlement at the date of the loan application.
If the staff member defaults in repayment, the University can exercise its right to retain an amount equal to such indebtedness
out of any benefits payable to such staff member under the SF (Part A). The repayment terms of staff loans are in agreement
with those applicable to the bank loans. The annual interest rate for staff loans has been maintained at the level to 2% below
the prime rate since 30 January 2002.

ARBEIBERITARAE (TRIT) R1992F7R27THITUEREXN > AIEZRITER > BEEFEFMHRGZEEE - REFA
MERZEEER.2ET - ERZETR12(ER - WEZRITAR - BFEHEAEY -

BFERPFEMZBWELAFN215 > ARFESMEBETIAZERAE (FH) (MEAE (R ) RDLF - BUSER
EMAZESERERI180ETHHRFRFEZRRRETIRZ60%  UREHEESE - MIAREITENELSE » AEFHE
REERRE (RER) 2 BMEFN RINFRAARRIE - S ERZERERARTERIRRES - BB SN2 FHZFKH2002
F1R30 BRI HRERFER2% -

Apart from debt securities carried at amortised cost with maturity date within one year, other securities held by external
investment managers of the University for trading purpose are also classified as current financial assets presented in note 21.

B2 T —FE NSRBI AT BNEFESI) > AEBRBUREKESANFEEEESUREREANF2IH 2RV RBDEMEE -
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23.

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other Receivables

FEWARSR ~ FA4S FRIA R EAth FE IR

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Investment Proceeds Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Interest Receivable
Amounts due from Subsidiaries
Amounts due from Joint Ventures
Amounts due from the UGC
Rates and Government Rent
Capital Grants Receivable
Earmarked Grants Receivable

Supplementary Grants Receivable

Prepayments, Sundry Deposits and
Other Receivables

Current portion

Non-current portion

(AF85ET)

REEIRIE
FEIARTR
FEULFI S
FELS B B 2 S BRIR
BREEAE)RRIEA
BB EEARIA
Z 8 R BT IR
W EEEE
BRI E MR B &
FELSUIES 65 4 B <&

FRIYRRIA ~ FEIRIRE
R ELAth R AR IR

Consolidated &

University K2

2024 2023 2024 2023
197,165 = 197,165 =
611,091 510,072 600,283 500,673
177,748 146,600 177,277 146,249

= = 41,309 28,151
3,283 1,509 3,283 1,509
14,451 14,214 14,451 14,214
- 4,779 - 4,779

7,718 6,739 7,718 6,739

22,930 27,060 22,930 27,060

45,099 52,792 45,099 52,792
333,673 353,472 254,386 299,208

1,368,059 1,064,445 1,318,802 1,028,582
1,330,520 926,796 1,281,263 890,933

37,539 137,649 37,539 137,649
1,368,059 1,064,445 1,318,802 1,028,582

The majority of the Accounts Receivable and Amounts due from the UGC are without fixed terms of repayment and are

expected to be recovered within one year. Apart from the prepayment for fixed assets of $37.5 million (2023: $137.6

million) included in prepayments which is expected to be capitalised as fixed assets, the remaining prepayments are

expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. All Amounts due from Subsidiaries and Joint

Ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AEDNEKIRIAR BB ESRIFEEEERY > LFRHAARIFAWKE - BRFAARIEFE E & Z B RIAMN0.375
87 (2023:1.376f%t) MBI EAMEAEE  HERNRNRIEFRAM EARORER AFAX - FIERKHEBASDREE
AE) Z R SELR - B RIRERERE-
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24, Cash and Deposits with Banks

ReRBITERK
Consolidated & University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AF3&7cst) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash at Banks and on Hand RERIBITER 621,377 317,518 535,700 200,242
Short-term Deposits BHRER 4,148,528 4,120,386 4,027,462 4,013,270
Cash and Deposits with Banks inthe — BfFEAARERZ

Statement of Financial Position RERIRITER 4,769,905 4,437,904 4,563,162 4,213,512
Less: Short-term Deposits with " =ER%

Maturity over Three Months ElH 2 FEHATERR (2,574,806)  (2,430,062)  (2,498,000)  (2,352,931)

Cash and Cash Equivalents in HERERANZ

the Statement of Cash Flows HERIREEEY 2,195,099 2,007,842 2,065,162 1,860,581
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24,

Cash and Deposits with Banks (Cont'd)
RERBITER (B])

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

MEEBELNEENHER

The table below details changes in the Consolidated Entity’s and University’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Statement of Cash Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

THRBIGANRABRERA TG FLS

BERABREMERTOBSMETHELNRSR -

Consolidated &

3 > BERERIFRELE - MEFPEENRE - HBETURKIE SRR

Bank Loan
for On-
Loans and lending to
Lease Borrowings Staff
Liabilities (note 25) (note 22) Total
Bk BEHETHES
HE B8  ZIRITEMR
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#ETat) &7 (BfzE25) (BfzE22) 4ast
At 1 July 2022 202257 A1 B4ER 27,003 420,171 12,330 459,504
Changes from financing cash flows: BEIRERE 2 EE)
Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending to Staff 85 F2 8 ZR1TEX - - 120 120
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending BEREEETHEES 2
to Staff IRITER - - (2,510) (2,510)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BRAEHSEANTS  (19,453) - (19,453)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEEREEZF 2D (330) - - (330)
Total changes from financing cash flows MEFIRE M= 2SR (19,783) - (2,390)  (22,173)
Other changes: Hfth &
Interest expenses FERX 330 - - 330
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into NEEFNETHEFTEAY
new leases during the year THEERS 218 10,648 = = 10,648
Decrease in lease liabilities from terminating REERIEFASRENMN
a lease during the year HEEHZED (756) - - (756)
At 30 June 2023 20236 B30 H 48R 17,642 420,171 9,940 447,553
Changes from financing cash flows: BEIRERMEZEE)
Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending to Staff 85 FE 8 ZR1TEX - - 340 340
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending BEEETHRHE 2
to Staff SRITEM - = (1,600) (1,600)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERAEHREZEARNRD  (15566) - - (15,566)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEEREEZF S (312) - - (312)
Total changes from financing cash flows MEHIRERE 2 SEiREE (15,878) - (1,260)  (17,138)
Other changes: Hfth &
Interest expenses FERX 312 - - 312
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into ANEEFEESRENN
new leases during the year THEEFE 218 9,855 - - 9,855
At 30 June 2024 2024F6 H30H #5685 11,731 420,171 8,680 440,582




24. Cash and Deposits with Banks (Cont'd)
RERBITER ()

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

At 1 July 2022
Changes from financing cash flows:

Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending
to Staff

Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending
to Staff

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid
Total changes from financing cash flows
Other changes:

Interest expenses

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the year

At 30 June 2023
Changes from financing cash flows:

Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending
to Staff

Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending
to Staff

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid
Total changes from financing cash flows
Other changes:

Interest expenses

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the year

At 30 June 2024

(AT #ETat)
2022F7H 1 B4EER
MERER=E 2 &) ¢
HEYHHEY
SRITEM
BIEEETHHRE Y
RITEMR
ENHEEREEZELRD
ENHEEREEZFEED
MEFIRERE 2 SEiREE
Hith#&s)
BRI
AREEFMEASRTENN
THEE 2180
2023 F6H30H 458k
MEHRERE 2 &) -
HESHRE Y
RITEMX
BEEEFHHE Y
RITER
ENHEEREEZERLD
ENHEEREEZFEHD
MEIRERE 2 SEiE%E
Hithis) :
BRI

REEFEE SIS
MHEEFS M

2024F6 H30H 458k

PolyU Financial Report I8 A BA753R & 2023/24

University X2

Bank Loan
for On-
Loans and lending to
Lease Borrowings Staff
Liabilities (note 25) (note 22) Total
BRk @#ETHEHES
HE BE ZIRTER
B (FyzE25) (BfzE22) FEE
23,569 420,171 12,330 456,070
- - 120 120
- - (2,510) (2,510)
(17,143) - - (17,143)
(241) - - (241
(17,384) - (2,390) (19,774
241 - - 241
6,418 - - 6,418
12,844 420,171 9,940 442,955
- - 340 340
- - (1,600) (1,600
(13,244) = = (13,244
(178) - = (178
(13,422) - (1,260) (14,682
178 - - 178
8,856 - - 8,856
8,456 420,171 8,680 437,307
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25.

Loans and Borrowings

ERREER
Consolidated and University
HARKE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT85T 2024 2023
Government Loans BFER 420,171 420,171

Repayable: 838 :
Within 1 Year or On Demand —FASNREREE 44,141 -
After 1 Year but within 2 Years —FREMENRN L4141 YVRVA
After 2 Years but within 5 Years MEERERAER 132,422 132,422
After 5 Years hFE 199,467 243,608
376,030 420,171
420,171 420,171

Government loans were loans from the HKSAR Government to the University for the provision of self-financed
post-secondary programmes. The loans are repayable in twenty equal annual instalments over a period of twenty years
after the final drawn down date of each respective loan. The loans for the first ten years are interest-free, and charged at
a “no-gain-no-loss” interest rate to be determined by the Government starting from 2018 and 2019. The “no-gain-no-loss”
interest rate as at 30 June 2024 is 2.42% per annum (2023: 2.30% per annum). The loans are secured by two buildings as
at 30 June 2024. In 2020, the University entered into supplemental agreements with the Government for an interest-free
deferral of loan repayment for a period of two years effective from the repayment due dates in 2020. In 2022, the University
entered into supplemental agreements with the Government for a further two years interest-free deferral of loan repayment
effective from the repayment due dates in 2022. Accordingly, the next loan repayments will be due in 2024.

BREREHERFITHRER/FAE - AT ASRMEEEES FRENER - ENEREBEENREZIRIVEEM20E
TS HREEE - ZIEERNEI10ERE > 8R58H2018K% 201 9 EMBURRT LA TS &S 1 FI R BRI S - HiZE 202456 H30HM
MEig2E MR A S E2.42% (2023:552.30%)  ZIEE 202456 B30 B LAMRIEF/EIRIR - KB BTN 2020F 5T I
7hiE > APEMEN R RIEEERERTHE » R2020FEMEIHAER - KBEBUFR2022F T F R - EHREN
R BEEEEERRH - R2022FERRIBEEN - Fit » T—REESFIGH2024FEIH -



26.

Accounts and Other Payables

FEf AR

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Accounts and Other Payables
Investment Proceeds Payable
Accounts Payable

Funds from Subsidiaries
Amounts due to the UGC

Earmarked Grants Refundable

Retention Monies and Other
Payables

Financial Liabilities Measured at
Amortised Cost

Contract Liabilities

Deposits Received for Banquet
and Consultancy Services

Tuition and Other fees
Received

Lease Liabilities

Payable:
Within 1 year

After 1 year

PolyU Financial Report I8 A BA753R & 2023/24

Consolidated &

University K22

(LAF#ITat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
FE 13 BR X
"B e RIE 355,402 - 355,402 =
FETERFR 538,313 480,977 464,626 420,118
FEAT Bt 8 2 5] BR 1A - - 1,105,032 952,879
[ E ZRRR
FERIEE RS 175,299 167,903 175,299 167,903
{REE & & ELAth FE AR TR 188,951 169,056 146,153 133,707
DA SH R A st 2RI B R
afE 1,257,965 817,936 2,246,512 1,674,607
BHNEE
BEWERNES
KRS RS 36,032 52,867 - -
EUERRIZEN
Hith& A 612,346 470,746 564,931 430,880
648,378 523,613 564,931 430,880
1,906,343 1,341,549 2,811,443 2,105,487
HE&E 11,731 17,442 8,456 12,844
1,918,074 1,358,991 2,819,899 2,118,331
FEf
—&ER 1,914,186 1,354,158 2,816,740 2,116,123
—FE 3,888 4,833 3,159 2,208
1,918,074 1,358,991 2,819,899 2,118,331
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26.

Accounts and Other Payables (Cont'd)
FEATERTR (4%)

(a) Accounts and Other Payables

—

FEATRRTR

All Accounts and Other Payables, apart from lease liabilities of the Consolidated Entity and the University of $3.9 million
(2023: $4.6 million) and $3.2 million (2023: $2.2 million), are expected to be settled within one year. Funds from Subsidiaries
amounting to $1,105.0 million (2023: $952.9 million) mainly represent the surplus funds of these subsidiaries that are being
managed centrally by the University for generating investment return.

FR4na R A2 Y3905 75(2023 : 4608 7T)MI3208 75(2023 : 220 & o)A BB EIN  FTAEITIRRFEFT IS E—F NS ° MY
BATIRE ZARERA11.0501875(2023 : 9.529(57c) BT ERHASEPEE N EL IRERIFRAMBASIBREE

Contract Liabilities
BHaE

The Consolidated Entity and University receive tuition and other fees in advance from students and deposits from customers
for banquet and consultancy services. The tuition and other fees received is initially recognised as contract liability and is
recognised as income over the duration of the courses. Service income is recognised when the relevant service is rendered.
All contract liabilities, apart from contract liabilities of the Consolidated Entity of $0.2 million as of 30 June 2023, are expected
to be recognised as income within one year.

GERRABNBLE RESNEMRFBNEFHIRRINEZE BN EM & ARIRE - WEINEENHME ARTERAENE
& > T 7E R T2 BRI FERR A U » BRFFI A TR 1R (A AB B AR 75 IS HERR < PRAR S B22023F 6 H30H208 T E N EE - FRFtFIAE X
BERE—FNERSBA-

Movements in Contract Liabilities

BHEENES
Consolidated && University X2
2024 2023 2024 2023

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATFE7ET)
Balance at 1 July 7818 458R 523,613 451,860 430,880 355,788
Decrease in contract liabilities ESEER)

as a result of recognising FHEHNEAE

income during the year that EERMEIER A

was included in the contract L ONTTELES

liabilities at the beginning BHaE

of the year SR> (515,459) (444,007) (430,880) (355,788)
Increase in contract liabilities REATFEUR

as a result of receiving tuition B E K HA

and other fees and deposits in ERFT5 359

advance during the year BHEEEM 640,224 515,760 564,931 430,880
Balance at 30 June 6B 303 %8R 648,378 523,613 564,931 430,880




26.

Accounts and Other Payables (Cont'd)

FEATERSR (48)

(c) Lease Liabilities
HEaE

PolyU Financial Report I8 A BA753R & 2023/24

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Consolidated Entity and University's lease liabilities
at the end of the current reporting periods:

TREIGEERABNEERENEANREB 2T TS AHR

(In thousands of
Hong Kong
dollars)

Within 1 year

After 1 year but
within 2 years

After 2 years but
within 5 years

Less: Total
future
interest
expenses

Present value
of lease
liabilities

OAF
T
i)

— 2R
—FEE
MR
MEEE
HER

W R
*IJ l%\
#F
3R

EEET

5

BB

Consolidated &

University K22

2024

2023

2024

2023

Contractual
Lease Undiscounted

Contractual
Lease Undiscounted

Contractual

Lease Undiscounted

Contractual
Lease Undiscounted

Liabilities Cash Outflow Liabilities Cash Outflow Liabilities Cash Outflow Liabilities Cash Outflow

ak an Bx ak

HE  KIFRZ HE  KFRZ HE  KFRZ HE  KFRZ

BE HmERE BFE KIRE BE RERE BE RINS
7,841 8,011 12,809 13,209 5,297 5390 10,636 10,923
2,680 2,740 4,165 4,227 1,949 2,003 2,208 2,219
1,210 1,222 468 472 1,210 1,222 = =
11,731 11,973 17,442 17,908 8,456 8,615 12,844 13,142
(242) (466) (159) (298)
11,731 17,442 8,456 12,844
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37 &— 27.

Provision for Employee Benefits

STEFRE
27.1  Provision for Employee Benefits
ETERE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT
Leave Accruals FE&T R HA
Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes R ERABRMKETE
(note 27.3) (B 5E27.3)
Contract Gratuities #mEN &
Salaries o
Long Service Payment and Others REARRTS & R E Ath
Payable: FEfT
Within 1 Year —FR
After 1 Year —F1E
27.2 Employee Benefits Assets
ETEAEE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XT38
Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes REEHEBINGTE
(note 27.3) (Bff5£27.3)

Consolidated &4 University AZ

2024 2023 2024 2023
404,460 387,529 365,925 352,082
77,465 100,650 77,465 100,650
172,153 142,430 172,076 142,394
81,072 74,332 36,243 27,399
16,803 8,982 5,842 918
751,953 713,923 657,551 623,443
422,028 366,755 330,313 281,051
329,925 347,168 327,238 342,392
751,953 713,923 657,551 623,443

Consolidated and University

FERKE
2024 2023
837 816

For provision of retirement benefits to its employees, the University operates and makes relevant contributions to six retirement schemes.
Please refer to the respective notes for the contribution and benefit details of the six schemes as follows:

BRARMENGET » RBSESTRME T AERAFEELAEHER - AR RAGEINMARIETFS  F2REMENT -

Defined benefit retirement schemes

FIE @R IRETEl
Mixed Service Pension Scheme (“MSP”)
RaRFBERREEE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (“ASRG”)

EBRBTAEHEE TRIREF8I(TE#BI & TRARE])
Defined contribution retirement schemes
RERFTERMKETE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation Fund - Part B (“SF (Part B)”)

ERETIARBENRE(CHR(NERE(ZH)))

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Provident Fund (“ASPF”)

BEEREBETAEBHPE T AER(THBE T AER])
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”)
EEIMEATEREI(MafEEET21)

Variable benefit retirement scheme
A] & 1@ F R RET 2l

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation Fund - Part A (“SF (Part A)”)

FRETIASERME(RR(NERE(RE))

Notes

M aE

27.3.1

27.3.2

27.4

27.4

27.4

27.5
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

STEFRE (&)
27.3 Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes

27.3.1

FEBFRIAGTE

The University makes contributions to the following two defined benefit retirement schemes, i.e., Mixed Service
Pension Scheme (“MSP”) and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme
(“ASRG").

ARBLIRANUTMIRERERBMEMFEETHR - ZMIBEF SIS EERFEMEHERBFREIAZHPS T
RIREETEI(MEEE 8 TRIRE ) ©

Consolidated and University

AR KE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF87TET) 2024 2023
Mixed Service Pension Scheme BE RS RIRETE 77,465 100,650
Defined Benefit Liability as at 30 June R6B30HMAERIEE 77,465 100,650
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University EHBEBETITKE

Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity HENE TRINE

Scheme =&l 837 816
Defined Benefit Asset as at 30 June R6BHMNARERFIEE 837 816

Mixed Service Pension Scheme

RERITRIAEETE

The MSP operates under Chapter 90 of the Law, Pensions (Special Provisions) (Hong Kong Polytechnic) Ordinance
(“the Ordinance”). The Ordinance was enacted to accommodate the pensionable Civil Servants who were seconded
to serve the University and continued to work in the University after secondments with their pensionable status
remained undisturbed. The scheme benefits are financed entirely by the University and no assets have been set
aside to meet the scheme benefits.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a monthly pension payment based on a multiple of his final
salary and years of service that he provided.

The scheme exposes the University to interest rate risk, inflation risk and longevity risk.

R RBERMNETEIRBE B IEFFEI0ERMNE(FRIRE) (B BE TG (MFE ) EE - LG SEET
BEIEREERNATE > REGAIRREBEIARSIEE > BENEREERAIZHE - it8l@iEHAEX
i REIHZAFRBEEMU I EIEF -

EUETEIR - ERMEEFRESEBRERARZNR  BEAESAHINRERBEENFERE -

IEEH Bl @ KRB AIEFRER  BEWRRMREESELE -

m
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27. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

STHEMBE (8)
27.3.1 Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont'd)

(@

BARBRAEE ()

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:
EM AR RIETD 2 BERM T -

Consolidated and University

FAaRKE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XT38 2024 2023
Present Value of Wholly ERRBEET
Unfunded Obligations MIRE 77,465 100,650
Defined Benefit Liability as at 30 June R6A30HMARERFEE 77,465 100,650

A portion of the above liability was expected to be settled after more than one year. However, it was not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as future pension payments would also
relate to future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. Therefore, the entire amount was classified
as a non-current liability.

LS EERBEIFRIBE - AT - BRARROERS(TRERKIBFERRRTREE AR > HAEFERBEE
RH12ME BB EEER O R - Bt > LEBREBAAIFFRBELE -

Movements in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations were as follows:
ATERMNETIRENZEEMT -

Consolidated and University

AR KE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XT38 2024 2023
As at 1 July K78 1H 100,650 111,939
Remeasurements BiEtE
Actuarial Gain arising from REAOGEBRERREEH 2
Changes in Demographic Assumptions TEE R (16,221) (3,473)
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) arising from RE TS ERBREE 2
Changes in Financial Assumptions TEEE I/ (RER) 341 (3,875)
Actuarial Loss arising from REEERZ
Experience BEEEE 2,386 6,005
(13,494) (1,343)
Interest Cost ISV %N 3,299 2,957
Benefits Paid B2 (12,990) (12,903)
As at 30 June MR6B30H 77,465 100,650

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2024 was 4.2 years (2023: 5.1 years).
AERMEENR20245F6 A30HMETFIHFER %4.25 (2023 : 5.15) °
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

STHEMBE (8)
27.3.1 Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont'd)

(©

BARBRAEE ()

Amounts recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement and the Statement of Comprehensive Income were
as follows:
FERRERIER ZEN @R P HEDAOBENT -

Consolidated and University

HARKE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#ITat) 2024 2023
Amounts recognised under FEWZERIER Y
Teaching and Research BB RBH
in the Income and Expenditure Statement: PRz %8 -
Net Interest on RERIFEEZ
Net Defined Benefit Liability IS 3,299 2,957
Amounts recognised in EHEMEERE P
the Other Comprehensive Income: MERREEE ¢
Actuarial Gain BEEER (13,494) (1,343)

Total Defined Benefit (Income)/Cost FREBFI(UTA)/ A 4258 (10,195) 1,614

113
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217.

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

STHEMBE (8)
27.3.1 Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont'd)

(d)

BARBRAEE ()

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis were as follows:

EXGEERRAFRESHAT :

As at As at

30 June 2024 30 June 2023

20246 H30H FR2023%F6H30H

Discount Rate IRER 3.4% p.a. 3.5% p.a.
BE3.L% B5E3.5%

Future Pension Increases RIGRIREFIE 2.5% p.a. 2.5% p.a.
FE2.5% F%£2.5%

Mortality JETER Hong Kong Hong Kong
Life Tables 2022 Life Tables 2021

B AO%HFR2022 FEAOEARZR2021

The below analysis shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

TSR EERNBETHEARERREINBREZ D

Impact on Defined

Benefit Obligation
HAERANEEHTE

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption

(EEE=L) ERERI8 0 {ERER R

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFEITET) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Discount Rate IR 0.25% (847) (1,322) 866 1,354
Future Pension Increases REEIREFHIE 0.25% 793 1,257 (779)  (1,234)

. e 1 Year

Mortality FET v (3,767) (3,128) 3,780 3,093

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and
therefore it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

LAFRESTEENERBRERRED2RAEERE > FLHEERRZENERMTIRBHEER -
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27. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

ETEFEE ()
27.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme

(a)

ERETXSHS TRIkEE

The ASRG is administered by an independent trustee with its assets held separately from those of the University. The
ASRG is funded by contributions from the University in accordance with an independent actuary's recommendation based
on periodic actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the ASRG was at 31 December 2022 and
was prepared using the attained age method. The actuarial valuation indicated that the scheme assets were sufficient to
meet the scheme obligations.

Members of the ASRG are entitled to the scheme benefits upon normal retirement, early retirement, ill-health or death.
The benefits are calculated based on a multiple of their final salary and years of service in the scheme.

The scheme exposes the University to investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

WS TERENEERHEABNEESFFA - THBIIZFEAEE - B8 TRASHAASBREBIIEEAMER
MIFEMAEMRL ZBESHEIMHN - RPN BINEEAEREE2022F12A310 ) WREETRERR ° ZIFE
ffEEL - FHEINBEERHTHEERIE

ATEIRBAIRERRENR  RREIX - REWS W ESEN - B ERERE T EMEIRNSREFMMRBEEEM
RAE -

bRt B S R FIRIRE R  FIZRELRR AR #r B = -

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:
TEM BRI RED 2 BERAT -

Consolidated and University

HEARKE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT 7Tat) 2024 2023
Fair Value of Scheme Assets SEIEENAREE 1,290 1,786
Present Value of Wholly or Partly Funded ZHH L BEEE
Obligations HIRE (453) (970)
Defined Benefit Asset as at 30 June MR6A3HMNFAERFEE 837 816

A portion of the above asset was expected to be recovered after more than one year. However, it was not practicable
to segregate this amount from the amounts recoverable in the next twelve months. Therefore, the entire amount was
classified as a non-current asset. In addition, the expected employer contribution by the University to the scheme for
the financial year ending 30 June 2025 is nil.

LtiER ) BEEFREAFE 1 FRULE - 2R > EIRREERS A B BERTEARZR 1218 B B9 BUREER R O - FEIE > tEBERZ BN
AJERENEE - b5 » KBEZE 202556 30 H I BAEE P B8INTRREEIHAAE -
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27. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
ETERNRE (&)

27.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)

FRETIXNZHYPETRIKEE ()

(b) Movements in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations were as follows:

RERMEBERENEHUT -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

As at 1 July
Remeasurements

Actuarial Gain arising from
Changes in Financial Assumptions

Actuarial Gain arising from
Experience

Interest Cost
Benefits Paid and Payable
As at 30 June

Consolidated and University

HARKE
UAF385e4t) A 2023
R7A1H 970 1,551
BifstE
REVHBREREHM 2
BB RER - a7)
REEEEZ
IEERER (15) (16)
(15) (33)
B A 36 38
Bt & BTt F (538) (586)
R6A30H 453 970

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2024 was 1.4 years (2023: 1.4

years).

RERMNEENR2024F6 B30 HINETFOERE1.45 (2023 : 1.45F)
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

BETENRE (8

27.3.2

PolyU Financial Report I8 A BA753R & 2023/24

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)

FRETXEHYPETRIKEE ()

Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets were as follows:

AEEENAABEZSNT

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

As at 1 July

Interest Income

Return on Scheme Assets,
excluding Interest Income

Benefits Paid and Payable

As at 30 June

Scheme Assets consist of the following:

FEIBERETIIRIE

Equities

Fixed Income Securities

Cash

Total

(XF#ETTAH)

R7R1H
FSUA

HERF S UARY
ATEIEEDR

B R ESEF
R6B30H

e
BEWAES
RE

Consolidated and University

HZARKE
2024 2023
1,786 2,338
69 59
(27) (25)
(538) (586)
1,290 1,786

Consolidated and University

FARKE
2024 2023
% %
43 43
51 52
6 5
100 100

As at 30 June 2024, 100% of equities and 0% of fixed income securities had quoted prices in active markets (2023:

100% and 0% respectively).

1R2024FE6H30H > 100%R9F%

0% EIE WA RESFRIERTISHRE (2023 : 55%3100%K0%)
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217.

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

BETENRE (8)

27.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)
FEETAZHBE TRASE ()

(e)

Amounts recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement and the Statement of Comprehensive Income were

as follows:

EEEWR@mRPHEDOBEENT ¢

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Amounts recognised under
Management & General in the

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Net Interest on Net Defined
Benefit Asset

Amounts recognised in
the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial Gain

Return on Scheme Assets,
excluding Interest Income

Total Defined Benefit Income

(LA TRt)

TEWSZBRIR I AY
EER—ARIER
FREEERR 5] -

RERMFEEZ
FHR

AEHEZEKZ T
HERREEE ¢

BERER

HBRF BRAR
FTEIEE LR

FRERFIRALEE

Consolidated and University

HEARKE
2024 2023
(33) (21)
(33) (21)
(15) (33)
27 25
12 (8)

(21) (29)
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27. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

ETEFEE ()
27.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont'd)

(f)

FRETXEHYPETRIKEE ()

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis were as follows:

BEARBERRAFKEDHTAT ¢

As at As at
30 June 2024 30 June 2023

R20245F6H30H  1R2023FE6H30H

. 4.0% p.a. 4.1% p.a.
IH =R

Discount Rate IR St 0% i

- _ 2.5% p.a. 2.5% p.a.

Future Salary Increases REFEFHIE 2.5 E2.5%

The below analysis shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

TISAERINEEHENBERREBNFREZ D

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF3ETTET) HAETENSENTE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
{FRER &N R38N (EE-HS

2024 2023 2024 2023

Discount Rate IR 0.25% (1) (3) 2 3
Future Salary Increases RRFFHE 0.25% 2 3 (m (3)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated
and therefore it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

LR ES T EERSREERREEERARERE 0 FILHEERRZENERMEIRAEEA
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217.

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

BETENRE (8)

27.4

Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes

FEMFRIRGE

The University operates two defined contribution retirement schemes, i.e., The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Superannuation Fund - Part B and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Provident Fund ("ASPF”)
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. Both schemes are administered by independent trustees.
The members of the two schemes and the University are required to make contributions at fixed percentages of the
members’ salaries to the respective schemes. The University's contributions to the two schemes vest in accordance
with their respective vesting scales as stipulated under the scheme rules. The University also guarantees the members
of the ASPF an interest at a rate of not less than 4% per annum to members’ fund balances. As at 30 June 2024, the
income from the investments under the ASPF was sufficient to produce interest at the rate of 4% per annum and so no
scheme liability was recognised at year-end. The University’s contributions to these two defined contribution retirement
schemes for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 were $15.4 million (2023: $16.7 million).

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance and not covered by the
University’s other retirement schemes. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
three independent trustees and comprises two member classes - Basic and Class A. The mandatory contributions from
Basic and Class A members and the University vest immediately while the University’s voluntary contributions for Class
A members to the MPF Scheme vest in accordance with the vesting scale as stipulated in the participation agreements
of the MPF Scheme. The University’s contributions to the MPF Scheme for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 were
$285.8 million (2023: $254.4 million).

ERERRTEEGT  ABEAMIBREEIEMRTE 2BAFEETIARSBENRSE (28 REEETIASHHE
INES (THHMETIAES)) - MIBFTEIEMBIISEAEIE  ABRHBZHENEMBENFHFSELEEER S
ZEREEBIETEIA - PR E Z AR EEEE B ERF B 2 A RNRENRBRTTE - KB EEHEE T A
B BRI T ESAORENTESERZLANER - HE2024F6H30H  HEE TABREMNREWARMEESE
FRA%BEIF) 2 EUE AR RIE R B A& - R2024F 65300 L AERE » KB FWRIERE fEURN B 2 HEA
1,540E 75 (2023:1,67087T) ©

ERHEAEERE BRI T RBRILAFIM AR EE (HEEEEE ) - AR ERKHEEEMRAE HitBIRETE
RIENE TIRMMRIE - SRE BT 8 A —REMRCEMRETE) A EIZ B SEERER RPEER B A =IBITZ5
NEE - FHEINERERI R FEERIL S » MR AZATEHAR S AR EIRFRE PR S - K2R SR RERIR S
HERMEH MERMEERZRE > AMRIERARE S S 2B RNRE R R E - R2024 F6A30H L MKEE » K2
R BT 8 2 HtR%32.858(5 7T (2023:2.544(F5T) -
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Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)

STEFRE (&)
27.5 Variable Benefit Retirement Scheme

AR RRIRG B

The University also makes contributions to a variable benefit retirement scheme, i.e., The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University Superannuation Fund - Part A (“SF (Part A)"). The SF (Part A), which was restructured on 31 March 1995,
becomes “self-balancing” in that over time liabilities will automatically equal assets, much akin to a defined contribution
retirement scheme. The restructuring has limited the University’s liability to the sum of the Aggregate Guaranteed
Amounts (i.e. “normal” leaving service benefits as at 31 March 1995) and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts (i.e. the
sum of each member’s Minimum Amount, which is an amount equal to 5% x final annual salary x years of fund services
following 31 March 1995). No additional cash injection to the SF (Part A) by the University is required unless the market
value of the fund assets is lower than such liability, the occurrence of which is very unlikely.

The SF (Part A) is funded by contributions from the University and the members at fixed percentages of the members'’
salaries. The University's contributions to the SF (Part A) for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 were $14.0 million
(2023: $16.5 million). The latest independent actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2023 indicated that the fund assets
were sufficient to meet the aggregate vested liability and the regular contributions together with the fund assets
were expected to be sufficient to meet the sum of the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts and the Aggregate Minimum
Amounts throughout the three-year period after 31 December 2023. As at 30 June 2024, the net assets of the SF (Part A)
amounting to $655.4 million (2023: $739.7 million) were sufficient to meet the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts of $15.2
million (2023: $21.1 million) and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts of $127.3 million (2023: $140.4 million).

RENGATEEMNEAGE DFRETIRBERE (FH) (NEARE (FH) 1) FREHR-EBHRE (FLH) R1995%F3
B31BELIERT > SR TEENRE . BEZFE ETNEEERNEFIRNERE  BRAEHREMGEIEM - ZIETIE
ARENBERNEBMAERE BIRER1995F3A318 NEE) B2 RISET) BESEHER IEREZHEHEZ
> HHER5% x REFH x 1995F3ANARNERE ZRBFFE) <@ - [FIFRREEEITSBERNLEE &
AIRBEASREBARE (FH) TAFIES BREFEROEETHRFEM -

BIRE (FR) DHAZRAEMBRBENFHFEEHETEB D LAV - 8122024 F6H30H L TBFE » KEHIRIK
& (F$8) 21,4008 7T (2023:1,65087T) °1R2023F12A31H Z BRI HAMIB I B R MEIEL - BREEERUE
NHEBEREE RETERRNESEEERTEHEREMUEMN2023F12831BE3FANARERERERERE R
- 122024 FE6F301 - BIRE (F1E) BEFEA6.554E 7T (2023:7.397E7T) » B LFEN1,5208 7T (2023:2,11087T)
HOAR(REE BIZA R 1.27318 7T (2023 : 1.404187T) HIAR R ECENEE -
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28. Deferred Income

IRAEUTA
Consolidated &&
38 Capital Grants
Research Earmarked Other Grants & from
Block Matching Research Earmarked AA&lBlock Government Donations
Grants Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies and Others Total
RS
REGE
fﬁ?,% E Hith i - 4E(E B
(In thousands of (XF B2hg fic ¥ B EERR KRAEIR 1t £z
Hong Kong dollars) HBITET) WEhE  WEIE fHBNE e EREM B R EA, o
At 1 July 2022 R2022 75 1H - 113,904 312,969 50,720 3,317,138 341,643 197,006 4,333,380
Subventions/Donations B UYXEELX
Received or Receivable 1&7R/45HE 3,349,845 60,428 305,559 78,356 373,065 583,893 257,893 5,009,039
Recognised as Income ~ ZARFFERER
for the Year ZUWA (3,099,135) (38,101)  (201,534) (64,565) (4,661) (540,171)  (207,819) (4,155,986)
Transferred to HIRE
Deferred Capital Funds iRIEEAESE (250,710) (1,111) (18,800) (844) (371,447) (37,975)  (13,446) (694,333)
At 30 June 2023 12202356 H30H - 135,120 398,194 63,667 3,314,095 347,390 233,634 4,492,100
Subventions/Donations EUXELFEIL
Received or Receivable 1&71/4E8RH 3,339,849 64,742 337,184 66,490 306,078 630,299 293,127 5,037,769
Recognised as Income ARG ERER
for the Year ZBA (3,028,585) (41,699) (277,489)  (55,755) (15,524)  (599,896) (223,632) (4,242,580)
Transferred to RS
Deferred Capital Funds JEIEZAE S (311,264)  (1,206) (6,952) (241)  (396,924) (46,419)  (50,778)  (813,784)
At 30 June 2024 12202456 H30H - 156,957 450,937 74,161 3,207,725 331,374 252,351 4,473,505
To be Recognised
R E
Balance at 30 June 2023 32023F6H30H
Within 1 Year —FRN - 45,233 149,627 63,667 555,775 284,062 98,511 1,196,875
After 1 Year —F1E = 89,887 248,567 - 2,758,320 63,328 135,123 3,295,225

- 135,120 398,194 63,667 3,314,095 347,390 233,634 4,492,100

Balance at 30 June 2024 1220246 H30H
Within 1 Year —FR = 53,476 230,894 74,161 940,855 281,816 122,516 1,703,718
After 1 Year —F1 - 103,481 220,043 - 2,266,870 49,558 129,835 2,769,787
- 156,957 450,937 74,161 3,207,725 331,374 252,351 4,473,505

@ The University received a one-off capital grant, the UGC Hostel Development Fund (“HDF”), for two hostel development projects at Ho Man
Tin Slope of $1,268.4 million and Kowloon Tong of $1,668.2 million, totalling $2,936.6 million in February 2019. The HDF and related investment
return from the investment on unspent balance of HDF are transferred to deferred income upon receipt or accrual. The amounts spent on capital
expenditure are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the student hostels when they are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

During the year ended 30 June 2024, investment return of $80.7 million (2023: $102.6 million) from the investment on unspent balance of HDF
were recognised as Deferred Income. The capital expenditure spent during the year ended 30 June 2024 for the two student hostel projects
transferred to Deferred Capital Funds was $278.2 million (2023: $77.1 million).

ABES—RERSE IHEEESERES AREEMEBSIER > —EEQXEMEEER12.684F 7T —EENEERER16.682[F
70> MIEIREE2019F2 BB HB £ 529.366E 7T - BEE XRESRRAREANES ZRESHENEMRERR  EIRESEHFES
BN -EETNEFARAXERRINTHASRELEEAES  RIEBPABEENIRERIEREESMARERRIBMEENTEERERS
LN

BE2024F6H30A 2 FE - REREANTES B REZHERNIREEHR0.807/2 7T (2023 :1.026{870) EMRBELUIA - #ZE2024F6H30HZ
FEBAREERESHMERERSHENEARRRS2.782(57T (2023:0.771{87T) °
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Deferred Income (Cont'd)

RIEWA (£48)
University A2
38 Capital Grants
Research Earmarked Other Grants & from
Block Matching Research Earmarked AA&IBlock Government Donations
Grants Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies and Others Total
ERwEE
REGE
bt 7’% YEE Hitth  H03E - 4 B
(In thousands of (AF B2 i) R EERER RHIEIE g Ei=l
Hong Kong dollars) #BITat) fBhE HEhE fHBNE fHBNE BRI B et ARt
At 1 July 2022 R2022F7H1H - 113,718 312,969 50,720 3,317,138 223,673 196,132 4,214,350
Subventions/Donations EUXELFELX
Received or Receivable &i/188 3,349,845 60,037 305,559 78,356 373,065 520,532 253,047 4,940,441
Recognised as Income ~ ASFEHER
for the Year ZWA (3,099,135) (37,813) (201,534) (64,565) (4,661) (467,225) (204,325) (4,079,258)
Transferred to RS
Deferred Capital Funds RIEEAEE (250,710) (1,111) (18,800) (844) (371,447) (37,975) (13,446) (694,333)
At 30 June 2023 1R202356 8308 - 134831 398,19 63667 3314095 239,005 231408 4,381,200
Subventions/Donations EUXELFELX
Received or Receivable &/1888 3,339,849 63,084 337,184 66,490 306,078 571,960 288,216 4,972,861
Recognised as Income ~ ASFEHER
for the Year ZWA (3,028,585)  (41,488) (277,489) (55,755) (15,524) (531,962) (221,075) (4,171,878)
Transferred to EHIRE
Deferred Capital Funds IRIEEARES (311,264) (1,206) (6,952) (241) (396,924) (46,419) (50,778) (813,784)
At 30 June 2024 120246 H30H - 155,221 450,937 74,161 3,207,725 232,584 247,771 4,368,399
To be Recognised
R
Balance at 30 June 2023 j22023F6H30H
Within 1 Year —ER - 44,944 149,627 63,667 555,775 175,677 96,285 1,085,975
After 1 Year —F1% o 89,887 248,567 - 2,758,320 63,328 135,123 3,295,225

- 134,831 398,194 63,667 3,314,095 239,005 231,408 4,381,200

Balance at 30 June 2024 72202468308
Within 1 Year —FR - 51,740 230,894 74,161 940,855 186,051 119,205 1,602,906
After 1 Year —iFE - 103,481 220,043 - 2,266,870 46,533 128566 2,765,493
- 155,221 450,937 74,161 3,207,725 232,584 247,771 4,368,399

The University received a one-off capital grant, the UGC Hostel Development Fund (“HDF”), for two hostel development projects at Ho Man
Tin Slope of $1,268.4 million and Kowloon Tong of $1,668.2 million, totalling $2,936.6 million in February 2019. The HDF and related investment
return from the investment on unspent balance of HDF are transferred to deferred income upon receipt or accrual. The amounts spent on capital
expenditure are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the student hostels when they are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

During the year ended 30 June 2024, investment return of $80.7 million (2023: $102.6 million) from the investment on unspent balance of HDF
were recognised as Deferred Income. The capital expenditure spent during the year ended 30 June 2024 for the two student hostel projects
transferred to Deferred Capital Funds was $278.2 million (2023: $77.1 million).

ARBES—RUEFYE IRESESZRED ARNEEMEBRSIRE  — (AL XHEMEEIRS12.684F7T > —EENAEETIES16.682(5
70> MEIREE2019F2 B BB £ R29.366(E T - BER HRESRRAKEANE S ZRESHENEMIRERR  ERESETHES
EIERA-TEE THNEARAXERRDCHA/BLEELES  RIEBAEBES NI RER I EREE SR AR RIBMEENTEEBERS
L UNG

BE2024F6H30HZFE  RERERNES ZREZIHRENIREEHR0.807/F 5T (2023 :1.026870) EMBBIELEUIN - BZE2024F6H30HZ
FEBARLEEAESHMEREBSHENEARR<52.782f87T (2023:0.771(87T) °
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39— 29. Deferred Capital Funds

FEEEARES
Consolidated and University
FERKE
Other
Construction Furniture, Properties
in  Equipment Library leased
Buildings Progress & Fittings ~ Collections for own use Total
(In thousands of (AF & ~ %1% BEZE HftBH
Hong Kong dollars) et 1BF EETRE REE HE e Wt
Balance at 1 July 2022 {20225 7 B 1 H#&8% 2,460,307 399,388 159,240 7,072 - 3,026,007
Additions during AEE
the Year e 40,296 318,553 320,565 1,356 13,563 694,333
Transfers SEER 141,305 (141,305) - - - =
Release to Incomeand BERE
Expenditure Statement 37 BETE (247,864) - (151,192) (2,985) (10,570)  (412,611)
Balance at 30 June 2023 [R2023FE6 H30H456% 2,394,044 576,636 328,613 5,443 2,993 3,307,729
Additions during REE
the Year e 51,824 370,118 380,518 1,702 9,622 813,784
Transfers SRR 276,515 (276,515) - - - =
Release to Income and ~ #HIRE
Expenditure Statement 1|5 RETE (264,054) - (268,284) (2402)  (11,617)  (546,357)
Balance at 30 June 2024 /220246 H30H 4588 2,458,329 670,239 440,847 4,743 998 3,575,156

@ Deferred Capital Funds are categorised by the nature of fixed assets. It will be released to the Income and Expenditure Statement to offset

against the depreciation charge for the related assets.

BEBEARETIREETEERBDR  BEEAE S REREWSIIRIAMIRIHZEREENITERX -
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Capital Management

BErEH"

The University is a government subvented education institution established under the laws of HKSAR, which objects are to
provide for studies, training and research in technology, science, commerce, arts and other subjects of learning. The University
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in note 11.2(a) and its activities are mainly
funded by government grants and tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC Notes on Procedures and other
grant conditions. The University's activities are also funded by donations and funds generated from self-financing activities.

The various funds represent the unspent balance of such grants, income, donations and other specific purpose funds. These
funds are managed according to the relevant grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the University’s investment
and financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of meeting the objects of the University.

None of the University’s subsidiaries is subject to any externally imposed capital requirements and their capital management
policies are governed by the University’s financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of safeguarding the
subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern.

ARE—FIREFBEITREER  THABHERMAINER  EREEEREHEE Hil - RARR B2 BE 21
FMEMh BB IEHLAF - BRISMIEEN.2 (2) FUBRSL MR IMENBE AR EFAIRS) A2 EEHBRHBERBERAE
By MERXERILEERFEEREMMBENZAMTNMREES - L5 BRRAEEEE T NF RO TS AREE
RMEZHIR -

FEESERRADAZHYE WA BERAEMEERENEE -RBERBERMBHZREBERGYG (NBR) BRAKRER
MIBEIEES I NER  RAREABNREMERELEEE -

RENWE QBRI IMENERRE ARG HEAEEBREAAZNMBERISS I REFAES BREREHEAS

FrHEICEmRED -

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

EREKREERAAEE

The Consolidated Entity’s and University's financial risks associated with financial instruments are mainly attributable to financial
assets which include cash and deposits with banks, debt securities carried at amortised cost and trading securities managed by
external professional investment managers. The risks on investments are controlled in accordance with the University’s Statement
of Investment Policies and Guidelines (“SIPG”) formulated by the Investment Committee, which is responsible for the governance
on investment management for the University, and approved by the University Council. This is achieved through diversified asset
allocation, rules governing the selection and credit limit of investment counterparties with reference to their credit rating and
financial strength, and investment mandates for each investment manager governing the asset allocation, investment limitations
and performance measurement of the portfolio. On-going monitoring of investment strategies and performance are carried out by the
Investment Committee to ensure that the investment objectives and performance targets are met. Asset allocation of the University
investments is managed by the Investment Committee, taking into consideration the cash flow requirements as well as the strategic
development of the University.

FERRABZEMIAEAHRREIEREESHMEE SRR RRTER - REHEASTENEBES > REEREL
EEENEEES HREMTENAREHEEEEARREEENREZEEMIFI RASRESHIDENRBEBRRIE
5|5 - AREERZRYREERN > SERRBEANEEFRNMBE NI ENREREERR > BREERIRED
FIRELH > URBERNESEERIRELER - ZREZSEHEERTERERBRRRUEREZAHNREBRER
R - REZEERABNRT AT RIRBERIFHEERK -
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S{IE

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

cMEREERAAEE ()

(a)

(b)

Credit Risk
EERM

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Consolidated Entity and University.

The Consolidated Entity’s and University's exposure to credit risk is mainly attributable to cash and deposits with banks,
accounts receivable, prepayments and other receivables, staff loans and debt securities carried at amortised cost. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of these financial assets in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

The majority of all Consolidated Entity’s and University’s cash and deposits are placed with local licensed banks. The
credit risk on cash and deposits placed with local licensed bank and debt securities carried at amortised cost are limited
because the counterparties are mainly banks and companies with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies as specified in the SIPG. The Consolidated Entity and University do not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Consolidated Entity and University to credit risk.

The Consolidated Entity and University assessed that there is no significant loss allowance in accordance with HKFRS
9 as at 30 June 2024.

EREREERZHFRERTEEEHENFRSERAZEZMHRRNELR -

FEBERABEEZIIFE MRITER » BUIRR - RITRIEREMEIKER - BEEE™ - RIZEHMATENER
BEZEERRTE - IZNESEEARAGREERABYHNARAS EMNEENREE

AED R EIRRABZHIREREFRIIFRAMFITRIRIT - REREBERRBIIBERSZH—HEERRITREREE
EHIBIRTREMRNAE > INZSRERRITERREEHENATENEBES ZEERRABR - KEERAE
TR AR EREERRAZ K IEEERMEIIER -

MERRABN20245F6 B30 B RIBEF BV H RS LR L RERD I MEABIREE -

Foreign Currency Risk

SRS LR

Foreign currency risk arises where assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency different from the functional
currency of the Consolidated Entity and University, which is the Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). For cash and deposits
with banks and debt securities carried at amortised cost, there are investment guidelines governing the exposure
denominated in foreign currencies. As at 30 June 2024, cash and deposits with banks and debt securities carried at
amortised cost are not materially exposed to currencies other than HKD, United States Dollar (“USD”) and Renminbi
(“RMB"). As HKD is currently pegged to the USD, the risk of movements in exchange rates between the two currencies
is considered insignificant. The Consolidated Entity's and the University's total income would have decreased/increased
by 0.2%(2023: 0.2%) and 0.1%(2023: 0.1%) respectively if RMB had been depreciated/appreciated against HKD by 10%,
with all other variables being held constant. Therefore, the currency risk of RMB exposure is limited.

HNERBREANAINGESERABNEEESR (NEx) ) ZEERBBEAFTEREMES - HRRERBITER K
RESHN AT ENEFE RS  RERRABUIRBIESIEHINEIRE - R2024F 6308 - BERIRITER > EIREHH
A ENEHES RTET ETRARBIN GEERARBIRAREMNEMIMETEZIRE - ARETHAETT
#a, EMESBNEREES AN  EHMBERERAET  HEARBHEEBT TR L10% FEERAZHEKRA
SRR EIENN0.2% (20231 0.2%) K0.1%(2023 : 0.1%)E 1Lt - ARBERISME IR AR -
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Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

cMEREERAAEE (B)

(b)

(c)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)

ShEEELRE (48)

In respect of the trading securities that are mainly managed by professional investment managers, the majority of
these securities are denominated in HKD and USD, and the investment managers are allowed to use currency forward
contracts to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

As at 30 June 2024, the percentage of financial assets denominated in currencies other than HKD and USD to total
financial assets (which also included cash and deposits with banks) of the Consolidated Entity and the University were
1.3% (2023: 1.3%) and 0.7% (2023: 0.7%) respectively. Apart from the financial assets held by the Consolidated Entity
and the University denominated in RMB of 1.2% (2023: 1.2%) and 0.7% (2023: 0.7%) respectively, the remaining, which
is 0.0% (2023: 0.0%) of financial assets denominated in foreign currencies other than USD were represented by various
currencies, with not more than 0.1% (2023: 0.1%) in any single currency. Details of financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies are as follows:

ERNAERRECEMEENESERS > KB BRIETRETHE - MRELETITAERPESNEEME
BRI B

[R2024F6A30H  SREBRARBMIFETRETHENEHMEEGRENEE (BRBRRSRIRTER) ZLERS 5
#31.3% (2023:1.3%) &0.7% (2023:0.7%) PR T47EEE21.2% (2023:1.2%) RAZEZ0.7% (2023 :0.7%) U AR
ERERIEE  877T0.0% (2023:0.0%) AIFETHEMNEMEBEE S RSB ER S —12#FEB180.1% (2023:0.1%) -
BOMNETHENERBEEF BN T:

Consolidated && University A%
2024 2023 2024 2023
% % % %
United States Dollars =TT 81.3 80.8 82.4 82.0
Renminbi ARE 1.2 1.2 0.7 0.7
Others HAh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Interest Rate Risk

R

The Consolidated Entity and University has exposure to interest rate risk through the impact of the rate changes on
cash and deposits with banks as well as interest-bearing financial assets, including those managed by professional
investment managers as well as interest-bearing borrowings. The Consolidated Entity and University manages the
exposure to interest rate risk through diversification of investments into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments
with various tenures. Interest rate swaps and other derivatives, where necessary, are used by professional investment
managers as hedging tools to manage the interest rate risk of their portfolios.

SAERASNNRABRMRSRBTER  MIANSHEE  OENEERECREENSNEERI NG
¥ ERRSHNEL - GAERASSBBEES TNREETAEERSEFRENHNETSIHARIA
FREBAEHOTIRRR - TELRECEEEREREBN RSN MR EMITE SMB R TANE
BRI EESHTIRER -
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S{IE

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

cMEREERAAEE ()

(c)

(d)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd)
FIEE R (48)

As at 30 June 2024, income arising from cash and deposits with banks as well as interest-bearing financial assets
represented around 4.7% (2023: 4.0%) and 5.0% (2023: 4.4%) of the Consolidated Entity’s and the University's
total income respectively. A general increase or decrease in interest rates will not have substantial impact on the
Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s operating results and fund balances.

As for interest-bearing borrowings, its exposure primarily relates to government loan on “no-gain-no-loss” interest
rate as detailed in note 25 of the Financial Statements.

1R20245F6H30H > HIRE R IRITIFA > Rt BIERIE EOTERNIRA D BlfhimE BE R RSB AR ALTL.7% (2023 < 4.0%)
15.0% (2023 4.4%) - —MRFIZE E A TRHGEBRABZEEERRBERERIAGERNERNTE -
FTRERNERE T EEBAEMR MEias ) FIREE - FI5RMEE25-

Liquidity Risk

MENE £ IS

The Consolidated Entity and University monitors current and expected liquidity requirements regularly to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable securities to meet its payment obligations.

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings of the Consolidated Entity and the University is disclosed in note 25.
As at 30 June 2024, the Consolidated Entity and the University have sufficient liquid assets to cover all current
liabilities due to external parties as follows:

FREBRRAZN—BEBRATEHERRBRFARZRBEE TR > BRESEHRSHENER A EIR 2 HERE
% UXTEREMAFRIA -

RERRABHNER ZEEEIE BTIEMNMIFE25 - R2024F6 300 @ fRERBRABEAEANRMNEENE[NFRE
HIMRENEBEUWT ¢

Consolidated & University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAF#7T5T) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash and Deposits with Banks RERIRITER 4,769,905 4,437,904 4,563,162 4,213,512
Debt Securities —FE A ZFH
carried at amortised cost RIS AT 2/
with Maturity of Less than 1 Year BEi5Es 2,982,766 1,789,399 2,982,766 1,789,399
Fixed Income Securities —FREIEN
with Maturity of Less than 1 Year BEEWRAES 101,625 - 101,625 -
7,854,296 6,227,303 7,647,553 6,002,911
Less: Current Liabilities due to i E MG
External Parties mENaE 4,094,816 2,929,625 3,699,750 2,542,107

3,759,480 3,297,678 3,947,803 3,460,804
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Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

cMEREERAAEE (B)

(e)

Price Risk
ER R

Price risk is associated with changes in the value of the securities (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
foreign currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting
all instruments traded in the market. Its exposure to price risk arises primarily from equities and fixed income securities
which are classified as trading securities. Price risk is managed by professional investment managers, using various
risk management and assessment tools and through comprehensive monitoring systems. The Consolidated Entity and
University controls its exposure to such price risk by diversifying the portfolios, in terms of concentration limits on asset
types and geographical areas.

If the market prices of equities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities at year end had been 10%
higher or lower, with all other variables being held constant, the value of the Consolidated Entity’s net assets would
have increased or decreased by $169.5 million (2023: $98.9 million) for the year.
BEREEEEMR S REMENIMNEREINESBEEEMSIRNER - EREARRRERNRE - H347E - S8
ARTHEEETANERMEL - REBRASZMAAZNERERTIEREFEABEEREFNREREERAZS -
BEREAMREHERNRELEZBRERARERE ML TARGESNERARAER - MEREBIRIREES &
FERFIEFRENEZEERRIRME - DEEREAMEHERRR -

FHMAAZBESAENERT BESEEESNREREERARSNHEENREL LA TRI0% FEE
ZFEERNERERIEINRD491.695(8 7T (20231 0.989(87T) °

Details of the equities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities by markets at year end are as follows:

RELBESEEEFNRERBEERAZRSFRMISREANFEOT -

Consolidated and University

HAERKE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XF87Tst) 2024 2023
Equities and Fixed Income Securities R R EEURAGES
Hong Kong 5E 7,110 1,708
us EE 1,201,215 635,116
Europe Bl 234,287 157,925
China F 13,826 3,841
Others HAth 238,443 190,876

1,694,881 989,466
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S{IE

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

cMEREERAAEE ()

(f)

Fair Values

DREE

0]

Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value
BARBEEFENERTE
The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments measured at 30 June 2024 on a recurring basis,

categorised into the three levels of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical financial instruments at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available

Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using significant unobservable inputs

TREJIREEHEREN2024F6 B30 A EMBRESEREI1R- AR EEAEMAE T Z=ZAAABES RS »
UARBEFEZEMIE - ARBEFERBESRCEE  DERTIEGREREZTFERBABRBZIERE
MREENL :

F—RMAE  RERS—RBARBETEEAAEE  DNGERMERESR TAEEETIS Z R ERBRE

BRME - ERE_RBABRBAEEAAEE  IRENEE—RZTRRBARBRAMEBEARH
BRBARE - FBZERABEBEHSEEREREZMARIE

BoRMAE  MEARFTHREZOABBTEQAREE
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31. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

SRIEAMEERAAEE (8)
(f) Fair Values (Cont'd)
DREE ()

(i)  Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont'd)

BRARBEFENERNIR (B)

Consolidated &2&

2024
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAF3&7TaT) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1R BT E=% W5
Equities Securities and Funds ARG REE 952,032 212,116 - 1,164,148
Fixed Income Securities BEEWAES - 530,733 - 530,733
Investment in Institutional Entities, R EAEHS ~
other Equity Securities and HAth PR B E K
Convertible Loan AR BRI E = = 17,126 17,126
952,032 742,849 17,126 1,712,007
Consolidated &
2023
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F&7tst) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B ETMR E=% W5
Equities Securities and Funds BAESRES 838,048 151,418 - 989,466
Fixed Income Securities BEEWAES - - - -
Investment in Institutional Entities,  {{¢ B4 -
other Equity Securities and HAEAE SR
Convertible Loan AR E RIS - - 9,683 9,683

838,048 151,418 9,683 999,149
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31. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

cMEREERAAEE ()

(f) Fair Values (Cont'd)
DRIEE (58)

(i)  Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont'd)
BAREBENENERIE (8)

University X2

2024
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F&7tst) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B ETHR BE=MR W5
Equities Securities and Funds BRAESREE 952,032 212,116 - 1,164,148
Fixed Income Securities EEURAES - 530,733 - 530,733
Investment in Institutional Entities, B
other Equity Securities and HAt PR AZEE K
Convertible Loan AR E IR E - - 5,626 5,626
952,032 742,849 5,626 1,700,507
University X2
2023
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAF3&7TaT) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 BT E=MR e
Equities Securities and Funds BRAESREE 838,048 151,418 - 989,466
Fixed Income Securities EEUAGE : - ; ;
Investment in Institutional Entities, THEEAE
other Equity Securities and HpgAREER
Convertible Loan BRI B RIS S - - 5,683 5,683
838,048 151,418 5,683 995,149

During the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Consolidated Entity’s and University’s policy is to recognise significant transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

RAFEREFERN  BE—REE_RZEBURFER > IBAZHBELEE=R - REBRAZZBERENHRSHARE
mANEBEERZBEAAEE ZERER -

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements:
EZRANEBEAEBMER ZEEREREIE :

The fair value of fixed income securities and equities securities and funds in Level 2 is mainly determined by price for
identical or similar assets in over the counter market that are not active.

F_REEBRARBFARFEBSRESNAAEERIIFERSIRZTIEMZERNBEEANEEERERE -
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31. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
LRAKREERAAEE ()

(f) Fair Values (Cont'd)
DRIEE (48)

0]

(ii)

Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont'd)

BRARBEFENERNIR (B)

Information about fair value measurements of instruments in Level 3:

F-REMTIAZARBEFENER !

The fair value of Investment in Institutional Entities, other Equity Securities and Convertible Loan in level 3 is
determined based on the attributable net assets values, investment costs or recent financing. The significant
unobservable input includes the attributable net asset value, adjustment to investment cost or recent financing.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the attributable net assets values, investment cost or recent
financing.

RIEEHE « EthiRAEBS R BRERNREEE=RNAABERBESFEEE - RENAHTHRES
EE - EATNABRMBEERERLEERE - HIRENATAAMENRE - AREEFSHEESFEEE
K& AT HARNE 2 IEAERT

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

BoREM T BERREENT ¢

Consolidated & University A2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) — (BAF#7tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance at 1 July 701 B45ER 9,683 6,244 5,683 6,244
Payment for Purchases BENT 7,500 4,000 - -
Unrealised Loss for the year REEREREE (57) (561) (57) (561)
Balance at 30 June 6H30B %8R 17,126 9,683 5,626 5,683

Fair Values of Financial Instruments Carried at Other Than Fair Value

FFRARBEAEVHIENAREE

All financial instruments were carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 30 June 2024
and 2023.

1R2024% 6 H30H & 2023%F6 H30H > FiA R T EMNKREEEA R EEHEBEEADH -
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32.

Involvement with Unconsolidated Structured Entities

REAANRNGRER 224

The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Consolidated Entity and the University do not consolidate

but in which it holds an interest.

TRELGESERABRGEEAREFAESNEBEERZESE -

Interest Held by the
Consolidated Entity and
the University

Type of Structured Entity Nature and Purpose MERERAKE
EEERER B A& FAN#ER

Equities Funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors Investments in units
BAEE and generate fees for the investment manager. issued by the funds.

MRRE=ZSREBEEEEERAREKEELERRE

These vehicles are financed through the issue of units
to investors.
I THROREEZITHNEMMEER

REMAETFTEITHEN

The table below sets out interest held by the Consolidated Entity and the University in unconsolidated structured entities.

The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held.

TRIITGEEERABHRGEARNSBERMEANER - RANBERAAKAEETHMEEZIREE -

Consolidated and University

FEaRAE
Carrying Amount Included in
Number of Current Financial Assets
(In thousands of AF Investee Funds Total Net Assets BEERDEMEE
Hong Kong dollars)  &Jtat) KREEEHE MEEE ZEREE
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Equity Fund BREEE 8 6 270,508,478 213,215,395 1,164,148 989,466

During the year, the Consolidated Entity and the University did not provide financial support to unconsolidated structured

entities and have no intention of providing financial or other support.

The Consolidated Entity and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds on a specified date.

REFER - REERAKBRAORGEARNGBEERIEHVBXE > RARHMBPIEMZHFNED -

RERRABANIEEABEL AR ERE BN -
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Related Party Transactions
BEALRS

Due to the nature of the University's operations and the composition of the University Council (being drawn from the University,
private and public sector organisations), it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member
of the University Council may have an interest. All transactions relating to the purchase of goods and services and capital
projects involving companies in which members of the University Council, senior management, directors or shareholders
of subsidiaries may have an interest were conducted on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the Consolidated
Entity’'s procurement procedures. Donations received from members of the University Council, senior management, directors
and shareholders of subsidiaries or from companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved in
accordance with the University’s regulations.

HRASBFNEELFARERESGZMEEE (WARB FAAMLEHBIEE)  ABHRRNELEREST XN EAMNKE
BARZ FARABREEHNE EESE WEASZEFURFAERNENATETZRBENRERTRE 9IRRIE
FREARRGESENRBEFET KABRESGNE EESE WEBASZEERRRAZEEHHEATENASIFR
BN Z 1588 ERIBEEBIE T ARG ESHE

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Consolidated Entity and
University had the following significant related party transactions.

PREMBRERPEMMESBRENRZNGRE  KRERERARBRAEMBAEALTZEARZUT :

(a) In October 2020, the University entered into an agreement with a company to provide construction services for the
Campus Expansion at Ho Man Tin Slope project after conducting an open and competitive tendering exercise in accordance
with the University procurement procedures. Subsequently in April 2021, an Executive Director of the company’s holding
company has become a member of the University Council. Service fee of $67.5 million (2023: $54.0 million) was paid by the
University to the company during the year according to the terms of the agreement.

KEEA2020F 10 IR ABIRBIEFET ARIBIE®R  B—RATR:hE  BAXEMRERERIEEIREE RS -
BERIR2021 LR ZATIMIERATIN—MEHTESHAASBREGHE - £ AERIBREOZ AT T T6,7508 7T
(2023:5,400& 75) WEMR -

(b) In December 2022, a company pledged a donation of $45 million to the University for the establishment of an endowment
fund. Subsequently in April 2023, the director of the company has become a member of the University Council. The
University has received $15 million (2023: $15 million) from the company during the year. During the year, the University
also accepted a donation of $4.3 million from another company, in which the member of the University Council is the
director of the company.

KREJR2022F 12 E—R NS EEIBEL 5008 T I BAES - HEN2023F 48 ZATNESH AT AEREZ
B -FRARBEMZ AT ER 71,5008 T (2023:1,50087T) - ABNREATMES TS —BHZAERESHEETESEN
NEIIL30E TTIBER -
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33. Related Party Transactions (Cont'd)
BEALRS (R’)

s0e— (c) Key Management Personnel Remuneration

FTEEEAB ZFH

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Salaries, Allowances and Other Benefits

Post-employment Benefits

Consolidated &

University X2

(AF387Tat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
IS - REL R EAER 75,757 73,178 75,757 73,167
4955 R R B R 9,321 9,226 9,321 9,226

85,078 82,404 85,078 82,393

Key management personnel include officers of the University and its senior management executives, the elected staff

members of the University at the Council, and the lay and other members of the Council who serve the University

without any remuneration.

FEEEAEBEERBIERSEEEAR HABRREENABRESHBERNRREFM IR EMEMKLR

34. Capital Commitments
EZ18 HRE

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2024 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

[R2024F6 B30 ARNMBHRAANBHENERIERAEUT :

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Contracted for

Authorised but not Contracted for

Consolidated &

University X2

(AF#TTat) 2024 2023 2024 2023
BTy 2,498,543 2,567,509 2,495,927 2,533,945
D ISR M R 2T 4 3,087,328 3,265,186 3,087,328 3,265,186

5585871 5832695 5583255 5,799,131

@ The Key Management Personnel Remuneration information cover 22 staff members (2023: 22) including all the senior management executives of
the University and the elected staff members of the Council, the majority of which has also been included in the staff count of note 8.3.

FEEEABZHMERIRE22(I20 8 (2023 : 22(1) » BFARRTEREALRARSELNRESEHEAR > MATBALTEER

HizE8.3N2MZ AL -
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Accounting Estimates and Judgements

ERHEE R HIER

The Consolidated Entity’s and University's fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, after taking into account their estimated residual value. The Consolidated Entity and University reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on management’s experience on the
expected usage of similar assets and, where applicable, taking into account anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charge for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Notes 27 and 31 contain information on the assumptions and risk factors relating to defined benefit retirement obligations and
financial instruments.

RERRABNEEEENTERREMA AERFRINRMAFRBEENEREZEH - KREERABEESFEREENM
ATAERFRARRGEEREETARSHEOTERS - AlERFRRIGEERRBEEEEHEEAUEERRREN
LER > TEEEHE RSV IRFTIRA KRB - MATHANGEHAERNEE » RERPABNITERSAMELRZE -

W27 31 BAAMAEEARMH IR ST ROBRRAREE ZEH -
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36.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
30 June 2024
BE2024F 6 A30H L FEEHHIM EMMERERERT - FIGEAREREAREENR

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2024 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the Consolidated Entity and University.

BEAMBEREEME > BESHAASHEMG T — LGS EAN S ERERT > RBE2024F6R30BIEFENRE
B> BMARERARETIHFRERTD - TISAREGERRABHBNETERMERT RATIEER -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RICBEAE/ 2 BN FEERNER

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or Non-current 1 January 2024
FRSTENERER] - RBEIERBEENED 202418 1H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BEGFEUNEIRIET - ESNRRZIEREEE 20241 81H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
BRMFHREEAE 165712 > ERHEENEEEE 20241 81H
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7, Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
BREGTEUNETRIEE] > RMERERRBBUFHREENETR - HESHETH 202418 1H
Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
ARG ERE215RIEET - RZ AR 202518 1H

The Consolidated Entity and University is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these development
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Consolidated Entity and University have concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

REBERABEANGZEZREVEEAITEELNTE - FBEAAL  RABLEETASHFSERABHMHRE
ERERTE -



(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
INCOME

Government Subventions

Tuition and Other Fees

Interest and Investment Gain/(Loss)
Donations and Benefactions

Other Income

Total Income

EXPENDITURE

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities

Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General

Education Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs
Income Tax
Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement Loss/(Gain) of
Defined Benefit
Retirement Schemes

Total Expenditure

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS: 2020-2024

(AFE7TA)

L ON
BURHERR
BERAEMITE
F BB/ (8518)
BRERIBIR
HAthgA
AN

353
BE - BERMT
HE R
EEE
FRR B fER it
HAth 223 ARTS

BEaE
BER—HUER
RERAMEX
B R—RRE
AR5
)

MBER
FTfS8
HfttZ S
FEEFBRIRETE
EMEEN
B 18 /(&ER)
HRFISZ

IR BRI HT : 2020F 20245

University K22

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

% % % % %

4,278,530  62.6 4,604,220 59.0 4,310,347 653 4,438,690  56.7 4,737,926  54.3
1,558,869  22.8 1,759,474 225 2,014,647 30.6 2,208,440  28.2 2,515,612  28.8
154,496 2.3 800,775 10.3 (482,441)  (7.3) 360,235 4.6 579,481 6.6
392,714 5.7 167,582 2.1 232,921 8L 252,642 3.2 271,395 3.1
452,177 6.6 475,458 6.1 521,730 7.9 570,475 7.3 627,713 7.2
6,836,786 100 7,807,509 100 6,597,204 100 7,830,482 100 8,732,127 100
3,669,185  62.0 3,768,393  60.3 4,044,419 644 4,655,983 675 5,753,871 70.2
159,816 2.7 170,453 2.7 169,392 2.7 157,838 2.3 176,372 2.2
178,304 3.0 164,808 2.6 150,878 2.4 144,013 2.1 140,331 1.7
250,003 4.2 235,723 3.8 248,099 3.9 290,037 4.2 319,591 3.9
322,948 Ok 304,907 4.9 313,972 5.0 325,351 4.7 345,729 4.2
943,012 15.9 1,263,163  20.2 976,432 1155 918,681 13.3 1,009,108 12.3
374,464 6.3 346,760 5.5 363,535 5.8 389,793 5.7 442,021 5.4
3,555 0.1 3,733 0.1 4,700 0.1 7,023 0.1 10,281 0.1
4,610 0.1 3,425 0.1 4,138 0.1 6,320 0.1 6,857 0.1
1,596 = 2,182 = 2,001 = 1,816 = 4,138 0.1
14,478 0.2 (10,224)  (0.2) 6,483 0.1 (1,351) = (13,482)  (0.2)
5,921,971 100 6,253,323 100 6,284,049 100 6,895,504 100 8,194,817 100
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